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PART |

This Report contains statements which constitute@dod-looking statements within the meaning of BecP7A of the Securities Act
of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934s&hstatements appear in a number of places iRégert and include all statements
regarding the intent, belief or current expectagiohthe Company, its directors or its officershwigéspect to, among other things: (i) the
Company's financing plans; (ii) trends affecting ompany's financial condition or results of ogierss; (iii) the Company's growth strategy
and operating strategy; and (iv) the declaratiath gayment of dividends. Investors are cautionetiahg such forwardeoking statements a
not guarantees of future performance and invobiksrand uncertainties, and that actual resultsdiffgr materially from those projected in
the forwardlooking statements as a result of various fact@sugsed herein and those factors discussed iil ietlae Company's filings wit
the Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY
General

The First Bancshares, Inc. (the "Company") wasripa@ted on June 23, 1995 to serve as a bank lgotdimpany for The First, A
National Banking Association ("The First" or t‘Bank”) located in Hattiesburg, Mississippi. Thedtibegan operations on August 5, 1996
from its main office in the Oak Grove community,iegthwas on theutskirts of Hattiesburg but now is included in dity of Hattiesburg. Th
First currently operates its main office and twarlwhes in Hattiesburg, one in Laurel, one in Puniig in Picayune, one in Pascagoula, one
in Bay St. Louis, one in Wiggins, four in Gulfpooe in Biloxi, one in Long Beach and one in Diamllogad, Mississippi, as well as one
branch in Bogalusa, Louisiana, one branch in B&ouge, Louisiana, five branches in Baldwin CouaAtiabama and four branches in Mok
County, Alabama. See Note C of Notes to Consoldi&teancial Statements for information regardinguasition. The Company and its
subsidiary bank engage in a general commerciatetadl banking business characterized by perscedkervice and local decision-making,
emphasizing the banking needs of small to mediw®esbusinesses, professional concerns and indigidllae First is a wholly-owned
subsidiary bank of the Company.

Location and Service Area

The First serves the cities of Hattiesburg, LauPekvis, Picayune, Pascagoula, Bay St. Louis, Wigigsulfport, Biloxi, Long Beach
and Diamondhead, Mississippi; Bogalusa and BatamgBplL ouisiana; Daphne, Fairhope, Foley, Gulf Shot¥ange Beach, Mobile,
Theodore, Bayley’s Corner, and Dauphin Island, Atah, and the surrounding areas of Lamar, Foreses] Pearl River, Jackson, Hancock,
Stone and Harrison Counties in Mississippi; WasttindParish, St. Tammany Parish, and East Baton &Bagsh in Louisiana; and Baldwin
and Mobile Counties in Alabama. The main officenarily serves the area in and around the northertiom of Lamar County. The Purvis
office primarily serves the area in and around RuMississippi, which is in the east-central pertamar County and is the county seat.
Lamar County is located in the southeastern sediidnhississippi. Hattiesburg, one of the largesiesiin Mississippi, is located in Forrest
Lamar Counties. Major employers located in the Liaamal Forrest County areas include Forrest Gehtspital, the University of Southern
Mississippi, Wesley Medical Center, Camp Shelbg, Hattiesburg Public Schools, the Hattiesburg €lithie City of Hattiesburg, and
Marshall Durbin Poultry. The principal componentsh®e economy of the Lamar and Forrest County aredsde service industries,
wholesale and retail trade, manufacturing, andsprartation and public utilities. The Laurel offiserves the city of Laurel and the
surrounding area of Jones County, Mississippi, Withmajority of its retail business coming frone tbcal area and the remaining business
coming from other areas of Jones County, as wedbasons of Jasper County, Wayne County, Smithr®guand Covington County. Major
employers in the Jones County area include Howadddtries, Sanderson Farms, Inc., and South Cé¥égibnal Medical Center. The
Picayune office primarily serves the area in amdiad Picayune, Mississippi, including areas of métancock County and Pearl River, LA
and Slidell, LA. Picayune is located in the southgart of Pearl River County. Pearl River Countipisated in the southern section of
Mississippi. Major employers in the Pearl River @guarea include Stennis Space Center, ChevrorgcieXrizona Chemical, American
Crescent Elevator Co., City of Picayune, Croshy Meat Hospital and the public schools. The printig@nmponents of the economy of the
Pearl River County area include timber, servicaigtdes, wholesale and retail trade, manufactuingl, transportation and public utilities.
The Pascagoula and Ocean Springs offices primseitye the area in and around Pascagoula and Opeiagss Mississippi, including areas
of Jackson County. Major employers in the Jacksoan®y area include Northrop Grumman, Singing RKespital, and Shell Oil Company.
The Bay St. Louis and Diamondhead offices serveityeof Bay St. Louis, Diamondhead and the surthng area of Hancock County,
Mississippi. Major employers in the Hancock Couatga include the City of Bay St. Louis, Hancock @guand Stennis Space Center. The
Wiggins office serves the city of Wiggins and tlereunding area of Stone County, Mississippi. StBoenty is south of Forrest County and
north of Harrison County. The Gulfport, Biloxi, ahdng Beach offices serve the city of Gulfport dhd surrounding area of Harrison
County, Mississippi. Major employers in the Harrigounty area include Keesler Air Force Base analsharray of casinos. The Bogalusa
office serves the city of Bogalusa and the surringndrea of Washington Parish, Louisiana. The majoployers in the Washington Parish
area include Temple-Inland, the Bogalusa Schodle®ysand LSU-Washington/St. Tammany Regional Mddiemter. The Baton Rouge
office serves the city of Baton Rouge and surroogairea of East Baton Rouge Parish, Louisiana. Magmloyers include BASF Wyandotte
Corporation, Baton Rouge General Medical Centew @tnemical Company, and Georgia Gulf Corporatidme Fairhope, Daphne, Foley,
Gulf Shores and Orange Beach offices serve thgjraetive cities as well as the surrounding areBatdwin County, Alabama. Major
employers in the Baldwin County area include Bafd®bunty Board of Education, Wal-Mart Super Centifirmary Health, UTC
Aerospace Systems, and South Baldwin Regional NMéd@ienter. The Mobile, Theodore, Bay' s Corner and Dauphine Island offices ser



their respective areas as well as the surroundieg ef Mobile County, Alabama. Major employershe Mobile County area inclu
Austal, AM/NS Calvert, and BAE Systems Southeagpygirds.




On July 1, 2014 the Company completed its acqarsitif Bay Bank, previously headquartered in Mobllebama, discussed below
under “Recent Developments”).

Banking Services

The Company strives to provide its customers withlireadth of products and services comparablegetoffered by large regional
banks, while maintaining the quick response andq®l service of a locally owned and managed bankddition to offering a full range of
deposit services and commercial and personal |@dresFirst offers products such as mortgage lo&ins.following is a description of the
products and services offered or planned to beaexdfby the Bank.

« Deposit Services. The Bank offers a full range of deposit serviced tire typically available in most banks and saviagd loan
associations, including checking accounts, NOW aotsxy savings accounts, and other time depositaridus types, ranging from
daily money market accounts to longer-term centis of deposit. The transaction accounts anddaréicates are tailored to the
Bank's principal market area at rates competitivihose offered by other banks in the area. Albdégmccounts are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the "FDI@¥¥o the maximum amount allowed by law. The Baoliciés these accounts
from individuals, businesses, associations andmizgtions, and governmental authorities. In addjtihe Bank offers certain
retirement account services, such as Individuar&uaent Accounts (IRAS'

« Loan Products. The Bank offers a full range of commercial and peed loans. Commercial loans include both secunedussecure
loans for working capital (including loans secubgdinventory and accounts receivable), businesarmsipn (including acquisition «
real estate and improvements), and purchase opeguit and machinery. Consumer loans include edjoig of credit and secured
and unsecured loans for financing automobiles, hiompeovements, education, and personal investm&his Bank also makes real
estate construction and acquisition loans. The Bdehkding activities are subject to a varietyefiding limits imposed by federal
law. While differing limits apply in certain circustances based on the type of loan or the natuteedforrower (including the
borrower's relationship to the Bank), in general Bank is subject to a loans-to-one-borrower lwfian amount equal to 15% of the
Bank's unimpaired capital and surplus. The Bank n@ymake any loans to any director, executiveceffior 10% shareholder
unless the loan is approved by the Board of Dimsabd the Bank and is made on terms not more félert® such a person than
would be available to a person not affiliated vitie Bank.




« Mortgage Loan Divisions. The Bank has mortgage loan divisions which origirains to purchase existing or construct new homes
and to refinance existing mortgag

« Other Services. Other Bank services include on-line internet baglsarvices, voice response telephone inquiry sereiemmercial
sweep accounts, cash management services, safgtdepas, travelers checks, direct deposit of glhgnd social security checks,
and automatic drafts for various accounts. The Bamlssociated with the Interlink, Plus, Pulser,Stad Community Cash networks
of automated teller machines that may be used éB#nk’s customers throughout Mississippi and otégions. The Bank also
offers VISA and MasterCard credit card servicesuigh a correspondent bai

Competition

The Bank generally competes with other financiatitations through the selection of banking prodwatd services offered, the
pricing of services, the level of service providdétk convenience and availability of services, tneddegree of expertise and the personal
manner in which services are offered. Mississippi permits statewide branching by banks and sawirggutions, and many financial
institutions in the state have branch networks.gegnently, commercial banking in Mississippi ishtygcompetitive. Many large banking
organizations currently operate in the Company'sketarea, several of which are controlled by dustate ownership. In addition,
competition between commercial banks and thriftitsons (savings institutions and credit uniohap been intensified significantly by the
elimination of many previous distinctions betweke various types of financial institutions and ¢éxpanded powers and increased activity of
thrift institutions in areas of banking which prewsly had been the sole domain of commercial bdféderal legislation, together with other
regulatory changes by the primary regulators ofvdm@ous financial institutions, has resulted ia #imost total elimination of practical
distinctions between a commercial bank and a tmsfitution. Consequently, competition among ficiahinstitutions of all types is largely
unlimited with respect to legal ability and authytio provide most financial services.

The Company faces increased competition from bedlerally-chartered and state-chartered financiadlthnift institutions, as well as
credit unions, consumer finance companies, ins@anmpanies, and other institutions in the Compamgrket area. Some of these
competitors are not subject to the same degreegoflation and restriction imposed upon the Compktany of these competitors also have
broader geographic markets and substantially greegeurces and lending limits than the Companyadfeat certain services such as trust
banking that the Company does not currently pravid@ddition, many of these competitors have namgibranch offices located throughout
the extended market areas of the Company that mosyde these competitors with an advantage in ggagc convenience that the Company
does not have at present.

Currently there are numerous other commercial hasdsngs institutions, and credit unions operatmghe First's primary service
area.

Employees
As of March 19, 2015 the Company had 269 full-tieneployees and 9 part-time employees.
Recent Developments

The Company recently completed its acquisition ay Bank, previously headquartered in Mobile, Alabgithe “Acquisition”). The
Acquisition was consummated on July 1, 2014.

On March 3, 2014, the Company entered into an Agese and Plan of Merger (the “Agreementiith BCB Holding Company, Inc
The Agreement provided that, upon the terms angbsuto the conditions set forth in the Agreem&®gB would merge with and into the
Company (the “Merger”) and Bay Bank would mergehvéind into The First, A National Banking Associat{®Bank Merger”).




Under the Agreement, which was approved by the @oaf Directors of the Company and BCB, holdersaxfh outstanding share
BCB common stock, other than shares with respewtioh the holders perfected dissenters’ rightseired (i) for the BCB common stock
that was outstanding prior to August 1, 2013, $3€0share and one non-transferable contingenevaat (“CVR”), and (ii) for the BCB
common stock that was issued on August 1, 20125%2er share in cash. Each CVR is eligible to rexaicash payment equal to up to $C
with the exact amount based on the resolution dhteidentified BCB loans over a three-year peffimin the closing of the transaction.
Payout of the CVR will be overseen by a special mittee of the Company’s Board of Directors. The @amy also redeemed, in full, a note
payable by BCB to Alostar Bank, as well as thegurefd stock issued under the U.S. Treasury’s Adpitechase Program. The total
consideration paid in connection with the acqusitivas approximately $6.3 to $6.7 million dependipgn the payout of the CVR.

Following the Acquisition, customers of The Firavk access to a total of 29 branch locations anddan production offices
throughout Mississippi, Louisiana and south Alabama

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

The Company and the Bank are subject to stateedetdl banking laws and regulations which imposeiip requirements or
restrictions on and provide for general regulatmrgrsight with respect to virtually all aspectopgrations. These laws and regulations are
generally intended to protect depositors, not si@ders. To the extent that the following summaggatibes statutory or regulatory
provisions, it is qualified in its entirety by reémce to the particular statutory and regulatogyisions. Any change in applicable laws or
regulations may have a material effect on the lmssirand prospects of the Company. Beginning wétetractment of the Financial
Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act@89 and following with the Federal Deposit Iresure Corporation Improvement Act
of 1991 ("FDICIA"), and now most recently the swiggpDodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumerd®tain Act of 2010 (the “Dodd-
Frank Act”), numerous additional regulatory requients have been placed on the banking industilyeipast several years, and additional
changes have been proposed. The operations ofoim@&hy and the Bank may be affected by legislathanges and the policies of various
regulatory authorities. The Company is unable &gljmt the nature or the extent of the effect oitsiness and earnings that fiscal or
monetary policies, economic control, or new federadtate legislation may have in the future.

Bank Holding Company Regulation

The Company is subject to extensive regulationhieyBoard of Governors of the Federal Reserve SyfteriFederal Reserve”)
pursuant to the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956amended (the “Bank Holding Company Act”). The @amy is also required to file
certain reports with, and otherwise comply with thikes and regulations of the SEC under federalriézs laws.
Federal Regulation

The Company is registered with the Federal Resas\ebank holding company and has elected to aettas a financial holding

company under the Bank Holding Company Act. As stiolh Company and its subsidiaries are subjedtastipervision, examination and
reporting requirements of the Bank Holding CompaAnryand the regulations of the Federal Reserve.




The Bank Holding Company Act generally prohibitsoaiporation that owns a federally insured finantiatitution (“bank”) from
engaging in activities other than banking, managingontrolling banks or other subsidiaries enggginpermissible activities. Also
prohibited is acquiring or obtaining control of redhan 5% of the voting interests of any compaiay émgages in activities other than those
activities determined by the Federal Reserve tecbelosely related to banking, managing or contrglbanks as to be proper incident ther
In determining whether a particular activity is péssible, the Federal Reserve considers whethgrafermance of the activity can
reasonably be expected to produce benefits touhkcthat outweigh possible adverse effects. EXampf activities that the Federal Reserve
has determined to be permissible are making, aoguar servicing loans; leasing personal propestgyiding certain investment or financial
advice; performing certain data processing servigeting as agent or broker in selling credit lifsurance; and performing certain insurance
underwriting activities. The Bank Holding CompangtAloes not place territorial limits on permissibbnk-related activities of bank holding
companies. Even with respect to permissible a@sjithowever, the Federal Reserve has the powsdér a holding company or its
subsidiaries to terminate any activity or its cohtf any subsidiary when the Federal Reserve éasonable cause to believe that continu
of such activity or control of such subsidiary webplose a serious risk to the financial safety, doess or stability of any bank subsidiary of
that holding company. The Bank Holding Company #ecfuires every bank holding company to obtain tt@ @pproval of the Federal
Reserve before it: (1) acquires ownership or céwirany voting shares of any bank if, after suchasition, such bank holding company \
own or control more than 5% of the voting sharesuzh bank, (2) or any of its non-bank subsidiaaigguire all of the assets of a bank, (3)
merges with any other bank holding company, oe@ages in permissible non-banking activitieseliawing a proposed covered
acquisition, the Federal Reserve considers a baldlirly companys financial, managerial and competitive posturee fithure prospects of tl
companies and banks concerned and the conveniadageads of the community to be served are alssidered. The Federal Reserve also
reviews the indebtedness to be incurred by a baldirty company in connection with the proposed &itjon to ensure that the bank hold
company can service such indebtedness without selyesiffecting its ability, and the ability of issibsidiaries, to meet their respective
regulatory capital requirements. The Bank Holdirpany Act further requires that consummation giraped bank holding company or
bank acquisitions or mergers must be delayed fiarind of not less than 15 or more than 30 dayeviahg the date of Federal Reserve
approval. During such 15 to 30-day period, the Dipant of Justice has the right to review the catitige aspects of the proposed
transaction. The Department of Justice may filavesLit with the relevant United States Court of Agls seeking an injunction against the
proposed acquisition.

As described above, the prior approval of the Fadeeserve must be obtained before the Companyat@yire substantially all of
the assets of any bank, or ownership or contrangfvoting shares of any bank, if, after such atjan, it would own or control, directly or
indirectly, more than 5% of the voting shares affshank. The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking anch&nang Efficiency Act of 1994 (the
“Riegle-Neal Act”) permits adequately capitalizetdananaged bank holding companies to acquire dasftizanks in any state, subject to
federal regulatory approval, without regard to vileetsuch a transaction is prohibited by the lawanyf state. The Riegle-Neal Act further
provides that a bank holding company may not, feihgy an interstate acquisition, control more th@fbelof nationwide insured deposits or
30% of deposits within any state in which the adggibank operates. States have the right to ddgstlation to lower the 30% limit,
although no states within the Company’s currentkeiaairea have done so. Additional provisions regthiat interstate activities conform to
the Community Reinvestment Act, which is intende@ncourage depository institutions to help meeftctiedit needs of the communities in
which they operate, including low-and moderate-memeighborhoods, consistent with safe and souadatipns.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumerdetimn Act of 2010 (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) authorizeational and state
banks to establish de novo branches in other diathe same extent a bank chartered in thosesstateld be so permitted.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (the “Financg&drvices Modernization Act”) established a compnshe framework that
permits affiliations among qualified bank holdingnepanies, commercial banks, insurance companiestises firms, and other financial
service providers by revising and expanding thekBaolding Company Act framework to permit a holdicgmpany to engage in a full range
of financial activities through a financial holdiegmpany.




Capital Requirements
General Risk-Based and Leverage-Based Capital Requirements

The Federal Reserve has adopted capital adequadsligas for use in its examination and regulatbibank holding companies a
financial holding companies. The regulatory capiffah bank holding company or financial holding gamy under applicable federal capital
adequacy guidelines is particularly important ia Federal Reserve’s evaluation of the overall gafetl soundness of the bank holding
company or financial holding company and are imgratrfactors considered by the Federal Reservedhuating any applications made by
such holding company to the Federal Reserve. liledgry capital falls below minimum guideline lesgeh financial holding company may
lose its status as a financial holding companyabénk holding company or bank may be denied ajptovacquire or establish additional
banks or non-bank businesses or to open additfaniities. Additionally, each bank subsidiary ofimancial holding company as well as the
holding company itself must be well capitalized avall managed as determined by the subsidiary Isgmmary federal regulator, which in
the case of the Bank, is the Office of the Comperadf the Currency (the “OCC”). To be considereellwnanaged, the bank and holding
company must have received at least a satisfactonyposite rating and a satisfactory managememiyati its most recent examination. The
Federal Reserve rates bank holding companies thrawgnfidential component and composite thting system, with a composite rating ¢
being the highest rating and 5 being the lowesis $irstem is designed to help identify institutioeguiring special attention. Financial
institutions are assigned ratings based on evaluatid rating of their financial condition and agg@ns. Components reviewed include
capital adequacy, asset quality, management céyatiie quality and level of earnings, the adequaidiquidity and sensitivity to interest
rate fluctuations. As of December 31, 2014, the gamy and the Bank were both well capitalized antli managed.

A financial holding company that becomes aware ithat a subsidiary bank has ceased to be weltalgpd or well managed must
notify the Federal Reserve and enter into an ageaeto cure the identified deficiency. If the déditcy is not cured timely, the Federal
Reserve Board may order the financial holding camyga divest its banking operations. Alternativety avoid divestiture, a financial holdi
company may cease to engage in the financial hplcimpany activities that are unrelated to bankingtherwise impermissible for a bank
holding company.

There are two measures of regulatory capital apbléecto holding companies in 2014: (1) leveragetabmtio and (2) risk-based
capital ratios.

Company
at
Minimum 12/31/201¢
Tier 1 leverage capital rat 3.0(% 8.4%
Risk-based capital ratic
Tier 1 capita 4.0(% 11.5%
Total risk-based capital (Tier 1 plus Tier 8.0(% 12.2%

The essential difference between the leverageatapiio and the risk-based capital ratios is thatlatter identify and weight both
balance sheet and off-balance sheet risks. Tiapitat generally includes common equity, retainathimgs, qualifying minority interests
(issued by consolidated depository institutionfooeign bank subsidiaries), accounts of consolidiatgbsidiaries and an amount of qualifying
perpetual preferred stock, limited to 50% of Tierapital. In calculating Tier 1 capital, goodwiticaother disallowed intangibles and
disallowed deferred tax assets and certain ottsstasre excluded. Tier 2 capital is a secondanpooent of risk-based capital, consisting
primarily of perpetual preferred stock that may betincluded as Tier 1 capital, mandatory convkrtiecurities, certain types of subordine
debt and an amount of the allowance for loan lofigaged to 1.25% of risk weighted assets).

The risk-based capital guidelines are designedakennegulatory capital requirements more sensitiwdifferences in risk profiles
among banks and bank holding companies, to takeaitttount off-balance sheet exposure and to mieigigincentives for holding liquid
assets. Under the risk-based capital guidelinegtaisire assigned to one of four risk categorbés:20%, 50% and 100%. For example, U.S.
Treasury securities are assigned to the 0% rigggoay while most categories of loans are assigodiet 100% risk category. Off-balance
sheet exposures such as standby letters of crediisk-weighted and all or a portion thereof arduded in risk-weighted assets based on an
assessment of the relative risks that they preSémetrisk-weighted asset base is equal to the guheaggregate dollar values of assets and
off-balance sheet items in each risk category, ipligt by the weight assigned to that category.

Basdl 111 Capital Requirements Effective January 1, 2015

On July 2, 2013, the Company’s and the Bank’s pnnfiederal regulators—the Federal Reserve Boardlaa@CC—adopted final
rules implementing the Basel Ill framework, whialbstantially revises the leverage and risk-baspdalaequirements currently applicable
to bank holding companies and depository institgidrhese final rules are based on internatioratalaccords of the Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision (the “Basel Committee”).




The new rules address both the components of tapitbother issues affecting the numerator in bapkistitutions’ regulatory
capital ratios, as well as the risk weights andptbsues affecting the denominator, replacinggttisting Basel I-derived risk weighting
approach with a more risk-sensitive approach baeghrt, on the standardized approach in the Basaimittee’'s 2004 “Basel II” capital
accords. Regarding the denominator, under the ffidas, the Company, among other items, will beiiegl to increase the risk weights
applied to certain high volatility commercial resitate loans and to certain loans past due. Additig the Company will be required to risk
weight at 20% the conversion factors for commitreemith an original maturity of one year or lesstth@ not unconditionally cancellable at
any time. Regarding the numerator under the finlgls; NOLs and tax credits carried forward willdedlucted from Tier 1 capital.
Additionally, there are deductions and adjustmémisapital for goodwill and other intangibles adlvas deductions and adjustments to ca
by the amount that the carrying value of certasetsexceeds 10% of capital. Examples of thes¢saamsedeferred tax assets, mortgage
servicing rights, significant investments in unaoitated subsidiaries, investments in certain edpistruments of financial entities and
unrealized gains on cash flow hedges included énmclated other comprehensive income arising fredghks not carried at fair market ve
on the balance sheet. Under the final rules, scamé&d) including the Bank, are given a one-time ‘mgt in which they may elect to filter
certain volatile accumulated other comprehensicerime (“AOCI”) components from inclusion in regulgteapital. The AOCI opt-out
election must be made on the institution’s firstl ®@@port, FR Y-9C or FR Y-9SP, as applicable dikfter January 1, 2015. The Company
and the Bank intend to timely elect to opt out.

The final rules established a new category of ehpieasure, Common Equity Tier 1 capital, whicHudes a limited number of
capital instruments from the existing definitionTaér 1 Capital, as well as raised minimum thredhdbr Tier 1 Leverage capital (100 basis
points), and Tier 1 Risk-based capital (200 bagistp). Additionally, the final rules introducectapital conservation buffer of Common
Equity Tier 1, Tier 1 Risk-based and Total Riskdzhsapital ratios above the minimum risk-basedtahpquirements. The buffer must be
maintained to avoid limitations on capital disttiloms and limitations on discretionary bonus paytsén executive officers. Each of the
minimum capital ratios takes effect in 2015, whie tapital conservation buffer set to be phasdxginning in 2016 and implemented in full
by 2019. Based on estimated capital ratios usirggBé# definitions, the Company and the Bank cotiyeexceed all capital requirements of
the new rule, including the fully phased-in conseion buffer.

Basel Ill Capital Adequacy Ratios
Effective January 1, 2015

Well-
Minimum Capitalized 2016 2017 2018 2019
Tier | leverage capital rati 4.0(% 5.0(% N/A N/A N/A N/A
Risk-based capital ratic
Common equity Tier | capit: 4.50% 6.5(% 5.1259% 5.7% 6.37% 7.0(%
Tier | capital 6.0(% 8.0(% 6.625% 7.25% 7.87%% 8.5(%
Total risk-based capital (Tier 1 plus Tier 8.0(% 10.0(% 8.625% 9.25% 9.87% 10.5(%

Federal Reserve Oversight

The Company is required to give the Federal Reganioe written notice of any purchase or redemptibits outstanding equity
securities if the gross consideration for the pasehor redemption, when combined with the net denation paid for all such purchases or
redemptions during the preceding 12 months, isldéquED% or more of the Company’s consolidatedwatth. The Federal Reserve may
disapprove such a transaction if it determinestti@aproposed redemption or stock purchase wouldtitate an unsafe or unsound practice,
would violate any law, regulation, Federal Resamder or directive or any condition imposed byywitten agreement with, the Federal
Reserve.




The Federal Reserve has issued its “Policy Stateore@ash Dividends Not Fully Covered by Earnirte (‘Policy Statement”)
which sets forth various guidelines that the FeldeReserve believes a bank holding company shodilloiian establishing its dividend policy.
In general, the Federal Reserve stated that badingoccompanies should pay dividends only out afent earnings. The Federal Reserve
stated that dividends should not be paid unlesgithgpective rate of earnings retention by theihgldompany appears consistent with its
capital needs, asset quality and overall finaremaldition.

The Company is required to file annual and quartexports with the Federal Reserve, and such additinformation as the Federal
Reserve may require pursuant to the Bank Holdingn@my Act. The Federal Reserve may examine a baldinly company or any of its
subsidiaries.

Additional Federal Regulatory Issue

In June 2010, the federal banking agencies issaiptiguidance on executive compensation designéelmensure that a banking
organization’s incentive compensation policies dbencourage imprudent risk taking and are consistéh the safety and soundness of the
organization. In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act regaithose agencies, along with the Commissiondaoptarules to require reporting of
incentive compensation and to prohibit certain cengation arrangements. The federal banking ageantbthe Commission proposed such
rules in April 2011. In addition, in June 2012, Bemmission issued final rules to implement the @&dank Act’s requirement that the
Commission direct the national securities exchangeslopt certain listing standards related tocttrapensation committee of a company’s
board of directors as well as its compensationssatsi

The Company is a legal entity separate and distinot the Bank. There are various restrictions timait the ability of the Bank to
finance, pay dividends or otherwise supply fundth®Company or other affiliates. In addition, sdizsy banks of holding companies are
subject to certain restrictions under Sections 28B4 23B of the Federal Reserve Act on any extersfienedit to the bank holding company
or any of its subsidiaries, on investments in tioelsor other securities thereof and on the takihguch stock or securities as collateral for
loans to any borrower. Further, a bank holding canypand its subsidiaries are prohibited from enyga@i certain tie-in arrangements in
connection with extensions of credit, leases agssaf property, or furnishing of services.

Stress Testing

The Dodd-Frank Act requires stress testing of @etiank holding companies and banks that have mhaire $10 billion but less than
$50 billion of consolidated assets (“medium-sizethpanies”). Additional stress testing is requiredifanking organizations having $50
billion or more of assets. Because the consolidassets of the Company and the Bank are lessliear threshold levels, the stress test
requirements are not applicable to the Companyp tiré Bank at present.

Company Participation in Legislative and Regulatorylnitiatives

The Congress, Treasury Department and the fedenkig regulators, including the FDIC, have takewald action since early
September 2008 to address volatility in the U.8kbag system. In October 2008, the Emergency Ecan&tabilization Act of 2008
(“"EESA”) was enacted. The EESA authorized the TugaBepartment to purchase from financial instdos and their holding companies up
to $700 billion in mortgage loans, mortgage-relatedurities and certain other financial instrumeiniduding debt and equity securities
issued by financial institutions and their holdogmpanies in a troubled asset relief program (“TARA he purpose of TARP was to restore
confidence and stability to the U.S. banking system to encourage financial institutions to incestheir lending to customers and to each
other. The Treasury Department allocated $25@hilowards the TARP Capital Purchase Program (“GRRrsuant to which the Treasury
Department purchased debt or equity securities frarticipating institutions. The TARP also inclddhe Community Development Capital
Initiative (“*CDCI"), which was made available ortly certified Community Development Financial Ingtibns (“CDFIs”) and imposed a
lower dividend or interest rate, as applicablenttitee CPP funding. Participants in the TARP argesuitio executive compensation limits and
are encouraged to expand their lending and mortlyegemodifications.




On February 6, 2009, as part of the CPP, the Comeatered into a Letter Agreement and Securitigstifise Agreement
(collectively, the “Purchase Agreement”) with theedsury Department, pursuant to which the Compatuy(§ 5,000 shares of the
Company’s Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Prefedtedk, Series UST (the “CPP Preferred Stock”) @ha warrant (the “Warrant”) to
purchase 54,705 shares of the Company’s Commork 8ioan exercise price of $13.71 per share. Orie®aiper 29, 2010, after successfully
obtaining CDFI certification, the Company exiteé tAPP by refinancing its CPP funding into lowert&@BCI funding and also accepted
additional CDCI funding. In connection with thiamisaction, the Company retired its CPP PreferredkSind issued to the Treasury
Department 17,123 shares of the Company’s Fixed Ratnulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Seriest@®“CDCI Preferred Stock”).
Including refinanced funding and newly obtaineddimg, the Company’s total CDCI funding is $17,1Z80

The CDCI Preferred Stock qualifies as Tier 1 cagital, provided that the Company maintains its C8ligibility and certification,
is entitled to cumulative dividends at a rate of &6 annum until 2018, and 9% per annum theredfter. Warrant has a 10-year term and is
immediately exercisable upon its issuance, aneiigscise price is subject to anti-dilution adjustise

In order to benefit from the lower dividend rats@sdated with the CDCI Preferred Stock, the Compamgquired to maintain
compliance with the eligibility requirements of t8®FI Program. These eligibility requirements irdguthe following:

o The Company must have a primary mission of prongatimmmunity development, based on criteria sehfortl2 C.F.R. 1805.201

(b)(1);

« The Company must provide Financial Products, Dearaknt Services, and/or other similar financing aseslominant business
activity in arnm’ s-length transactions, as provided in 12 C.F.R. 1B0Kb)(2);

« The Company must serve a Target Market by servirggos more Investment Areas and/or Targeted Papofatsubstantially in the
manner set forth in 12 C.F.R. 1805.201(b)

« The Company must provide Development Services mueation with its Financial Products, either ditgcthrough an Affiliate, or
through a contract with a thi-party provider, as provided in 12 C.F.R. 1805.2)#(b

« The Company must maintain accountability to redislefithe applicable Investment Area(s) and/or &ad Population(s) through
representation on its governing Board of Directmrstherwise, as provided in 12 C.F.R. 1805.205{hXnd

« The Company must remain a non-governmental entifigiwis not an agency or instrumentality of thetddiStates of America, or
any State or political subdivision thereof, as diéed in 12 C.F.R. 1805.201(b)(6) and within theamiag of any supplemental
regulations or interpretations of 12 C.F.R. 180%(B)(6) or such supplemental regulations publignethe Fund

As used in the discussion above, the terms “Affilja“Financial Products,” “Development Service$Target Market,” “Investment Area(s),”
and “Targeted Population(s)” have the meaningstzstito such terms in 12 C.F.R. 1805.104.

American Reinvestment and Recovery Act of 2009. The America Reinvestment and Recovery Act of 20B&RRA") contained
expansive new restrictions on executive compensdgiofinancial institutions and other companiesgipgating in the TARP. These
restrictions apply to us and are further detaiteshviplementing regulations found at 31 CFR Part(80y reference to “ARRA” herein
includes a reference to the implementing regulatjon




ARRA prohibits bonus and similar payments to theshiighly compensated employee of the Company.prbleibition does not
apply to bonuses payable pursuant to “employmergemgents” in effect prior to February 11, 2009. rigeterm” restricted stock is excluded
from ARRA's bonus prohibition, but only to the emtehe value of the stock does not exceed one-tiitde total amount of annual
compensation of the employee receiving the stdekstock does not “fully vest” until after all TARBlated obligations have been satisfied,
and any other conditions which the Treasury magi§pbave been met.

ARRA prohibits any payment to the principal exeeatofficer, the principal financial officer, andyaaf the next eight most highly
compensated employees upon departure from the Gonipaany reason for as long as any TARP-relatdyations remain outstanding.

Under ARRA TARP-participating companies are requiii@ recover any bonus or other incentive paymaitt fo the principal
executive officer, the principal financial officem, any of the next 23 most highly compensated eymas on the basis of materially inaccu
financial or other performance criteria.

ARRA prohibits TARP participants from implementiagy compensation plan that would encourage martipulaf the reported
earnings of the Company in order to enhance thepeosation of any of its employees.

ARRA requires the principal executive officer aheé principal financial officer of any publicly-trad TARP-participating company
to provide a written certification of compliancetlwthe executive compensation restrictions in ARRge Companys annual filings with tr
SEC beginning in 2010.

ARRA requires each TARP-participating company tplement a company-wide policy regarding excessiMenairy expenditures,
including excessive expenditures on entertainmertents, office and facility renovations, aviatimnother transportation services.

ARRA directs the Treasury to review bonuses, rgtardawards, and other compensation paid to theipdhexecutive officer and
the next four other highest paid executive offickthe Company and the next 20 most highly compedsamployees of each company
receiving TARP assistance before ARRA was enacted to “seek to negotiate” with the TARP recipiand affected employees for
reimbursement if it finds any such payments wecemsistent with TARP or otherwise in conflict witke public interest.

ARRA also prohibits the payment of tax gross-upsguired disclosures related to perquisite paymemisthe engagement, if any, by
the TARP participant of a compensation consultantt prohibits the deduction for tax purposes otakee compensation in excess of
$500,000 for each applicable senior executive.

These standards could change based on subseqidsnicgiissued by the Treasury or the Internal Rex&ervice. As long as the
Treasury continues to hold equity interests inGloenpany issued under the TARP, the Company willitooits compensation arrangements
and modify such compensation arrangements, agi@ait@nd limit its compensation deductions, aakle such other actions as may be
necessary to comply with the standards discussexkahs they may be modified from time to time. Twnpany does not anticipate that :
material changes to its existing executive comptmsatructure will be required to comply with tegecutive compensation standards
included in the TARP.

The Bank

The Bank operates as a national banking associatonporated under the laws of the United Statessabject to examination by
the OCC. Deposits in the Bank are insured by thECRIp to a maximum amount (generally $250,000 mgogitor, subject to aggregation
rules). The OCC and the FDIC regulate or monitaueily all areas of the Bank’s operations, inchglsecurity devices and procedures,
adequacy of capitalization and loan loss reseteass, investments, borrowings, deposits, mergesgances of securities, payment of
dividends, interest rates payable on depositsiésteates or fees chargeable on loans, establigiwhbranches, corporate reorganizations,
maintenance of books and records, and adequadgfbfraining to carry on safe lending and depgsithering practices. The OCC requires
the Bank to maintain certain capital ratios anddsgs limitations on the Bank’s aggregate investrimrergal estate, bank premises, and
furniture and fixtures. The Bank is required by @EC to prepare quarterly reports on their finanoiendition and to conduct an annual audit
of their financial affairs in compliance with minum standards and procedures prescribed by the OCC.
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Under FDICIA, all insured institutions must undemggular on-site examinations by their appropristeking agency. The cost of
examinations of insured depository institutions ang affiliates may be assessed by the appro@ggacy against each institution or affiliate
as it deems necessary or appropriate. Insuredutigtis are required to submit annual reports ¢oRBIC and the appropriate agency (and
state supervisor when applicable). FDICIA alsodi#dhe FDIC to develop with other appropriate aigsha method for insured depository
institutions to provide supplemental disclosurehef estimated fair market value of assets andiliglsi to the extent feasible and practicable,
in any balance sheet, financial statement, redarbodition, or any other report of any insured @gfory institution. FDICIA also requires t
federal banking regulatory agencies to prescripeefgulation, standards for all insured depositosfitutions and depository institution
holding companies relating, among other things(ijanternal controls, information systems, andliagystems; (ii) loan documentation; (iii)
credit underwriting; (iv) interest rate risk exposuand (v) asset quality.

National banks and their holding companies whickehazeen chartered or registered or undergone aeharcontrol within the past
two years or which have been deemed by the OCBedFé¢deral Reserve Board, respectively, to be kedubstitutions must give the OCC
the Federal Reserve Board, respectively, thirtysdajor notice of the appointment of any seniorceiwe officer or director. Within the thir
day period, the OCC or the Federal Reserve Boartheacase may be, may approve or disapprove afyagppointment.

Deposit Insurance. The FDIC establishes rates for the payment of premaiby federally insured banks and thrifts for dsfpo
insurance. A Deposit Insurance Fund ("DIF") is ntaiimed for commercial banks and thrifts, with irswre premiums from the industry used
to offset losses from insurance payouts when ban#shrifts fail. Since 1993, insured depositorstitutions like the Bank have paid for
deposit insurance under a risk-based premium sy#iesessments are calculated based on the deyasistitution’s average consolidated
total assets, less its average amount of tanggulaye

Transactions With Affiliates and Insiders. The Bank is subject to Section 23A of the FedesddRve Act, which places limits on the
amount of loans to, and certain other transactitis affiliates, as well as on the amount of adveto third parties collateralized by the
securities or obligations of affiliates. The aggrtegof all covered transactions is limited in antpas to any one affiliate, to 10% of the Ba
capital and surplus and, as to all affiliates cambi to 20% of the Bank's capital and surplus.Heunbore, within the foregoing limitations as
to amount, each covered transaction must meetfiggbcollateral requirements.

The Bank is also subject to Section 23B of the Fadeeserve Act, which prohibits an institutionrfr@ngaging in certain
transactions with affiliates unless the transadtiare on terms substantially the same, or at &safgtvorable to such institution, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactioita nonaffiliated companies. The Bank is subjectértain restrictions on extensions of
credit to executive officers, directors, certaimpipal shareholders, and their related inter&atish extensions of credit (i) must be made on
substantially the same terms, including interetgtsrand collateral, as those prevailing at the foneomparable transactions with third par
and (ii) must not involve more than the normal igkepayment or present other unfavorable features

Dividends. A national bank may not pay dividends from its talpiAll dividends must be paid out of undivideafits then on hand,
after deducting expenses, including reserves fsde and bad debts. In addition, a national bapkotsbited from declaring a dividend on its
shares of common stock until its surplus equalstéted capital, unless the bank has transferredrflus no less than one-tenth of its net
profits of the preceding two consecutive half-yeariods (in the case of an annual dividend). Ther@ml of the OCC is required if the total
of all dividends declared by a national bank in aalendar year exceeds the total of its net préditshat year combined with its retained net
profits for the preceding two years, less any negfutransfers to surplus. In addition, under FDIQe banks may not pay a dividend if, after
paying the dividend, the bank would be undercapitdl See "Capital Requirements" above.
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Branching. National banks are required by the National Banktd@dhere to branch office banking laws applieablstate banks in
the states in which they are located. Under cuméississippi, Alabama and Louisiana law, banks mjgn branches throughout these states
with the prior approval of the OCC or other priméaegeral regulator. In addition, with prior reguat approval, banks are able to acquire
existing banking operations in Mississippi, Alabaamal Louisiana. Furthermore, federal legislatios teently been passed which permits
interstate branching. The new law permits out afesacquisitions by bank holding companies (sultgegeto by new state law), interstate
branching by banks if allowed by state law, int&estmerging by banks, and de novo branching bypmnaltbanks if allowed by state law.

Community Reinvestment Act. The Community Reinvestment Act requires that, inneetion with examinations of financial
institutions within their respective jurisdictionthe Federal Reserve, the FDIC, the OCC, or the®#f Thrift Supervision shall evaluate the
record of the financial institutions in meeting ttredit needs of their local communities, includiogy and moderate income neighborhoods,
consistent with the safe and sound operation afeliestitutions. These factors are also considierestaluating mergers, acquisitions, and
applications to open a branch or facility.

USA Patriot Act. In 2001, the Uniting and Strengthening America bgvitling Appropriate Tools Required to Intercepti @bstruct
Terrorism Act of 2001 (the “USA Patriot Act”) wagsed into law. The USA Patriot Act broadened tppligation of anti-money laundering
regulations to apply to additional types of finaénstitutions, such as broker-dealers, and sthemmgd the ability of the U.S. government to
detect and prosecute international money laundengthe financing of terrorism. The principal pedens of Title Il of the USA Patriot Act
require that regulated financial institutions, umtihg banks: (i) establish an anti-money laundepragram that includes training and audit
components; (i) comply with regulations regardihg verification of the identity of any person segkto open an account; (i) take
additional required precautions with non-U.S. owaedounts; and (iv) perform certain verificatiordartification of money laundering risk
for their foreign correspondent banking relatiopshiThe USA Patriot Act also expanded the conditiemder which funds in a U.S. interbank
account may be subject to forfeiture and incredéisegbenalties for violation of anti-money laundgriegulations. Failure of a financial
institution to comply with the USA Patriot Act'sqeirements could have serious legal and reputdtmmresequences for the institution. The
Bank has adopted policies, procedures and corit@ddress compliance with the requirements ofX84 Patriot Act under the existing
regulations and will continue to revise and updiEt@olicies, procedures and controls to refleanes required by the USA Patriot Act and
implementing regulations.

Other Bank Regulations. Interest and certain other charges collected otraoted for by the Bank are subject to state ukawg and
certain federal laws concerning interest rates. Béek's loan operations are subject to certainri@daws applicable to credit transactions,
such as the federal Truth-In-Lending Act, governiligrlosures of credit terms to consumer borrowtbessHome Mortgage Disclosure Act of
1975, requiring financial institutions to providdarmation to enable the public and public offisitd determine whether a financial institut
is fulfilling its obligation to help meet the hongi needs community it serves; the Equal Credit @ppay Act, prohibiting discrimination on
the basis of creed or other prohibited factorsxemrding credit; the Fair Credit Reporting Act &7B, governing the use and provision of
information to credit reporting agencies; the Fébt Collection Practices Act, concerning the mammevhich consumer debts may be
collected by collection agencies; and the rulesragdlations of the various federal agencies chthvgith the responsibility of implementing
such federal laws. The deposit operations of thekBdso are subject to the Right to Financial RiywAct, which imposes a duty to maintain
confidentiality of consumer financial records amdgeribes procedures for complying with administeasubpoenas of financial records, and
the Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulatidadted by the Federal Reserve Board to implemantét, which governs automatic
deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accountscistomers' rights and liabilities arising frdme use of automated teller machines and
other electronic banking services.

Other Regulatory Matters
Risk-retention rules. Under the final risk-retention rules, banks thairsor the securitization of asset-backed secuntiels

residential-mortgage backed securities are requiredtain 5% of any loan they sell or securiteegept for mortgages that meet low-risk
standards to be developed by regulators.
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Changesto federal preemption. The DoddFrank Act created a new independent supervisory,itbé Consumer Financial Protecti
Bureau (the “CFPB”) that is to be housed within Eegleral Reserve. The CFPB is the primary regufatdiederal consumer financial
statutes. State attorneys general are authorizedftwce new regulations issued by the CFPB. Algiostate consumer financial laws will
continue to be preempted under the National Bantk@€C determinations of such preemption are made case-by-case basis. As a result,
it is possible that state consumer financial lanscted in the future may be held to apply to owirtess activities. The cost of complying v
any such additional laws could have a negative ahpa our financial results.

Changes to regulation of bank holding companies. Under the Dodd-Frank Act, bank holding companiestibe well-capitalized and
well-managed to engage in interstate transactiortbe past, only the subsidiary banks were reduivemeet those standards. The Federal
Reserve Board’s “source of strength doctrine” has been codified, mandating that bank holding comgsasuch as the Company serve as a
source of strength for their subsidiary banks, ghelhthe bank holding company must be able toigeofinancial assistance in the event the
subsidiary bank experiences financial distress.

Mortgage Rules. During 2013, the CFPB finalized a series of rukdated to the extension of residential mortgagadaaade by
banks. Among these rules are requirements thamlarake a good faith determination that a borroweer the ability to repay a mortgage |
prior to extending such credit, a requirement teatain mortgage loans contain escrow payments appraisal requirements, and specific
rules regarding how loan originators may be comaitsand the servicing of residential mortgagedod@he implementation of these new
rules began in January 2014.

Volcker Rule. In December 2013, the Federal Reserve, the FDECOM|C, the Commission, and the Commodity Futuraslifg
Commission issued the “Prohibitions And Restricti@n Proprietary Trading And Certain InterestsAing Relationships With, Hedge Funds
And Private Equity Fundsgommonly referred to as the Volcker Rule, whichutates and restricts investments which may be rbgdmnks
The Volcker Rule was adopted to implement a portibtihe Dodd-Frank Act and new Section 13 of thalBHolding Company Act, which
prohibits any banking entity from engaging in piefary trading or from acquiring or retaining anrexship interest in, or sponsoring or
having certain relationships with, a hedge fungrorate equity fund (“covered funds”), subject &rtain exemptions.

Debit Interchange Fees

Interchange fees, or “swipe” fees, are fees thathats pay to credit card companies and cardAgduanks such as the Bank for
processing electronic payment transactions on bedialf. The maximum permissible interchange fe¢ dn issuer may receive for an
electronic debit transaction is the sum of 21 ceetstransaction and 5 basis points multipliedh®ytalue of the transaction, subject to an
upward adjustment of 1 cent if an issuer certifiedt it has implemented policies and proceduresoregbly designed to achieve the fraud-
prevention standards set forth by the Federal Reser

In addition, the legislation prohibits card issuansl networks from entering into exclusive arranget® requiring that debit card
transactions be processed on a single networklprten affiliated networks, and allows merchantsiiermine transaction routing. Due to
the Company’s size, The Federal Reserve rule hignitiebit interchange fees has not reduced our defitinterchange revenues.

Summary

The foregoing is a brief summary of certain statutales and regulations affecting the Companythadank. It is not intended to
an exhaustive discussion of all statutes and réguhaving an impact on the operations of sudhies

Increased regulation generally has resulted iresmed legal and compliance expense.
Finally, additional bills may be introduced in theture in the U.S. Congress and state legislatioredter the structure, regulation and

competitive relationships of financial institutioscannot be predicted whether and in what fony ef these proposals will be adopted or
extent to which the business of the Company an@#rnk may be affected thereby.
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Effect of Governmental Monetary and Fiscal Policies

The difference between the interest rate paid @osies and other borrowings and the interest eteived on loans and securities
comprises most of a bank’s earnings. In order tigate the interest rate risk inherent in the indyshe banking business is becoming
increasingly dependent on the generation of feesandce charge revenue.

The earnings and growth of a bank will be affedigdoth general economic conditions and the moyetad fiscal policy of the
U.S. government and its agencies, particularlyFibeeral Reserve. The Federal Reserve sets natimmatary policy such as seeking to curb
inflation and combat recession. This is accomptishgits opemarket operations in U.S. government securitiefgisaighents in the amount
reserves that financial institutions are requiechiintain and adjustments to the discount ratésoorowings and target rates for federal
funds transactions. The actions of the Federal iRese these areas influence the growth of bankdpmvestments and deposits and also
affect interest rates on loans and deposits. The@and timing of any future changes in monetajcies and their potential impact on the
Company cannot be predicted.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Making or continuing an investment in securitiegluding the Company’s Common Stock, involves dentigks that you should
carefully consider. The risks and uncertaintiesdbed below are not the only risks that may hawneagerial adverse effect on the Company.
Additional risks and uncertainties also could adebr affect the Company’s business and resultpefaiions. If any of the following risks
actually occur, our business, financial conditiomesults of operations could be affected, the mtgpkice for your securities could decline,
and you could lose all or a part of your investmé&utther, to the extent that any of the informattmntained in this Annual Report on Form
10-K constitutes forward-looking statements, tis& factors set forth below also are cautionaryestants identifying important factors that
could cause the Company’s actual results to diffaterially from those expressed in any forward-logkstatements made by or on behalf of
the Company.

We may be vulnerable to certain sectors of the emog.

A significant portion of our loan portfolio is seed by real estate. If the economy deterioratesre@aldestate values depress beyo
certain point, as happened during the recent regedbe collateral value of the portfolio and teeenue stream from those loans could come
under stress and possibly require additional loas &ccruals which would negatively impact our iegs) Our ability to dispose of foreclosed
real estate at prices above the respective cargghges could also be adversely affected, causidgianal losses.

Difficult market conditions in past years have adegely affected the industry in which we opera

The capital and credit markets are subject to Wityaaind disruption. Dramatic declines in the himgsmarket in years past caused
home prices to fall and increased foreclosuresmph@yment and under-employment. These eventseif tere to happen again, could
negatively impact the credit performance of our tg@ge loans and result in significant write-dowhagset values, including government-
sponsored entities as well as major commercialimrestment banks. Still wary about the stabilitytiod financial markets generally and the
strength of counterparties, many lenders still hadriced funding to borrowers, including to othieaficial institutions. Further market
turmoil and tightening of credit could lead to aereased level of commercial and consumer delingjgenlack of consumer confidence and
widespread reduction of business activity generéllyworsening of these conditions would have aressk effect on us and others in the
financial institution industry generally, partictliain our real estate markets, as lower home praoed increased foreclosures would result in
higher charge-offs and delinquencies.
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General economic conditions in the areas where ayerations or loans are concentrated may adversdfgct our customers’ ability to
meet their obligations.

A sudden or severe downturn in the economy in gagpaphic markets we serve in the states of Miggisd.ouisiana, or Alabama
may affect the ability of our customers to meehlpayment obligations on a timely basis. The lezainomic conditions in these areas have a
significant impact on our commercial, real estate] construction loans, the ability of borrowersdpay these loans and the value of the
collateral securing such loans. Changes resultirsglizerse economic conditions of these market a@ad negatively impact the financial
results of the Company’s banking operations, egsjiand profitability.

Additionally, adverse economic changes may caustomers to withdraw deposit balances, thereby ngusistrain on our liquidity.
We are subject to a risk of rapid and significantt@nges in market interest rates.

Our assets and liabilities are primarily monetarypature, and as a result we are subject to sigmifirisks tied to changes in interest
rates. Our ability to operate profitably is largdgpendent upon net interest income. Unexpecteedment in interest rates markedly
changing the slope of the current yield curve caadse net interest margins to decrease, subségdenteasing net interest income. In
addition, such changes could adversely affect éheation of our assets and liabilities.

At present the Company’s one-year interest ratsiteity position is slightly asset sensitive, laugradual increase in interest rates
during the next twelve months should not have ai@ant impact on net interest income during thetiod. However, as with most financial
institutions, the Company’s results of operatioresatfected by changes in interest rates and tmep@ay’s ability to manage this risk. The
difference between interest rates charged on isitex@ning assets and interest rates paid on #ttbearing liabilities may be affected by
changes in market interest rates, changes inoakitips between interest rate indices, and/or asamgthe relationships between long-term
and short-term market interest rates. A changkisdifference might result in an increase in iegtrexpense relative to interest income, or a
decrease in the Company’s interest rate spread.

Certain changes in interest rates, inflation, orehfinancial markets could affect demand for our ptacts and our ability to deliver
products efficiently.

Loan originations, and therefore loan revenuesldcbe adversely impacted by sharply rising interagts. Conversely, sharply
falling rates could increase prepayments withinloan and securities portfolio lowering interestrit@ags from those assets. An unanticipated
increase in inflation could cause operating cositsted to salaries and benefits, technology, apgl®s to increase at a faster pace than
revenues.

The fair market value of the securities portfolimahe investment income from these securitiesfalstuates depending on general
economic and market conditions. In addition, actlinvestment income and/or cash flows from itwmests that carry prepayment risk,
such as mortgage-backed and other asset-backettiescmay differ from those anticipated at thradiof investment as a result of interest
rate fluctuations.

Changes in the policies of monetary authorities aather government action could adversely affect fiability.

The results of operations of the Company are afteby credit policies of monetary authorities, jgafarly the Board of Governors
of the Federal Reserve System, which we refer tbe&ederal Reserve Board. The instruments of taonpolicy employed by the Federal
Reserve Board include open market operations in ghernment securities, changes in the discosataathe federal funds rate on bank
borrowings and changes in reserve requirementsistyaank deposits. In view of changing conditianghie national economy and in the
money markets, particularly in light of the coniimy threat of terrorist attacks, unrest in Easteunope and the current military operations in
the Middle East, we cannot predict possible futtiranges in interest rates, deposit levels, loaragdédnor the Company’s business and
earnings. Furthermore, the actions of the UnitedeStgovernment and other governments in respondidgveloping situations or the
military operations in the Middle East may resulturrency fluctuations, exchange controls, magkstuption and other adverse effects.
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Natural disasters could affect our ability to opeea

Our market areas are susceptible to natural disestieh as hurricanes and tornados. Natural disasde disrupt operations, resuli
damage to properties that may be securing ourdsaats and negatively affect the local economiagioh we operate. The Company cannot
predict whether or to what extent damage causddthye hurricanes, tornados or other natural désastill affect operations or the
economies in our market areas, but such weathet®eeuld cause a decline in loan originationsclide in the value or destruction of
properties securing the loans and an increaseeirigk of delinquencies, foreclosures or loan lssse

Greater loan losses than expected may adverselycafbur earnings.

The First, as lender, is exposed to the risk tisatlistomers will be unable to repay their loansdcordance with their terms and that
any collateral securing the payment of their loaray not be sufficient to assure repayment. Credids are inherent in the business of
making loans and could have a material adversetaffeoperating results. Credit risk with respeobtr real estate and construction loan
portfolio will relate principally to the creditwdriness of corporations and the value of the raateserving as security for the repayment of
loans. Credit risk with respect to its commerciad @onsumer loan portfolio will relate principatty the general creditworthiness of
businesses and individuals within our local markets

The First makes various assumptions and judgméaistahe collectability of its loan portfolio andgvides an allowance for
estimated loan losses based on a number of fadioesFirst believes that its current allowanceléan losses is adequate. However, if our
assumptions or judgments prove to be incorrectallogvance for loan losses may not be sufficiertdeer actual loan losses. We may ha\
increase the allowance in the future in respongkdaequest of one of our primary banking regutgttm adjust for changing conditions and
assumptions, or as a result of any deterioratiaghémuality of the loan portfolio. The actual ambaf future provisions for loan losses car
be determined at this time and may vary from theuwrts of past provisions.

The Company may need to rely on the financial matkéo provide needed capital.

The Company’s common stock is listed and tradethelNASDAQ stock market. Although the Company aptites that its capital
resources will be adequate for the foreseeabledutumeet its capital requirements, at times wg degend on the liquidity of the NASDAQ
stock market to raise equity capital. If the madsduld fail to operate, or if conditions in theital markets are adverse, the Company m:
constrained in raising capital. Should these riskserialize, the ability to further expand its a@ns through internal growth may be limit

We are subject to regulation by various Federal aBthte entities.

The Company and The First are subject to the réguakaof the Securities and Exchange Commissio&C'S, the Consumer
Financial Protection Bureau, the Federal Resenarddhe Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation th@@®CC. New regulations issued by
these agencies may adversely affect the Compabifiydo carry on its business activities. The Gmamy is subject to various Federal and
state laws and certain changes in these laws gudhtens may adversely affect operations.

The Company and The First are also subject tod¢beumting rules and regulations of the SEC andrthancial Accounting
Standards Board. Changes in accounting rules @auludrsely affect the reported financial statementgsults of operations of the Company
and may also require extraordinary efforts or aodél costs to implement. Any of these laws or tations may be modified or changed from
time to time, and we cannot be assured that sudlificetions or changes will not adversely affea thompany.
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We may engage in acquisitions of other businessesitime to time, which may not be well-received.

On occasion, the Company may engage in acquisitibother businesses. Acquisitions may result stamer and employee
turnover, thus increasing the cost of operatingi businesses. The acquired companies may aleddgal contingencies, beyond those
that the Company is aware of, that could resuliriexpected costs. Difficulty in integrating an aicgd business or company may cause the
Company not to realize expected revenue increassssavings, increases in geographic or prodesgpice, or other anticipated benefits
from any acquisition. The integration could resalhigher than expected deposit attrition (run-dffss of key employees, disruption of the
Company’s business or the business of the acqaoegany, or otherwise adversely affect the Comgaapility to maintain relationships
with customers and employees or achieve the aat@ipbenefits of the acquisition. The Company negdrto make additional investment in
equipment and personnel to manage higher assés kve loan balances as a result of any signifiaaquisition, which may adversely imp
earnings.

We are subject to industry competition which mayeaan adverse impact upon our success.

The profitability of the Company depends on itdigbto compete successfully with other financiahdces companies. We operate
in a highly competitive financial services enviroemh Certain competitors are larger and may have mesources than we do. We face
competition in our regional market areas from ott@nmercial banks, savings and loan associatioedjtainions, internet banks, finance
companies, mutual funds, insurance companies, bagkeand investment banking firms, and other fir@rniatermediaries that offer similar
services. Some of the nonbank competitors areulést to the same extensive regulations that gotrer Company or The First and may
have greater flexibility in competing for business.

Another competitive factor is that the financiahdees market, including banking services, is ugdarg rapid changes with freque
introductions of new technology-driven products aedvices. Our future success may depend, in@axur ability to use technology
competitively to provide products and services firazide convenience to customers and create additefficiencies in operations.

Future issuances of additional securities could tafsin dilution of shareholders’ ownership.

The Company may determine from time to time toesasdditional securities to raise additional capgapport growth, or to make
acquisitions. Further, the Company may issue stptions or other stock grants to retain and mogivatr employees. Such issuances of
Company securities could dilute the ownership agesy of the Company’s shareholders.

Anti-takeover laws and certain agreements and chartesisions may adversely affect share value.

Certain provisions of state and federal law anddbmpany’s articles of incorporation may make itrendifficult for someone to
acquire control of the Company. Under federal lsmbpject to certain exemptions, a person, entitgroup must notify the federal banking
agencies before acquiring 10% or more of the ondktgy voting stock of a bank holding company, idiihg the Company’s shares. Banking
agencies review the acquisition to determinewilk result in a change of control. The banking agies have 60 days to act on the notice, and
take into account several factors, including trsoueces of the acquiror and the antitrust effetth@acquisition. There also are Mississippi
statutory provisions and provisions in the Comparyticles of incorporation that may be used tayler block a takeover attempt. As a
result, these statutory provisions and provisionkhé Company’s articles of incorporation couldutes the Company being less attractive to
a potential acquiror.

Securities issued by the Company, including the G@amy's common stock, are not FDIC insured.

Securities issued by the Company, including the @aomg’'s common stock, are not savings or deposit accaurgther obligations ¢
any bank and are not insured by the FDIC, the Depwairance Fund, or any other governmental agendystrumentality, or any private
insurer, and are subject to investment risk, inicigdhe possible loss of principal.

The failure of other financial institutions could dversely affect the Company.

The Company’s ability to engage in routine fundirapsactions could be adversely affected by thermetind potential failures of

other financial institutions. Financial institut®are interrelated as a result of trading, cleaitognterparty and other relationships. As a

result, defaults by, or even rumors or concernsaiglume or more financial institutions or the fina services industry generally have led to
market-wide liquidity problems and could lead tedes or defaults by the Company or by other iniiita.
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Concern by customers over deposit insurance mayseaa decrease in deposits and changes in the mixioding sources available to the
Company.

With increased concerns about bank failures, custsimcreasingly are concerned about the extemhtoh their deposits are insur
by the FDIC. Customers may withdraw deposits irfiort to ensure that the amount they have on depith their bank is fully insured and
some may seek deposit products or other bank ssaimg investment products that are collateralibetreases in deposits and changes il
mix of funding sources may adversely affect the @any’s funding costs and net income.

Evaluation of investment securities for oth-than-temporary impairment involves subjective deténations and could materially impact
the Company’s results of operations and financiarition.

The evaluation of impairments is a quantitative gudlitative process, which is subject to risks andertainties, and is intended to
determine whether declines in the fair value oestments should be recognized in current periotirgs. The risks and uncertainties incl
changes in general economic conditions, the issfieasicial condition or future recovery prospedtss effects of changes in interest rates or
credit spreads and the expected recovery peridin&ing future cash flows involves incorporatimjarmation received from third-party
sources and making internal assumptions and judggmegarding the future performance of the undegyiollateral and assessing the
probability that an adverse change in future cishs has occurred. The determination of the amofiother-than-temporary impairments is
based upon the Company’s quarterly evaluation aadssment of known and inherent risks associatbdieé respective asset class. Such
evaluations and assessments are revised as cosditiange and new information becomes available.

Additionally, the Companyg management considers a wide range of factorg #fmgecurity issuer and uses its reasonable jedt
in evaluating the cause of the decline in the esttiah fair value of the security and in assessiagtispects for recovery. Inherent in
management’s evaluation of the security are assangpand estimates about the operations of thelissd its future earnings potential.
Impairments to the carrying value of our investmseturities may need to be taken in the futureclvhiould have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations and financial conditio

The Company may be required to pay additional insace premiums to the FDIC, which could negativelppact earnings.

Pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Act, the limit on FD&erage has been permanently increased to $25@&808ing the premiums
assessed to the Bank by the FDIC to increase. Digpgenpon any future losses that the FDIC insurdncd may suffer, there can be no
assurance that there will not be additional premitutneases in order to replenish the fund. The FDHY need to set a higher base rate
schedule or impose special assessments due te fitancial institution failures and updated fadland loss projections. Potentially higher
FDIC assessment rates than those currently projecteld have an adverse impact on the Companystsesf operations.

The Company participates in the U.S. Treasury’s TtBed Asset Relief Program.

The Company received $17,123,000 in funding unideiGommunity Development Capital Initiative (“CDIh exchange for
preferred stock and common stock warrants on Sdge&D, 2010. Participation in this program consgdéhe Company’s ability to raise
dividends and also places certain constraints eswive compensation arrangements. The increaseliniy provides assurance that the
Company can maintain its minimum regulatory capié#bs in the event the Company were to experiémitee losses. The dividend rate on
the preferred stock issued under the CDCI increfisastwo percent (2%) to nine percent (9%) in 204i8d therefore the Company may h
to repay these funds if it would like to avoid thmsreased payment. The CDCI is part of the Trati®leset Relief Program (“TARP3nd the
Company may repay the preferred stock at any tiitteowt penalty. The rules that govern the TARPudel restrictions on certain
compensation to executive officers and a numbethodrs in the Company. Among other things, thelssrimclude a prohibition on golden
parachute payments, a prohibition on providinggeoss-ups, a bonus claw-back provision, and a pitidnh on paying any bonus payment to
the Company’s most highly compensated employés plbssible that compensation restrictions impase@ARP participants could impede
our ability to attract and retain qualified exewatbfficers. Our participation in the TARP limitsroannual dividend payments to no more t
$0.15 per share. Our ability to repurchase our comstock would also be restricted in the eventwefailed to make our dividend
payments.
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The Company may fail to realize the anticipated lefits of the recent Bay Bank acquisition on the #@ipated schedule, if at all.

The Company recently completed its acquisition @BBHolding Company, Inc. and its wholly-owned sulisiy bank, Bay Bank,
previously headquartered in Mobile, Alabama disedss under the heading “BUSINESS OF THE COMPAN¥c¢céht Developments.” The
Company may face significant challenges in intéggaBay Bank operations into our operations imaety and efficient manner and in
retaining Bay Bank personnel. Achieving the antogal benefits, including revenue increases, cost@s, increases in geographic and
product presence, and other anticipated benefitissodcquisition will depend in part on whether @@mpany integrates Bay Bank’s
businesses in an efficient and effective mannee.iltegration could result in higher than expedteposit attrition (run-off), loss of key
employees, disruption of the Company’s businesh@®business of the acquired company, or otheradsersely affect the Compasyability
to maintain relationships with customers and emgdsyor achieve the anticipated benefits of theisitiqun. The Company may need to make
additional investment in equipment and personnetanage higher asset levels and loan balancesesasilbof the acquisition, which may
adversely impact earnings. The Company may nobhleta accomplish this integration process smoadhlguccessfully. In addition, the
integration of certain operations will require thedication of significant management resourcesclvimay temporarily distract
management’s attention from the day-to-day businéfse combined company. Any inability to realthe full extent of, or any of, the
anticipated financial benefits and cost savingthefacquisition, as well as any delays encounteréie integration process, could have an
adverse effect on the business and results of tipesaof the combined company, which may affectrttegket price of the Company’s
common stock.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company’s main office, which is the holding gamy headquarters, is located at 6480 U.S. Hwy 88t\v Hattiesburg,
Mississippi. The Company operates 28 full serviaaking and financial services offices and one mbtork facility as well as two loan
production offices. The Company maintains leasetherHardy Court Branch, the Gulfport Downtown Briajthe Pascagoula Branch, the
Ocean Springs Branch, the Fairhope Branch, theeg@yCorner Branch, the Theodore Branch, the Daufshé@nd Branch and the Baton
Rouge Branch as well as on the Bay Minette LPOthadslidell LPO. Management ensures that all ptogserwhether owned or leased, are
maintained in suitable condition.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time the Company and/or the Bank maypémed as defendants in various lawsuits arisingfthe normal course
business. At present, the Company is not awareyfemal proceedings that it anticipates may maligradversely affect its business.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information
The Company’s common stock trades on the NASDAG&IMarket under the ticker symbol “FBMS”.

The following table sets forth the high and lowesgprice of the Company’s common stock as repanteithe
NASDAQ Global Market. These prices do not refletail marl-ups, mark-downs or commissions.

Cash
High Low Dividends
Sale Sale Paid
2014
4" quarter $ 15.5C $ 14.2¢ $ 0.037¢
3 quarter 14.9¢ 14.2( 0.037¢
2 "dquarter 14.7¢ 14.11 0.037¢
1 Stquarter 14.8: 13.8¢ 0.037¢
2013
4™ quarter $ 16.6C $ 13.0: $ 0.037¢
3 quarter 14.9¢ 11.5¢ 0.037¢
2 "dquarter 15.4( 11.5( 0.037¢
1St quarter 12.4¢ 9.5¢ 0.037¢

There were 1,189 registered shareholders and aippaitely 374 beneficial holders of the Company’s owon stock at March 19,
2015 and 5,378,022 shares outstanding. On MarcBll%, the high and low sale prices of the Compangmmon stock as reported on the
NASDAQ Global Market was $16.38 and $16.38, respelst

The principal sources of funds to the Company togiaidends are the dividends received from ThetFFNational Banking
Association, Hattiesburg, Mississippi. Consequertlyidends are dependent upon the Bank’s earngastal needs, regulatory policies, as
well as statutory and regulatory limitations. Fed@nd state banking laws and regulations regtreeamount of dividends and loans a bank
may make to its parent company. Approval by the @amy’s regulators is required if the total of dllidends declared in any calendar year
exceed the total of its net income for that yeanlsimed with its retained net income of the precgdimo years.

Stock Performance Graph

The following performance graph and related infaioraare neither “soliciting material” nor “filedtith the SEC, nor shall such
information be incorporated by reference into auwyife filings under the Securities Act of 1933toe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each
as amended, except to the extent the Company spadlgiincorporates it by reference to such filing.

The performance graph compares the cumulativeydag-shareholder return on the Company’s commark sassuming an
investment of $100 on December 31. 2008 and timwestment of dividends thereafter, to that of themon stocks of United States
companies reported in the NASDAQ Composite-TotduRes Index and the common stocks of the NASDAQ ORBtiks Index. The
NASDAQ OMX Banks Index contains securities of NASQ-listed companies classified according to the ItiguSlassification Benchmark
as Banks. They include banks providing a broadeafdinancial services, including retail bankihgans and money transmissions.
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Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Tolal Return
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

In response to this Item, the information containagage 5 of the Company’s Annual Report to Stadehs for the year ended
December 31, 2014, is incorporated herein by rafare

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In response to this Item, the information containacgages 6 through 28 of the Company's Annual Rép&hareholders for the
year ended December 31, 2014, is incorporatedrhbyeieference

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
Not applicable.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

In response to this Item, the information containagages 30 through 76 of the Company's AnnuabRép Shareholders for the
year ended December 31, 2014 is incorporated hbyeiaference

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s principal executive officer and pifrat financial officer have concluded, based upgwgirtevaluation of the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures &eoémber 31, 2014 that the Compangisclosure controls and procedures were effec
During the quarter ended December 31, 2014, noggsahave occurred in the Company’s internal comivel financial reporting that have
materially affected or are reasonably likely to emetly affect the Company’s internal control ofieancial reporting.

The First Bancshares, Inc.
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management of the “Company is responsible for distsihg and maintaining effective internal contosler financial reporting.
Internal control over financial reporting is a pess designed to provide reasonable assurance iregy#ird reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements foeml purposes in accordance with U.S. generallggted accounting principles.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomainagement, including the principal executivecgifiand principal financial
officer, the Company conducted an evaluation ofetffiectiveness of internal control over financigorting based on the framework in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issuedh®y@ommittee of Sponsoring Organizations of thedweay Commission. Based on this
evaluation, management of the Company has conclilde@ompany maintained effective internal contradr financial reporting, as such
term is defined in Securities Exchange Act of 1&84es 12a-15(f), as of December 31, 2014.

Internal control over financial reporting cannobyide absolute assurance of achieving financiabntépy objectives because of its
inherent limitations. Internal control over finaakieporting is a process that involves human elilige and compliance and is subject to lapses
in judgment and breakdowns resulting from humalurf@s. Internal control over financial reportingiaso be circumvented by collusion or
improper management override. Because of suchdliiits, there is a risk that material misstatemaratg not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis by internal control over financial oefing. These inherent limitations, however, arewn features of the financial reporting
process. It is possible, therefore, to design tihéoprocess safeguards to reduce, though not atmithis risk.

22




This annual report does not include an attestaport of the Company’s independent registeredipatzicounting firm regarding
internal control over financial reporting. The Caang’s registered public accounting firm was notuiegd to issue an attestation report on
internal controls over financial reporting pursutmtemporary rules of the Securities and Exchabgmmission.

/s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J /s/ Dee Dee Lower
CEO and Presidel Executive VP and Chief Financial Offic
March 31, 201t March 31, 201t

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICER, AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

In response to this Item, the information containeder the captions, “Election of Directors” anddditional Information
Concerning Directors and Officers” of the Comparmrexy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Sharééd to be held on May 28, 2015, is
incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Ethics

The Company's Board of Directors has adopted a Gb#thics that applies to the Company's princgadcutive officer, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer, persons performing similar functions. A copy ast@ode of Ethics can be found at the
Company's internet website_at www.thefirstbank.carhe Company intends to disclose any amendmeiitts @pde of Ethics, and any wai
from a provision of the Code of Ethics grantedhe €Company's principal executive officer, princifi@hncial officer, principal accounting
officer, or persons performing similar functions, the Company's internet website within five bussdays following such amendment or
waiver. The information contained on or connectethe Company's internet website is not incorparatereference into this Form 10-K and
should not be considered part of this or any otbport that we file with or furnish to the SEC.

Audit Committee

The information contained under the caption “Conteeis of the Board of Directors” of the CompanysxgrStatement for the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May2Z85, is incorporated herein by reference. Thar8of Directors has determined that
there is at least one independent audit commiitem€ial expert, J. Douglas Seidenburg, servintherAudit Committee, as the terms
independent and audit committee financial expertused in pertinent NASDAQ listing standards ancu8ges and Exchange Commission
regulations.

Corporate Governance
The information contained under the caption “Aduliil Information Concerning Directors and Officeo§'the Company’s Proxy

Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholdetsettield on May 28, 2015, is incorporated hereingbgrence.
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As a TARP recipient the Company is required to hewvé&xcessive Expenditure Policy. Such a policy adpted by the Comparsy’
Board of Directors on July 23, 2009, and is postedhe Bank’s website at www.thefirstbank.com.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

In response to this Item, the information containader the caption “Compensation Discussion andyaisl of the Company's
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareéiddo be held on May 28, 2015, is incorporate@ihdvy reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

In response to this Item, the information containeder the caption “Security Ownership of CertaanBficial Owners and
Management” of the Company's Proxy Statement f@rthnual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on B&y2015, is incorporated herein
by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

In response to this Item, the information containader the caption “Certain Relationships and Reldransactions” of the
Company's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meetin§ludreholders to be held on May 28, 2015, is irm@ated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

In response to this Item, the information containader the caption “Principal Accountant Fees aaiges” of the Company’s
Proxy Statement for the Annual meeting of Sharedrsido be held on May 28, 2015, is incorporate@indrsy reference.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following exhibits are furnished (or incorp@atby reference):

Exhibit Number Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as otEM&r 2014, between The First Bancshares, IncB&#l Holding
Company, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Ext2bitof the Company’s Current Report on Form 8i&dfion March
7,2014.

3.1 Restated Avrticles of Incorporation (incorgethby reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company's€u Report on Form
8-K filed on March 21, 2013

3.2 Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2te Company's Registration Statement N-94288 on Form -1).

3.3 Articles of Amendment Containing Certificate of psations for the Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetuafd?red Stocl

Series CD (incorporated by reference to ExhibitfBetl with Form K with the Commission on October 4, 201
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4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.5

10.7

10.8

13

21

23

31

32

99.1

99.2

Provisions in the Company's Articles of Inmmation and Bylaws defining the rights of holdefshe Company's
Common Stock (incorporated by reference to ExHilditto the Company's Registration Statement N®4288 on
Form &-1).

Form of Certificate of Common Stock (incorted by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Companggi&ration
Statement No. 94288 on Form -1).

Purchase Letter Agreement dated Febru&9@ between The First Bancshares and the UnitgdsSDepartment of
the Treasury, including the Standard Terms, witipeet to the issuance of the CPP Preferred Stochrfiorated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 filed with Forn-K with the Commission on October 4, 20..

Exchange Letter Agreement dated Septemhe&@® between The First Bancshares and the USitsgs Department
of the Treasury, including the Standard Terms, wapect to the exchange of the CDCI PreferredkSincorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed with Forr-K with the Commission on October 4, 201

Employment Agreement dated May 31, 201lyéen The First, A National Banking Association &hdRay Cole, Jr.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of th@mpany's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decam3li, 2011,
filed on March 29, 2012, File No. 0-22507).

Agreement to Repurchase Stock by and ambad-irst Bancshares, Inc., Nick Welch and David
Johnson (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.e Company's Registration Statement No. 332328 on Form
S-2).

The First Bancshares, Inc. 2007 Stock Ineeiilan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit#.3he Company’s
Registration Statement No. 171996 on For-8)

The Company's 2014 Annual Rep

Subsidiaries of the Compau

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
Rule 13i-14(a)/15¢14(a) Certification:

Section 1350 Certificatior
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Date: March 31, 2015 By: /s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J

M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
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Executive Officer,

Date: March 31, 2015 By: /s/ Dee Dee Lower

Dee Dee Lowen
Executive VP and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Financial and Principal Accounting O€ig

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this reposttheen signed below by the following persons orabieth the registrant and in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.
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/sIE. Ricky Gibsor Director and Chairman of the Board March 311,20
/s/ David W. Bombo» Director March 31, 2015
/s/ Charles R. Lightse Director March 31, 2015
/s/ Fred McMurry Director March 31, 2015
/sl Gregory Mitchel Director March 31, 2015
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/s/ J. Douglas Seidenbu Director March 31, 2015
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/s/ Andrew D. Stetelma Director March 31, 2015
/s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J CEO, President and Director March 31, 2015

(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Dee Dee Lower Executive VP & Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer) March 31, 201!
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Earnings:
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losse

Noninterest incom

Noninterest expens

Net income

Net income applicable to
common stockholdel

Per common share da
Basic net income per she

Diluted net income per sha
Per share dati
Basic net income per she
Diluted net income per sha

Selected Year End Balanct

Total asset

Securities

Loans, net of allowanc
Deposits

Stockholder equity

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Dollars In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
33,39¢ $ 28,40 $ 22,19: $ 19,07¢ 16,33¢
1,41¢ 1,07¢ 1,22¢ 1,46¢ 98¢
7,80¢ 7,08: 6,32¢ 4,59¢ 3,89¢
30,73¢ 28,16¢ 22,16« 18,87( 15,84:
6,61¢ 4,63¢ 4,04¢ 2,871 2,54¢
6,251 4,21t 3,62¢ 2,52¢ 2,23
12C $ 98 % 117 $ .83 .74
1.1¢ .96 1.1€ .82 .74
127 $ 107 $ 131 $ .94 .84
1.2¢ 1.0¢€ 1.2¢ .93 .84
1,093,76! $ 940,89( $ 721,38 $ 681,41 503,04!
270,17 258,02 226,30: 221,17¢ 107,13t
700,54( 577,57 408,97( 383,41¢ 327,95t
892,77! 779,97 596,62 573,39 396,47¢
96,21¢ 85,10¢ 65,88¢ 60,42¢ 57,09¢




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Purpose

The purpose of management's discussion and an@ytsisnake the reader aware of the significantpaments, events, and chan
in the consolidated financial condition and resofteperations of the Company and The First dutiregyear ended December 31, 2014, v
compared to the years 2013 and 2012. The Compemysolidated financial statements and related refteald also be considered.

Critical Accounting Policies

In the preparation of the Company's consolidatedritial statements, certain significant amountsbaged upon judgment ¢
estimates. The most critical of these is the actiogrpolicy related to the allowance for loan lass€he allowance is based in large mee
upon management's evaluation of borrowers' atsilitte make loan payments, local and national ecom@mnditions, and other subject
factors. If any of these factors were to determratanagement would update its estimates and juttlgmehich may require additional I«
provisions.

Companies are required to perform periodic reviefvsndividual securities in their investment polifs to determine wheth
decline in the value of a security is other thamgerary. A review of other-thatemporary impairment requires companies to mak&ic
judgments regarding the materiality of the decliite effect on the financial statements and thébabdity, extent and timing of a valuati
recovery and the comparsyintent and ability to hold the security. Pursuanthese requirements, Management assesses valdaitlines t
determine the extent to which such changes aribw@tible to fundamental factors specific to theiéss such as financial condition, busir
prospects or other factors or markelated factors, such as interest rates. Declingbe fair value of securities below their costtthee
deemed to be other-than-temporary are recordedriirgys as realized losses.

Goodwill is assessed for impairment both annuatig shen events or circumstances occur that makeit likely than not th
impairment has occurred. As part of its testing, @ompany first assesses qualitative factors terohéhe whether it is more likely than
that the fair value of a reporting unit is lessrtlita carrying amount. If the Company determinesfttir value of a reporting unit is less thai
carrying amount using these qualitative factors, @ompany then compares the fair value of goodwiilh its carrying amount, and th
measures impaired loss by comparing the implied vialue of goodwill with the carrying amount of thgoodwill. No impairment we
indicated when the annual test was performed i201

Overview

The First Bancshares, Inc. (the Company) was iraratpd on June 23, 1995, and serves as a bankgaldmpany for The First,
National Banking Associatior“The First”), located in Hattiesburg, Mississippi. The First begaerations on August 5, 1996, from its n
office in the Oak Grove community, which is on twestern side of Hattiesburg. The First has 31 lonatin South Mississippi, Sot
Alabama and Louisiana. See Note C of Notes to Qmized Financial Statements for information regagdbranch acquisitions. T
Company and The First engage in a general comnhemiaretail banking business characterized bygretézed service and local decision-
making, emphasizing the banking needs of smallédiom-sized businesses, professional concerndndividuals.




The Companys primary source of revenue is interest income faed, which it earns by lending and investing tineds which ar
held on deposit. Because loans generally earn higties of interest than investments, the Compaeksto employ as much of its dep
funds as possible in the form of loans to individudusinesses, and other organizations. To emsifficient liquidity, the Company al
maintains a portion of its deposits in cash, goremt securities, deposits with other financial itnbns, and overnight loans of exc
reserves (known as “Federal Funds Sold"correspondent banks. The revenue which the Coynparns (prior to deducting its overh
expenses) is essentially a function of the amofithe Company’s loans and deposits, as well aptbft margin (“interest spreadgnd fe:
income which can be generated on these amounts.

The Company increased from approximately $940.9anilin total assets, and $780.0 million in deposit December 31, 2013
approximately $1.1 billion in total assets, and &89million in deposits at December 31, 2014. Loars of allowance for loan loss
increased from $577.6 million at December 31, 2@l &pproximately $701.0 at December 31, 2014. The@any increased from $8!
million in stockholdersequity at December 31, 2013 to approximately $96ilflon at December 31, 2014. The First reportetiineome o
$7,385,000 and $5,895,000 for the years ended Deeedi, 2014 and 2013, respectively. For the yeaded December 31, 2014 and 2
the Company reported consolidated net income aggkcto common stockholders of $6,251,000 and $4020, respectively. The followil
discussion should be read in conjunction with ti8elécted Consolidated Financial Datafid the Company's Consolidated Finat
Statements and the Notes thereto and the otherciimadata included elsewhere.

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Dollars In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Earnings;
Net interest incom $ 33,39%¢ $ 28,40 $ 22,19 $ 19,07¢ % 16,33¢
Provision for loan losse 1,41¢ 1,07¢ 1,22¢ 1,46¢ 982
Noninterest incom 7,80: 7,08: 6,32¢ 4,59¢ 3,89t
Noninterest expens 30,73¢ 28,16¢ 22,16« 18,87( 15,84:
Net income 6,61« 4,63¢ 4,04¢ 2,871 2,54¢
Net income applicable to common stockholc 6,251 4,21¢ 3,62¢ 2,52¢ 2,23:
Per common share da
Basic net income per she $ 1.2C $ 98 3 117 $ 82 % 74
Diluted net income per sha 1.1¢ .9€ 1.1€ .82 .74
Per share dati
Basic net income per she $ 127 $ 1.07 $ 131 $ 91 $ .84
Diluted net income per sha 1.2 1.0¢ 1.2¢ .93 .84
Selected Year End Balanct
Total asset $ 1,093,76i $ 940,89( $ 721,38 $ 68141 $ 503,04
Securities 270,17: 258,02 226,30: 221,17¢ 107,13¢
Loans, net of allowanc 700,54( 577,57: 408,97( 383,41¢ 327,95¢
Deposits 892,77" 779,97 596,62 573,39« 396,47¢
Stockholder’ equity 96,21¢ 85,10¢ 65,88¢ 60,42¢ 57,09¢




Results of Operations

The following is a summary of the results of opierat by The First for the years ended Decembe2@14 and 2013.

Interest incom
Interest expense
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan los
Other income
Other expens

Income tax expense

Net income

2013

(In thousands

31,31%
2,731

28,58

1,07¢

27,50¢

7,08¢
26,57¢

2,11t

5,89¢




The following reconciles the above table to the ants reflected in the consolidated financial staets of the Company at
December 31, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
(In thousands

Net interest income
Net interest income of The Fir $ 3357: % 28,58
Intercompany eliminations (176) (180)

$ 33,39¢ $ 28,40:

Net income applicable to common stockhold

Net income of The Fire $ 7,38 $ 5,89t
Net loss of the Company, excluding intercompanyaots (1,139 (1,680
$ 6,251 $ 4,21°¢

Consolidated Net Income

The Company reported consolidated net income agdglcto common stockholders of $6,250,743 for tharynded December
2014, compared to a consolidated net income ofl$40&7 for the year ended December 31, 2013. Tdrease in income was attributabli
an increase in net interest income of $5.0 millkorl7.6%, and an increase of $.7 million or 10.206ther income which were offset by
increase in other expenses of $2.6 million or 9.1%.

Consolidated Net Interest Income

The largest component of net income for the Compamet interest income, which is the differencéneen the income earned
assets and interest paid on deposits and borrowised to support such assets. Net interest incerdetermined by the rates earned ot
Company’s interest-earning assets and the rateb graiits interest-bearing liabilities, the relatimeounts of interestarning assets a
interest-bearing liabilities, and the degree ofmatch and the maturity and repricing charactegstitits interest-earning assets and interest
bearing liabilities.

Consolidated net interest income was approxima#88,398,000 for the year ended December 31, 2@&ldompared to $28,401,C
for the year ended December 31, 2013. This increase the direct result of increased loan volumesndu2014 as compared to 20
Average interesbearing liabilities for the year 2014 were $746,008 compared to $728,322,000 for the year 201D &tember 31, 201
the net interest spread, the difference betweewyidi@ on earning assets and the rates paid orestieearing liabilities, was 3.50% compa
to 3.25% at December 31, 2013. The net interesgimgwhich is net interest income divided by averagrning assets) was 3.58% for
year 2014 compared to 3.31% for the year 2013.5Rzd@l on average inter-bearing liabilities remained constant at .40% fa year 201
and for the year 2014. Interest earned on assetsnégrest accrued on liabilities is significanthfluenced by market factors, specifici
interest rates as set by Federal agencies. Avévage comprised 67.8% of average earning assetedgrear 2014 compared to 68.0% for
year 2013




Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rates . The following tables depict, for the periods iratied, certain informatic
related to the average balance sheet and averelgis gin assets and average costs of liabilitiesh Sields are derived by dividing income
expense by the average balance of the corresponds®ys or liabilities. Average balances have deered from daily averages.

Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rates

Years Ended December &

2014 2013 2012
Average Income/  Yield/ Average Income/  Yield/ Average Income/  Yield/
Balance  Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate
Assets (Dollars in thousands
Earning Asset
Loans (1)(2, $ 632,04¢ $ 30,27¢ 4.7% $583,20( $ 25,73¢ 4.41% $388,01. $ 21,41: 5.52%
Securities 271,24 5,951 2.2(% 248,23 5,41¢ 2.18% 235,83 4,78¢ 2.0%%
Federal funds sold ( 24,84t 53 .21%  18,56¢ 62 33%  19,67( 51 .2€%
Other 3,82i 85 2.22% 7,404 101 1.36% 4,84¢ 83 1.71%
Total earning asse 931,96¢ 36,37: 3.9(% 857,40 31,31¢ 3.65% 648,36( 26,33: 4.06%
Cash and due from ban 30,657 25,447 16,69¢
Premises and equipme 33,25: 30,81¢ 22,63
Other asset 40,42¢ 33,31« 32,337
Allowance for loan losses (5,989 (5,240 (4,457
Total assets $1,030,32: $941,74. $715,57.
Liabilities
Interes-bearing liabilities $ 746,028 $ 2,97 AC% $728,320 $ 2,917 A4C% $534,99¢ $ 4,130 1%
Demand deposits (: 184,03 115,90¢ 107,39:
Other liabilities 11,99( 12,43( 10,03¢
Stockholder equity 88,27( 85,08: 63,14¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $1,030,32; $941,74: $715,57:
Net interest spree 3.5(% 3.2% 3.2%
Net yield on intere-earning assel $ 33,39¢ 3.56% $ 28,40: 3.31% $ 22,19 3.42%

(1) Allloans and deposits were made to borrowersénthited States. Includes nonaccrual loans of $,$3,181, and $3,589, respectivi
during the periods presented. Loans include helddte loans

(2) Includes loan fees of $717, $525, and $430 respeyti

(3) Includes EB/~MNBB and Federal Reser— New Orleans

Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income . The following table presents the consolidatedadohmount of changes in inter

income and interest expense attributable to chaimgegslume and to changes in rate. The combinedcefih both volume and rate wh
cannot be separately identified has been allogattsplortionately to the change due to volume andtduate.

10




Analysis of Changes in Consolidated Net Interest ktbme

Year Ended December 31

Year Ended December 31

2014 versus 201

Increase (decrease) due to

2013 versus 201,

Increase (decrease) due to

Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net
(Dollars in thousands)
Earning Assets
Loans $ 2,15« $ 2,38¢ $ 4,54 $10,77« $ (6,450 $ 4,32«
Securities 50z 3€ 53¢ 27c 374 644
Federal funds sol 21 (30 9 ©)] 13 10
Other short-term investments (49) 33 (16) 3E (26) 9
Total interest income 2,62¢ 2,42°¢ 5,05¢ 11,07¢ (6,089 4,987
Interest-Bearing Liabilities
Interes-bearing transaction accout 88 (32 57 46( (74¢) (28¢)
Money market accoun 73 (70) 3 12¢ (159 (32)
Savings deposil 9 13 22 3 (20 @)
Time deposit: 59 62 121 172 (88€) (7149
Borrowed funds 1,112 (1,260 (147) 97 (277) (180)
Total interest expense 1,347 (1,286 56 85¢ (2,07 (1,220
Net interest income $ 128 $ 3,711 $ 4997 $10,22: $ (4,019 $ 6,207

Interest Sensitivity . The Company monitors and manages the pricingnaatdrity of its assets and liabilities in orderdiminish the
potential adverse impact that changes in inteegesrcould have on its net interest income. A nooinigy technique employed by the Comp
is the measurement of the Company's interest satysiigap,” which is the positive or negative dolildifference between assets and liabil
that are subject to interest rate repricing withigiven period of time. The Company also perforssedliability modeling to assess the im|
varying interest rates and balance sheet mix assomspwill have on net interest income. Interesé igensitivity can be managed by repris
assets or liabilities, selling securities availatdesale, replacing an asset or liability at maturityadjusting the interest rate during the lif
an asset or liability. Managing the amount of asseid liabilities repricing in the same time intdrkielps to hedge the risk and minimize
impact on net interest income of rising or fallimgerest rates. The Company evaluates interesttisétysrisk and then formulates guidelir
regarding asset generation and repricing, fundmgces and pricing, and dffalance sheet commitments in order to decreaseegtteat

sensitivity risk.
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The following tables illustrate the Company's cditksted interest rate sensitivity and consolidatesnulative gap position

December 31, 2012, 2013, and 2014.

Assets
Earning Assets
Loans
Securities (2
Funds sold and other
Total earning assets
Liabilities
Interes-bearing liabilities
Interes-bearing deposits
NOW accounty(1)
Money market accoun
Savings deposits (:
Time deposits
Total interes-bearing deposit
Borrowed funds (3)
Total interest-bearing liabilities
Interest-sensitivity gap per period

Cumulative gap at December 31, 2012

Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning asseBestember 31, 201

Assets
Earning Assets
Loans
Securities (2
Funds sold and other
Total earning assets
Liabilities
Interes-bearing liabilities
Interes-bearing deposits
NOW accounts (1
Money market accoun
Savings deposits (:
Time deposits
Total interes-bearing deposit
Borrowed funds (3)
Total interest-bearing liabilities
Interest-sensitivity gap per period

Cumulative gap at December 31, 2013

Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning assef@3etember 31, 201

December 31, 2012

After Three
Within Through Within Greater Than
Three Twelve One One Year or
Months Months Year Nonsensitive Total
(Dollars in thousands)
$7267C $ 78,16¢ $ 150,83t $ 262,85¢ $413,69°
11,18t 15,50¢ 26,68¢ 199,61 226,30:
1,06¢ 9,58¢ 10,65: - 10,65:
$84,91¢ $ 103,26( $188,17¢ $ 462,47, $650,65(
$ - $ 230,58 $230,58 % - $230,58t¢
47,32t - 47,32¢ - 47,32¢
- 48,15: 48,15 - 48,15:
32,62« 70,88: 103,50 57,42¢ 160,93t
79,94¢ 349,62 429,57 57,42¢ 487,00:
20,00( 1,771 21,77 15,00( 36,77:
99,94¢ 351,39 451,34 72,42¢ 523,77
$(15,030 $ (248,13) $(263,16) $  390,04. $126,87
$(15,030 $ (263,16) $(263,16) $ 126,87° $126,87
(2.9% (40.9)% (40.9)% 19.5%
December 31, 2013
After Three
Within Through Within Greater Than
Three Twelve One One Year or
Months Months Year Nonsensitive Total
(Dollars in thousands)
$ 8931+ $ 98,31 $187,62¢ $ 395,67. $583,30:
10,11 16,00¢ 26,12( 231,90: 258,02
967 14,20t 15,17 - 15,17:
$100,39* $ 128,52t $22892: $ 627,57t $856,49°
$ - $ 240,51 $24051: % - $240,51:
107,56 - 107,56 - 107,56
- 55,11 55,11 - 55,11
46,87" 87,47" 134,35( 68,637 202,98
154,43¢ 383,10: 537,541 68,637 606,17
37,00( 4,00( 41,00( 11,00¢( 52,00(
191,43¢ 387,10: 578,541 79,637 658,17
$(91,049) $ (258,57) $(349,61) $  547,93¢ $198,32(
$(91,049 $ (349,619 $(349,619 $  198,32( $198,32(

(10.6% (40.5%  (40.9% 23.2%




December 31, 201.

After Three
Within Through Within Greater Than
Three Twelve One One Year or
Months Months Year Nonsensitive Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
Earning Assets
Loans $ 99,18 $ 82,64: $181,82 $ 524,80¢ $706,63!
Securities (2 14,26¢ 14,88( 29,14¢ 241,02¢ 270,17:
Funds sold and other 38¢ 13,89¢ 14,28¢ - 14,28¢
Total earning assets $113,83! $ 111,420 $225,25( $ 765,83t $991,09:
Liabilities

Interes-bearing liabilities
Interes-bearing deposits

NOW accounts (1 $ - $ 21510 $21510 $ 86,61« $301,72:
Money market accoun 117,01¢ - 117,01¢ - 117,01¢
Savings deposits (- - 66,61" 66,61" - 66,61"
Time deposits 53,52¢ 78,58 132,11( 73,94¢  206,05¢
Total interes-bearing deposit 170,54° 360,30: 530,85( 160,56. 691,41:
Borrowed funds (3) 40,00+ 40,46 80,46¢ 8,98: 89,45(
Total interest-bearing liabilities 210,55: 400,76° 611,31 169,54! 780,86.
Interest-sensitivity gap per period $(96,710 $ (289,349 $(386,060) $ 596,29: $210,23:
Cumulative gap at December 31, 2014 $(96,710 $ (386,060 $(386,060 $ 210,23 $210,23:

Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning asset®atember 31, 201 (9.89% (38.9% (38.9% 21.2%

(1) NOW and savings accounts are subject to immediatelvawal and repricing. These deposits do not terichmediately react to chang
in interest rates and the Company believes thepesits are a stable and predictable funding sourberefore, these deposits
included in the repricing period that managemeltiebes most closely matches the periods in whidy thre likely to reprice rather tr
the period in which the funds can be withdrawn cattally.

(2) Securities include mortgage backed and other instat paying obligations based upon stated matdatgs

(3) Does not include subordinated debentures of $10080C

The Company generally would benefit from increagimayket rates of interest when it has an assasitive gap and generally fr
decreasing market rates of interest when it iglifglsensitive. The Company currently is liabilisensitive within the ongear time frame
However, the Company's gap analysis is not a praéadicator of its interest sensitivity positiorhé analysis presents only a static view o
timing of maturities and repricing opportunitiesitivaut taking into consideration that changes iteriest rates do not affect all assets
liabilities equally. For example, rates paid onudstantial portion of core deposits may changerectially within a relatively short tin
frame, but those rates are viewed by managemesigaicantly less interest-sensitive than markasdd rates such as those paid oncume-
deposits. Accordingly, management believes a ligb#lensitive-position within one year would not &g indicative of the Comparsytrue
interest sensitivity as it would be for an orgatima which depends to a greater extent on purchéseds to support earning assets.
interest income is also affected by other signiftckactors, including changes in the volume and ofixarning assets and interéstaring
liabilities.

Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has developed policies and proceduesValuating the overall quality of its credit golio and the timel

identification of potential problem loans. Managete judgment as to the adequacy of the allowancassdupon a number of assumpt

about future events which it believes to be reasiendut which may not prove to be accurate. Tthexe can be no assurance that chafége-
in future periods will not exceed the allowancel@@n losses or that additional increases in tha loss allowance will not be required.
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The Companys allowance consists of two parts. The first paudétermined in accordance with authoritative gutgaissued by ti
FASB regarding the allowanc&’he Companys determination of this part of the allowance isdzhupon quantitative and qualitative fact
A loan loss history based upon the prior three y&autilized in determining the appropriate allowe. Historical loss factors are determi
by criticized and uncriticized loans by loan tyjéese historical loss factors are applied to tlams$oby loan type to determine an indic:
allowance. The loss factors of peer groups areidered in the determination of the allowance arelumed to assist in the establishment
longterm loss history for areas in which this datangvailable and incorporated into the qualitativetdes to be considered. The histor
loss factors may also be modified based upon ajbalitative factors including but not limited tockd and national economic conditic
trends of delinquent loans, changes in lendingcediand underwriting standards, concentrationd,raanagemenrd’ knowledge of the lo:
portfolio. These factors require judgment uponhe of management and are based upon state andalatconomic reports received fr
variousinstitutions and agencies including the FederaleResBank, United States Bureau of Economic Ana)yBureau of Labor Statistir
meetings with the Company’s loan officers and loammittees, and data and guidance received ornautdrom the Compang’regulator
authorities.

The second part of the allowance is determinec@om@ance with guidance issued by the FASB reggrititpaired loanslmpairec
loans are determined based upon a review by irteyaa review and senior loan officers. Impairedris are loans for which the Bank d
not expect to receive contractual interest andforcipal by the due date. A specific allowance $signed to each loan determined tc
impaired based upon the value of the loan’s undgglgollateral. Appraisals are used by managentedétermine the value of the collateral.

The sum of the two parts constitutes manageradygst estimate of an appropriate allowance fon loases. When the estima
allowance is determined, it is presented to the gaomy’'s audit committee for review and approval aquarterly basis.

Our allowance for loan losses model is focused siabdishing a loss history within the Bank and iredyon specific impairment
determine credits that the Bank feels the ultimapayment source will be liquidation of the subjealiateral. Our model takes into accc
many other factors as well such as local and naktienonomic factors, portfolio trends, non perfarghasset, charge off, and delinque
trends as well as underwriting standards and thperence of branch management and lending statiese trends are measured in
following ways:

Local Trends: ( Updated quarterly usually the mdotlowing quarter end )
Local Unemployment Rate
Insurance Issues (Windpool Areas)
Bankruptcy Rates (Increasing/Declining)
Local Commercial R/E Vacancy Rates
Established Market/New Market
Hurricane Threat
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National Trends: Updated quarterly usually the month following qeaend )
Gross Domestic Product (GDP)
Home Sales
Consumer Price Index (CPI)
Interest Rate Environment (Increasing/Steady/Dadiin
Single Family Construction Starts
Inflation Rate
Retail Sales

Portfolio Trends: ( Updated monthly as the ALLLceculated )
Second Mortgages
Single Pay Loans
Non-Recourse Loans
Limited Guaranty Loans
Loan to Value Exceptions
Secured by Non-Owner Occupied Property
Raw Land Loans
Unsecured Loans

Measurable Bank Trends: ( Updated quarterly)
Delinquency Trends
Non-Accrual Trends
Net Charge Offs
Loan Volume Trends
Non-Performing Assets
Underwriting Standards/Lending Policies
Experience/Depth of Bank Lending
Management

Our model takes into account many local and natiesanomic factors as well as portfolio trends.cdloand national econon
trends are measured quarterly, typically in the timdollowing quarter end to facilitate the releasfeeconomic data from the report
agencies. These factors are allocated a basis$ yalure ranging from25 to +25 basis points and directly affect the ami@aserved for ea
branch. As of December 31, 2014, most economi@ators both local and national pointed to a weainemy thus most factors wi
assigned a positive basis point value. This in@@dke amount of the allowance that was indicatelistorical loss factors. Portfolio trer
are measured monthly on a per branch basis tondigiethe percentage of loans in each branch tieaB&mk has determined as having n
risk. Portfolio risk is defined as areas in thenBa loan portfolio in which there is additional risk/olved in the loan type or some other
in which the Bank has identified as having mor&.ri€ach area is tracked on bank-wide as well aa bnanchwide basis. Branches i
analyzed based on the gross percentage of contensraf the Bank as a whole. Portfolio risk igedtnined by analyzing concentration:
the areas outlined by determining the percentagmoi brancls total portfolio that is made up of the particdtzan type and then compar
that concentration to the Bank as a whole. Braneglits concentrations in these areas are graded sale from 25 basis points to + :
basis points. Second mortgages, single pay loaass|secured by raw land, unsecured loans and kEmsed by non owner occug
property are considered to be of higher risk thersé of a secured and amortizing basis. LTV exopptplace the Bank at risk in the ever
repossession or foreclosure.
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Measurable Bank Wide Trends are measured on aayjlyaobsis as well. This consists of data tracked dank wide basis in whi
we have identified areas of additional risk or tteed for additional allocation to the allowancelf@n loss. Data is updated quarterly, «
area is assigned a basis point value fr@ basis points to + 25 basis points based on feml area measures to the previous time pe
Net charge offs, loan volume trends and non perfignassets have all trended upwards therefore asarg the need for increased fu
reserved for loan losses. Underwriting standdeggling standards as well as experience/ deptlamf kending management is evaluated
per branch level.

Loans are reviewed for impairment when, in the Bardpinion, the ultimate source of repayment willthe liquidation of collater
through foreclosure or repossession. Once idedtifipdated collateral values are obtained on thlese and impairment worksheets
prepared to determine if impairment exists. Thisthnd takes into account any expected expense®deia the disposal of the subj
collateral. Specific allowances for these loares dwne on a per loan basis as each loan is revivathpairment. Updated appraisals
ordered on real estate loans and updated valuaiensrdered on non real estate loans to deteracituel market value.

At December 31, 2014, the consolidated allowancddan losses amounted to approximately $6.1 mijlior .86% of outstandil
loans or 1.01% of loans excluding those bookediatBlue due to business combination. At Decem3tie2013, the allowance for loan los
amounted to approximately $5.7 million, which wé8% of outstanding loans. The Companptovision for loan losses was $1,418,00(
the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to 0@ for the year ended December 31, 2013.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on cuiméormation and events, it is probable that trepany will be unable to colle
the scheduled payments of principal or interestrwtiee according to the contractual terms of the lagreement. Factors consideret
management in determining impairment include paynstésius, collateral value, and the probabilitycoflecting scheduled principal a
interest payments when due. Loans that experiensignificant payment delays and payment shortfgieerally are not classified
impaired. Management determines the significangeagment delays and payment shortfalls on a caseabg basis, taking into considera
all of the circumstances surrounding the loan &edobrrower, including the length of the delay, tbasons for the delay, the borrovegptiol
payment record, and the amount of the shortfalelation to the principal and interest owed. Impent is measured on a loan by loan b
Impaired loans not deemed collateral dependenaiaatyzed according to the ultimate repayment sowbether that is cash flow from 1
borrower, guarantor or some other source of repaynimpaired loans are deemed collateral deperifiémthe Banks opinion the ultima
source of repayment will be generated from theidigtion of collateral.
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The Company discontinues accrual of interest omdoahen management believes, after consideringoetsicnand busine
conditions and collection efforts, that a borrowdihancial condition is such that the collectidnnterest is doubtful. Generally, the Comp
will place a delinquent loan in nonaccrual statiemwthe loan becomes 90 days or more past dudeAtrhe a loan is placed in nonacc
status, all interest which has been accrued orotire but remains unpaid is reversed and deducted &arnings as a reduction of repo
interest income. No additional interest is accroadthe loan balance until the collection of botimgipal and interest becomes reason
certain.

The following tables illustrate the Company’s pdisé and nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2014 @il 2

December 31, 201.

(In thousands)
Past Due 30 Past Due 90 days or
89 Days  more and still accruir Nor-Accrual

Real Estat-constructior $ 42¢ $ -$ 2,747
Real Estat-mortgage 3,20¢ 20¢ 2,16¢
Real Estat-nonfarm nonresidenti: 3,40¢ 461 1,102
Commercia 29 - 5
Consumer 90 - 38

Total $ 7,167 $ 66¢ $ 6,05¢

December 31, 201.
(In thousands)
Past Due 30" Past Due 90 days or
89 Days  more and still accruir Nor-Accrual

Real Estat-constructior $ 47¢ $ - $ 212
Real Estat-mortgage 4,69¢ 145 2,452
Real Estat-nonfarm nonresidenti: 252 - 507
Commercia 12 - 9
Consumer 11E 16 -

Total $ 5,65 $ 15¢ $ 3,181

Total nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2014, areduot$6.1 million which was an increase of $2.9iom from the December 3
2013, amount of $3.2 million. Management believessé relationships were adequately reserved atnire31, 2014 Restructured loal
not reported as past due or nonaccrual at Dece&ih@014, amounted to $2.9 million.

A potential problem loan is one in which managentergt serious doubts about the borrosduture performance under the term
the loan contract. These loans are current asinoipal and interest and, accordingly, they areinoluded in nonperforming asset catego
The level of potential problem loans is one factsed in the determination of the adequacy of tlwvaihce for loan losses. At December
2014 and December 31, 2013, The First had potgntiddlem loans of $20,946,000 and $17,070,000 ectely. This represents an incre
of $3,876,000 of which $3,480,000 are acquired$danm Bay Bank.
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Consolidated Allowance For Loan Losses
(In thousands)

Years Ended December :

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Average loans outstanding $ 632,040 $ 58320( $ 388,01 $ 354,29 $ 328,95(
Loans outstanding at year end $ 706,63 $ 583,30. $ 41369 $ 387,92¢ $ 332,57
Total nonaccrual loans $ 6,05¢ $ 3,181 $ 3,401 $ 5,12t $ 4,212
Beginning balance of allowan: $ 572¢ $ 4727 $ 4511 $ 4617 $ 4,76:
Loans charged-off (1,459 (759) (1,190 (1,987) (1,370)
Total loans charged-off (1,459 (759) (1,190 (1,987) (1,370)
Total recoveries 40¢ 684 17¢€ 41% 24z
Net loans charge-off (1,057 (75) (1,012 (1,579 (1,12¢)
Acquisition = = = = =
Provision for loan losses 1,41¢ 1,07¢ 1,22¢ 1,46¢ 98:
Balance at year end $ 6,095 $ 572¢ $ 4727 $ 4511 % 4,617
Net charg-offs to average loar 17% .01% .2€% A4% .34%
Allowance as percent of total loa .8€% .98% 1.14% 1.16% 1.3%%
Nonperforming loans as a percentage of total l¢ .8€% .55% .82% 1.32% 1.27%
Allowance as a multiple of nonaccrual lot 1.cX 1.8X 1.4X .8eX 1.1X

At December 31, 2014, the components of the alleedar loan losses consisted of the following:

Allowance
(In thousands
Allocated:
Impaired loan: $ 96¢
Graded loans 5,127

$ 6,09¢

Graded loans are those loans or pools of loangrasdia grade by internal loan review.
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The following table represents the activity of tiiewance for loan losses for the years 2014 ari820
Analysis of the Allowance for Loan Losse
Years Ended December 3.

2014 201z
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of ye $ 5,72¢ $ 4,72
Chargeoffs:
Real Estat-constructior 47 (30%)
Real Estat-mortgage (1,156 (152
Real Estat-nonfarm nonresidentii ) O]
Commercial (89 (10%)
Consumer (167) (197)
Total (1,459) (759
Recoveries
Real Estat-constructior 96 13¢
Real Estat-mortgage 212 393
Real Estat-nonfarm nonresidentii 17 74
Commercial 15 18
Consumer 68 66
Total 40€ 684
Net Charg-offs (1,057 (75)
Provision for Loan Losses 1,41¢ 1,07¢
Balance at end of year $ 6,09t $ 5,72¢

The following tables represent how the allowanaddan losses is allocated to a particular loaretyp well as the percentage of the
category to total loans at December 31, 2014 ai®.20

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losse:

December 31, 2014
(Dollars in thousands)
% of loans

in each catego

Amount to total loans

Commercial Non Real Esta $ 71z 15.2%
Commercial Real Esta 3,35t 57. %
Consumer Real Esta 1,85% 24.2%
Consume 17¢ 2.€%
Unallocated = =
Total $ 6,09t 10(%

December 31, 201.
(Dollars in thousands)
% of loans
in each catego
Amouni to total loans

Commercial Non Real Esta $ 582 14.(%
Commercial Real Esta 3,38¢ 57.2%
Consumer Real Esta 1,427 25.2%
Consume 17:¢ 3.4%
Unallocated 162 -
Total $ 5,72¢ 10(%
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Noninterest Income and Expense

Noninterest Income . The Companyg primary source of noninterest income is servitarges on deposit accounts. Other sourc
noninterest income include bankcard fees, commnssim check sales, safe deposit box rent, wiresfiearfiees, official check fees and b

owned life insurance income.

Noninterest income increased $720,000 or 10.2%ndw®014 to $7,803,000 from $7,083,000 for the yeated December 31, 20
The deposit activity fees were $4,262,000 for 20trhpared to $3,979,000 for 2013. Other servicegdwdecreased by $24,000 or 1
from $2,187,000 for the year ended December 313204 $2,163,000 for the year ended December 314.20mpairment losses

investment securities were $0 for 2014 and 2013.

Noninterest expense increased from $28.2 milliontfe year ended December 31, 2013, to $30.7 milfar the year end:
December 31, 2014. The Company experienced shghéases in most expense categories. The larggetise was in salaries and emple
benefits, which increased by $2.6 million in 20l@mpared to 2013. These increases were due tirigptirte addition of the Bay Ba

branches and staff and a full year of the Baldwanbhes.

The following table sets forth the primary compatsesf noninterest expense for the periods indicated

Noninterest Expense

Years ended December 3:

(In thousands)

12,00:
1,79i
1,43¢

32¢

85
42¢
53¢

96
734
747
252
434

3,29¢

2014

Salaries and employee bene $ 17,46:
Occupancy 2,80¢
Equipment 1,721
Marketing and public relatior 44~
Data processin 161
Supplies and printin 49¢
Telephone 61€
Correspondent servic 83
Deposit and other insuran 1,04¢
Professional and consulting fe 1,61¢
Postage 30z
ATM fees 623
Other 3,35z

Total $ 30,73

22,16

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense consists of two components fif$tas the current tax expense which represdmtseixpected income tax to
paid to taxing authorities. The Company also recamdeferred tax for future income/deductible amisuesulting from differences in 1

financial statement and tax bases of assets auitities.
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Analysis of Financial Condition

Earning Assets

Loans. Loans typically provide higher yields than the othygpes of earning assets, and thus one of the @oypgoals is for loans
be the largest category of the Company's earnisgtasAt December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectiaghrage loans accounted for 67.8%
68.0% of average earning assets. Management aempbntrol and counterbalance the inherent ceaditliquidity risks associated with
higher loan yields without sacrificing asset quatit achieve its asset mix goals. Loans averag&2.$amillion during 2014, as comparec
$583.2 million during 2013, and $388.0 million chgi2012.

The following table shows the composition of thadgortfolio by category:

Composition of Loan Portfolio

December 31

2014 2013 2012
Percent Percent Percent
Amount Of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Mortgage loans held for sg $ 2,10: 0.3% $ 3,68( 0.6% $ 5,68¢ 1.4%
Commercial, financial and agricultut 106,10¢ 15.(% 81,79: 14.(% 53,23¢ 12.%
Real Estate
Mortgage-commercia 238,60: 33.&% 212,38t 36.4% 142,04¢ 34.2%
Mortgageresidentia 256,40t 36.2% 202,34: 34.7% 140,70: 34.(%
Constructior 84,93t 12.(% 67,28’ 11.5% 57,52¢ 13.9%
Consumer and other 18,48( 2.6% 15,81: 2.8% 14,60( 3.5%
Total loans 706,63! 10C% 583,30: 10C% 413,69° 10C%
Allowance for loan losses (6,099 (5,729 (4,72))
Net loans $ 700,54( $ 577,57 $ 408,97(

In the context of this discussion, a "real estatatgage loan" is defined as any loan, other thamdofor construction purpos
secured by real estate, regardless of the purpbseedoan. The Company follows the common practiédinancial institutions in tr
Companys market area of obtaining a security interesteial lestate whenever possible, in addition to aigroavailable collateral. Tt
collateral is taken to reinforce the likelihoodth& ultimate repayment of the loan and tends toeeme the magnitude of the real estate
portfolio component. Generally, the Company limits loan-tovalue ratio to 80%. Management attempts to maintigonservativ
philosophy regarding its underwriting guidelineddrelieves it will reduce the risk elements of ldan portfolio through strategies t
diversify the lending mix.

Loans held for sale consist of mortgage loans wogiggd by the Bank and sold into the secondary matk@mmitments from investc
to purchase the loans are obtained upon origination
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The following table sets forth the Company's conuiarand construction real estate loans maturingpiwispecified intervals
December 31, 2014.

Loan Maturity Schedule and Sensitivity to Changesn Interest Rates

December 31, 201.
Over One Yeal
One Year Through Over Five
Type or Less Five Years Years Total
(In thousands)

Commercial, financial and agricultut $ 47,49. $ 50,70¢ $ 791z $  106,10¢

Real estate — construction 49.93: 30,94 4,061 84,93!
$ 97,427 $ 81,64t $ 11,977 $ 191,04-

Loans maturing after one year wi

Fixed interest rate $ 72,49:.

Floating interest rates 21,12¢

The information presented in the above table iethas the contractual maturities of the individieains, including loans which m
be subject to renewal at their contractual matugnewal of such loans is subject to review arditrapproval, as well as modification
terms upon their maturity.

Investment Securities. The investment securities portfolio is a signific@omponent of the Company's total earning as3ettal
securities averaged $271.2 million in 2014, as cnexb to $248.2 million in 2013 and $235.8 million2012. This represents 29.1%, 29.
and 36.4% of the average earning assets for thes yaaled December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, résplgctAt December 31, 201
investment securities were $270.2 million and repnéed 27.3% of earning assets. The Company atelmphaintain a portfolio of hig
quality, highly liquid investments with returns cpatitive with shortterm U.S. Treasury or agency obligations. This cfboje is particularl
important as the Company focuses on growing ita lpartfolio. The Company primarily invests in satias of U.S. Government agenc
municipals, and corporate obligations with matastup to five years.

The following table summarizes the carrying valfisexurities for the dates indicated.
Securities Portfolio

December 31
2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Available-for-sale

U. S. Government agencies and Mort¢-backed Securitie $ 120,400 $ 108,14( $ 98,32¢
States and municipal subdivisic 104,58 108,07¢ 98,91(
Corporate obligation 28,78t 26,85: 16,181
Mutual finds 972 972 97(
Total available-for-sale 254,74¢ 244,05: 214,39:
Held-to-maturity
U.S. Government agenci 2,19z 2,43¢ 2,47(C
States and municipal subdivisions 6,00( 6,00( 6,00(
Total held-to-maturity 8,19: 8,43¢ 8,47(

Total

$ 262,93¢ $ 252,48¢ $ 222,86




The following table shows, at carrying value, tbbheduled maturities and average yields of secsaiitedd at December 31, 2014.

Investment Securities Maturity Distribution and Yields (1)

December 31, 201

After One But After Five But
(Dollars in thousands Within One Yea Within Five Years Within Ten Year: After Ten Years
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
Held-to-maturity:
U.S. Government agencies | $ - - % - - 0% - - $ - -
States and municipal subdivisic - - - = - = 6,00( .9%%
Total investment securities h-to-maturity $ - $ - $ - $ 6,00(
Available-for-sale:
U.S. Government agencies $ 4,367 T1% $ 19,78¢ 1.06% $ 3,217 271% $ - -
States and municipal subdivisic 10,09 2.8t% 41,67¢ 2.9%% 33,14¢ 4.05% 19,66¢ 4.81%
Corporate obligations and oth 454 1.67% 19,11¢ 2.01% 3,91¢ 1.5%% 2,18¢ 1.82%
Total investment securities availa-for-sale $ 19,004 $ 80,581 $ 40,271 $ 21,84¢

(1) Investments with a call feature are shown as ottrractual maturity dat
(2) Excludes mortga(-backed securities totaling $2.2 million with a dielf 2.63%.
(3) Excludes mortga(-backed securities totaling $93.0 million with algtief 2.34% and mutual funds of $1.0 millic

Short-Term Investments. Short-term investments, consisting of Federal FuBdkl, funds in due from banks and intereséring
deposits with banks, averaged $24.8 million in 2@¥B.6 million in 2013, and $19.7 million in 2014 December 31, 2014, and Decen
31, 2013, shorterm investments totaled $386,000 and $967,00pertiwely. These funds are a primary source ofdbmpany's liquidity ar
are generally invested in an earning capacity oovannight basis.

Deposits
Deposits. Average total deposits increased $160.0 million26:6% in 2013. Average total deposits increase@®®Lmillion, o

14.3% in 2014. At December 31, 2014, total depasige $892.8 million, compared to $780.0 millioyear earlier, an increase of $11
million, or 14.5%.
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The following table sets forth the deposits of @@mpany by category for the period indicated.
Deposits

December 31
(Dollars in thousands 2014 2013 2012
Percent Percent Percent
of of of
Amount Deposits Amount Deposits  Amount Deposits

Noninteres-bearing account $ 201,36: 22.6% $ 173,79¢ 22.2% $ 109,62: 18.4%
NOW accountt 301,72: 33.8% 240,51- 30.8% 230,58¢ 38.€%
Money market accoun 117,01¢ 13.1% 107,56« 13.8%  47,32¢ 7.%
Savings accoun 66,61" 7.5% 55,11 7.1%  48,15: 8.1%
Time deposits less than $100,( 85,36¢ 9.6% 86,36 11.1%  69,11f 11.6%
Time deposits of $100,000 or over 120,69 13.4% 116,62« 14.% 91,82 15.2%

Total deposits $892,77! 10C% $ 779,97: 10C% $ 596,62 10(%

The Company’s loan-to-deposit ratio was 78.9% atdbgber 31, 2014 and 74.3% at December 31, 2013|0Bmetodeposit rati
averaged 71.1% during 2014. Core deposits, whicfudg time deposits of $100,000 or more, providelatively stable funding source
the Company's loan portfolio and other earning tas§he Company's core deposits were $772.1 milioBecember 31, 2014 and $6¢
million at December 31, 2013. Management anticgp#tat a stable base of deposits will be the Cowlpaorimary source of funding to m
both its short-term and longrm liquidity needs in the future. The Company paschased brokered deposits from time to timeelp func
loan growth. Brokered deposits and jumbo certiisabf deposit generally carry a higher interest than traditional core deposits. Furt
brokered deposit customers typically do not hawmn lor other relationships with the Company. The gamy has adopted a policy no
permit brokered deposits to represent more than df08# of the Company’s deposits.

The maturity distribution of the Company's certifies of deposit of $100,000 or more at Decembe814, is shown in tt
following table. The Company did not have any offiree deposits of $100,000 or more.

Maturities of Certificates of Deposit
of $100,000 or More

After Three
Within Three Through After Twelve
(In thousands Months Twelve Month: Months Total
December 31, 2014 $ 36,35¢ $ 43,51¢ $ 40,82: $  120,69:

Borrowed Funds

Borrowed funds consist of advances from the Feddaahe Loan Bank of Dallas, federal funds purchamed reverse repurche
agreements. At December 31, 2014, advances fronkihd3 totaled $84.5 million compared to $47.0 noilliat December 31, 2013. 1
advances are collateralized by a blanket lien erfitst mortgage loans in the amount of the outtitemborrowings, FHLB capital stock, &
amounts on deposit with the FHLB. There were ne@fabdfunds purchased at December 31, 2014 and Dmedd, 2013.
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Reverse Repurchase Agreements consist of one $6@agreement. The agreement is secured by sesusiith a fair value «
$7,443,951 at December 31, 2014 and $6,530,592e¢m@ber 31, 2013. The maturity date of the remgiagreement is September 26, 2!
with a rate of 3.81%.

Subordinated Debentures

In 2006, the Company issued subordinated debentir$4,124,000 to The First Bancshares, Inc. Stayutrust 2 (Trust 2). Tt
Company is the sole owner of the equity of the T2uS he Trust 2 issued $4,000,000 of preferredisées to investors. The Company me
interest payments and will make principal paymemtshe debentures to the Trust 2. These paymelitbevihe source of funds used to re
the preferred securities, which are redeemableyatimne beginning in 2011 and thereafter, and nesitn2036. The Company entered into
arrangement to provide funding for expected growth.

In 2007, the Company issued subordinated debentir$§,186,000 to The First Bancshares, Inc. Stayutrust 3 (Trust 3). Tt
Company is the sole owner of the equity of the T8uS he Trust 3 issued $6,000,000 of preferredisées to investors. The Company me
interest payments and will make principal paymemdhe debentures to the Trust 3. These paymetitbanvihe source of funds used to re
the preferred securities, which are redeemableatime beginning in 2012 and thereafter, and neaitui2037. The Company entered into
arrangement to provide funding for expected growth.

Capital

Total stockholdersequity as of December 31, 2014, was $96.2 millamn,increase of $11.1 million or approximately 13,
compared with stockholders' equity of $85.1 millemof December 31, 2013.

The Federal Reserve Board and bank regulatory &gerequire bank holding companies and financititintions to maintain capi
at adequate levels based on a percentage of assbtdffbalance sheet exposures, adjusted for risk werghtging from 0% to 100%. Unc
the riskbased standard, capital is classified into twasti@rer 1 capital consists of common stockholdegsiity, excluding the unrealized g
(loss) on available-fosale securities, minus certain intangible asse&s. X capital consists of the general reserve danllosses, subject
certain limitations. An institution’s total risk-bad capital for purposes of its ribksed capital ratio consists of the sum of its Tiand Tier
capital. The risk-based regulatory minimum requieeis are 4% for Tier 1 and 8% for total risk-basayiital.

Bank holding companies and banks are also reqtuir@caintain capital at a minimum level based oaltassets, which is known
the leverage ratio. The minimum requirement forltheerage ratio is 4%. All but the highest ratestitntions are required to maintain ra
100 to 200 basis points above the minimum. The Gom@and The First exceeded their minimum regulatapital ratios as of December
2014 and 2013.
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The Federal Reserve and the Federal Deposit Inseii@arporation approved final capital rules in M 3, that substantially ame
the existing capital rules for banks. These newgukflect, in part, certain standards initialloptd by the Basel Committee on Banl
Supervision in December 2010 (which standards anem@only referred to as “Basel I1I”) as well as regments contemplated by the Dodd-
Frank Act.

Under the new capital rules, the Company will bguieed to meet certain minimum capital requiremehtt differ from currer
capital requirements. The rules implement a nevitalafatio of common equity Tier 1 capital to rigleighted assets. Common equity Ti
capital generally consists of retained earnings@rdmon stock (subject to certain adjustments) @lsag accumulated other comprehen
income (“AOCI"), except to the extent that the Canp exercises a ortane irrevocable option to exclude certain compaser AOCI as ¢
March 31, 2015. The Company will also be requieédtablish a “conservation buffegdnsisting of a common equity Tier 1 capital am
equal to 2.5% of riskveighted assets to be phased in by 2019. An itistittthat does not meet the conservation buffel beél subject t
restrictions on certain activities including payrnehdividends, stock repurchases, and discretiophanuses to executive officers.

The prompt corrective action rules are modifiednidude the common equity Tier 1 capital ratio dadncrease the Tier 1 cap
ratio requirements for the various thresholds. &@mple, the requirements for the Company to bsidered welleapitalized under the rul
will be a 5.0% leverage ratio, a 6.5% common equigr 1lcapital ratio, an 8.0% Tier 1 capital ratamd a 10.0% total capital ratio. To
adequately capitalized, those ratios are 4.0%, 46080, and 8.0%, respectively.

The rules modify the manner in which certain cdptaments are determined. The rules make chagide tmethods of calculati
the risk-weighting of certain assets, which in taffects the calculation of the riskeighted capital ratios. Higher risk weights arsigized ti
various categories of assets, including commeregll estate loans, credit facilities that finaroe acquisition, development or constructio
real property, certain exposures or credit thatHrelays past due or are nonaccrual, securitizatkmosures, and in certain cases mort
servicing rights and deferred tax assets.

The Company is required to comply with the new tdpules on January 1, 2015, with a measuremewrtafaMarch 31, 2015. Tl
conservation buffer will be phaséu-beginning in 2016, and will take full effect danuary 1, 2019. Certain calculations under thesrulill
also have phase-in periods.

Analysis of Capital

Adequatel Well The Compan The First
Capital Ratios Capitalizec  Capitalize: December 31 December 31
2014 2013 2014 2013
Leverage 4.C% 5.C% 8.4% 9.(% 8.4% 8.%
Risk-based capita
Tier 1 4.C% 6.C% 11.5% 12.5% 11.%% 12.4%
Total 8.C% 10.(% 12.2% 13.4% 12.2% 13.%%
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Ratios

2014 2013 2012

Return on assets (net income applicable to comnomkisolders divided by

average total asset .61% A% .51%
Return on equity (net income applicable to commtonldholders divided by

average equity 7.1% 5.C% 5.7%
Dividend payout ratio (dividends per share divitigchet income per

common share 12.6% 15.6% 12.%
Equity to asset ratio (average equity divided Wgrage total asset 8.€% 9.C% 8.8%

Liquidity Management

Liquidity management involves monitoring the Comyansources and uses of funds in order to meedatstoday cash flo\
requirements while maximizing profits. Liquiditymesents the ability of a company to convert assétscash or cash equivalents witr
significant loss and to raise additional funds hgréasing liabilities. Liquidity management is madere complicated because diffel
balance sheet components are subject to varyingede@f management control. For example, the tinohgiaturities of the investme
portfolio is very predictable and subject to a hitggree of control at the time investment decisamesmade; however, net deposit inflows
outflows are far less predictable and are not smlifethe same degree of control. Asset liquidityprovided by cash and assets whict
readily marketable, which can be pledged, or whigh mature in the near future. Liability liquiditis provided by access to core func
sources, principally the ability to generate custogeposits in the Company’s market area.

The Company's Federal Funds Sold position, whicludes funds in due from banks and intetessaring deposits with banks
typically its primary source of liquidity, average&k®4.8 million during the year ended December 31142and totaled $14.3 million
December 31, 2014. Also, the Company has availati@nces from the Federal Home Loan Bank. Advaaca#able are generally bas
upon the amount of qualified first mortgage loansiolr can be used for collateral. At December 311420advances available tota
approximately $228.4 million of which $84.5 millidvad been drawn, or used for letters of credit.

Management regularly reviews the liquidity positmfithe Company and has implemented internal pdigihich establish guidelir
for sources of asset-based liquidity and limit tiial amount of purchased funds used to supporbdience sheet and funding from noore
sources.

EESA also increased FDIC deposit insurance on amsiunts from $100,000 to $250,000. However, thithpassage of the Dodd-
Frank Act, this increase in the basic coveraget lias been made permanent.
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Subprime Assets
The Bank does not engage in subprime lending éieiviargeted towards borrowers in high risk catiego
Accounting Matters

Information on new accounting matters is set famtfrootnote B to the Consolidated Financial Stat@séncluded at Item 8 in tf
report. This information is incorporated hereinrbference.

Impact of Inflation

Unlike most industrial companies, the assets aatiliiies of financial institutions such as the Gmany are primarily monetary
nature. Therefore, interest rates have a morefgignt effect on the Company's performance thathdceffects of changes in the general
of inflation and change in prices. In addition girgst rates do not necessarily move in the sarmeetiin or in the same magnitude as the p
of goods and services. As discussed previously agement seeks to manage the relationships betwesest sensitive assets and liabil
in order to protect against wide interest ratetfiations, including those resulting from inflation.
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REPORT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
The First Bancshares, Inc.
Hattiesburg, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of The First Bancshares, Inc., as of iBleee 31, 2014 and 2013, and
related consolidated statements of income, compehe income (loss), changes in stockholders' ggaitd cash flows for each of the ye
in the twoyear period ended December 31, 2014. The manageshdiiie First Bancshares, Inc. is responsible tiesé financial statemer
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hsancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBlo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thetatmliobtain reasonable assurance about whethén#recial statements are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsriral control over financial reportir
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtver financial reporting as a basis for designamudit procedures that are appropria
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of esging an opinion on the effectiveness of the Comigamternal control over financ
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinién. audit includes examining, on a test basis, @@ supporting the amounts

disclosures in the financial statements. An auliib ancludes assessing the accounting principlesl @d significant estimates made
management, as well as evaluating the overall figdustatement presentation. We believe that oditayrovide a reasonable basis for
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referre@bove present fairly, in all material respedis, ¢onsolidated financial position of The F

Bancshares, Inc., as of December 31, 2014 and 20iBthe consolidated results of its operationsitndash flows for each of the year:

the two-year period ended December 31, 2014, ifocority with accounting principles generally acagghin the United States of America.
/s/ T. E. LOTT & COMPANY

Columbus, Mississippi

March 31, 2015
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ASSETS

Cash and due from ban
Interes-bearing deposits with ban
Federal funds sold

Total cash and cash equivale

THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

Held-to-maturity securities (fair value of $9,993,816 012 and $9,624,427 in 201

Available-for-sale securitie

Other securities

Total securitie:
Loans held for sal

Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $6,0956 0 2014 and $5,727,800 in 20

Interest receivabl

Premises and equipme
Cash surrender value of life insurar

Goodwill
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Deposits:

Noninteres-bearing

Interest-bearing

Total deposit:
Interest payabl
Borrowed funds

Subordinated debentur

Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Stockholder Equity:
Preferred stock, no par value, $1,000 per shauédédion, 10,000,000 shares authorized; 17,:

shares issued and outstanding in 2014 and 20 & atgely

Common stock, par value $1 per share: 10,000,08(slauthorized; 5,342,670 and 5,122,94

shares issued and outstanding in 2014 and 2043z ctvely

Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive income (It

Treasury stock, at cost
Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

2014 2013
$ 3033250 $  24,079,59
13,899,28 14,205,33
386,00 967,00(
44.,617,78 39,251,92
8,192,74. 8,438,43!
254,746,44 244,050,67
7,234,35! 5,533,85!
270,173,53 258,022,95
2,103,35. 3,679,52,
698,436,34 573,894,86
3,659,001 3,291,88
34,809,84 32,071,74
14,463, 20 6,593,40:
12,276,04 10,620,81
13,228,60 13,462,96

$ 1,093,767,71 940,890,07
$  201,362,46 173,793,89
691,413,01 606,177,14
892,775,48 779,971,03
315,84 399,97(
89,450,06 52,000,00
10,310,00 10,310,00
4,700,73; 13,100,72
997,552,13 855,781,73
17,123,00 17,102,50
5,342,67 5,122,94
44,420,14 42,086,46
27,975,04 22,508,91
1,818,36: (1,248,84)
(463,64Y) (463,64Y)
96,215,58 85,108,34

$ 1093,767,71 $  940,890,07

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetegements.
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

2014 2013
INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loa 30,276,47 25,736,16
Interest and dividends on securiti
Taxable interest and dividen 3,884,322 3,279,36'
Tax-exempt interes 2,071,78: 2,140,08
Interest on federal funds sc 52,94t 62,24«
Interest on deposits in banks 85,25 100,16¢
Total interest income 36,370,78 31,318,03
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on time deposits of $100,000 or 520,37< 698,58(
Interest on other depos 1,848,96! 1,601,02.
Interest on borrowed funds 603,46 617,65¢
Total interest expense 2,972,80 2,917,25!
Net interest incom 33,397,97 28,400,77
Provision for loan losses 1,418,26! 1,075,98.
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 31,979,71 27,324,79
OTHER INCOME
Service charges on deposit accol 4,261,79 3,979,15!
Other service charges and ft 2,162,95! 2,187,22!
Bank owned life insurance incor 369,80 152,29:
Loss on sale of other real est (85,25¢) (76,537
Other 1,094,16 841,14
Total other income 7,803,46! 7,083,29
OTHER EXPENSE
Salaries 14,207,21 12,216,09
Employee benefit 3,254,39! 2,638,55!
Occupancy 2,805,15 2,351,00!
Furniture and equipmel 1,721,117 1,568,11.
Supplies and printin 497,75! 455,44;
Professional and consulting fe 1,617,82 2,433,11.
Marketing and public relatior 445 ,45: 451,01¢
FDIC and OCC assessme 938,37¢ 766,50:
Other 5,246,25. 5,285,14
Total other expense 30,733,60 28,165,00
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

Continued: 2014 2013
Income before income tax 9,049,57! 6,243,08:!
Income taxes 2,435,87! 1,603,59.
Net income 6,613,69i 4,639,49!
Preferred dividends and stock accretion 362,95: 424,42¢

Net income applicable to common stockholders $ 6,250,74. 4,215,06
Net income per shar

Basic $ 1.27 1.07

Diluted 1.2¢F 1.0¢
Net income applicable to common stockhold

Basic $ 1.2C .98

Diluted 1.1¢ .96

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net income

Other comprehensive incorr
Unrealized gains on securitie

THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising durirgkriod
Less reclassification adjustment for gains incluthedet income

Unrealized holding losses on loans held for

Income tax benefit (expense)

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income

2014 2013
$ 6,613,690 $ 4,639,49
4,804,81: (5,676,94)
(237,17} -
4,567,64 (5,676,94)
(83,826 (55,967
(1,416,61) 1,951,03
3,067,20! (3,781,87)

$ 9,680,90. $ 857,62

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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Balance, January 1, 20

Net income 201:
Other comprehensive income (lo
Dividends on preferred stot
Cash dividend declared, $.15 per common s
Grant of restricted stoc
Compensation cost on restricted st
Preferred stock accretic
Repurchase of restricted stock for paymer
taxes
Issuance of 1,951,220 common sh

Balance, December 31, 20

Net income 201

THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
Accum-
ulated
Other
Additional Compre-
Common Preferrec Stock Paid-in Retainec hensive Treasury
Stock Stock Warrants Capital Earnings Income (Loss Stock Total
$3,133,59 $17,020,53 $ 283,73¢ $23,427,03 $19,951,17 $ 2,533,022 $ (463,64) $65,885,46
- - - - 4,639,49! - - 4,639,49!
- - - - - (3,781,87) - (3,781,87)
- . 5 - (342,46) - - (342,460
- - - - (615,78) - - (615,78)
39,91 - - (39,919 - - - -
- - - 391,77 - - - 391,77
- 81,96¢ - - (81,96¢) - - -
(1,78¢) - - (24,967) - - - (26,749
1,951,22 - - 18,048,78 (1,041,54) - - 18,958,46
$5,12294 $17,102,50 $ 283,73t $41,802,72 $22,508,91 $ (1,248,84) $ (463,64) $85,108,34
- - - - 6,613,69! - - 6,613,69!
- - - - - 3,067,20! - 3,067,20!

Other comprehensive incor
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

Accum-
ulated
Other
Additional Compre-
Common Preferrec Stock Paid-in Retainec hensive Treasury
Continued: Stock Stock Warrants Capital Earnings Income (Loss Stock Total
Dividends on preferred stor - - - - (342,46() - - (342,46()
Cash dividend declared, $.15 per common s - - - - (784,61 - - (784,61)
Grant of restricted stoc 67,62° - - (67,627 - - - -
Compensation cost on restricted st - - - 617,77¢ - - - 617,77¢
Preferred stock accretic - 20,49: - - (20,497 - - -
Repurchase of restricted stock for payment of
taxes (5,98 - - (79,55’) - - - (85,53))
Issuance of 158,083 common shares for E
Holding 158,08: - - 1,863,08 - - - 1,863,08!
Balance, December 31, 20 $5,342,67 $17,123,00 $ 283,73¢ $44,136,41 $27,97504 $ 181836 $ (463,64) $96,21558

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:

Depreciation and amortizatic
FHLB Stock dividend:
Provision for loan losse
Deferred income taxe
Restricted stock expen
Increase in cash value of life insurat
Amortization and accretion, n
Gain on sale of lan
Writedown of bank propert
Gain on sale of securitit
Loss on sale/writedown of other real es
Changes in
Loans held for sal
Interest receivabl
Other asset
Interest payabl
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of availat-for-sale securitie

Purchases of other securit

Proceeds from maturities and calls of avail-for-sale securitie
Proceeds from maturities and calls of -to-maturity securitie:
Proceeds from sales of securities avail-for-sale

Proceeds from redemption of other securi

Increase in loan

Net additions to premises and equiprr

Purchase of bank owned life insurai

Proceeds from sale of lai

Cash received in excess of cash paid for acquisitio

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase (decrease) in depo
Proceeds from borrowed fun
Repayment of borrowed fun
Dividends paid on common sto
Dividends paid on preferred sto

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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2014 2013
$ 6,613,690 $ 4,639,49
2,182,63! 1,915,39
(6,000) (4,100
1,418,26 1,075,98:
331,39 1,707,40:
617,77 391,77
(369,80 (152,29
900,91 (107,17
(110,739 :

- 193,07

(237,17 :
395,37 350,02
1,659,991 2,671,88!
(152,30) (54,600)
2,643,95 4,412,57'
(109,21 (153,06%)
(8,721,51) 1,108,98!
7,057,25: 17,995,36
(38,459,68) (83,415,97)
(3,296,801 (2,780,101
42,723,48 52,237,98
246,98 -
10,909,23 -
2,514,48! 788,20
(89,190,26) (50,100,14)
(988,73f) (746,72
(7,500,001 -
76,37t 5
4,272,73 43,150,00
(78,692,18) (40,866,75)
53,845,50 (1,971,43)
180,000,00 47,000,00
(155,653,58) (31,770,77)
(763,14 (600,45:)
(342,46() (342,46()




THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

Continued: 2014 2013
Repurchase of restricted stock for payment of ti (85,537 (26,749
Issuance of 1,951,220 common shares, net - 18,958,46.
Net cash provided by financing activities 77,000,79 31,246,59

Net increase in cash and cash equival 5,365,86: 8,375,20:

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 39,251,92 30,876,722

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 44.617,78 $ 39,251,92

Supplemental disclosure

Cash paid during the year for

Interest $ 3,056,93' $ 2,729,32.

Income taxe: 275,07" 980,49(
Non-cash activities:

Transfers of loans to other real esf 2,208,01! 2,136,68

Issuance of restricted stock gra 67,62’ 39,91:

Loans originated to facilitate the sale of I 402,98 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A- NATURE OF BUSINESS

The First Bancshares, Inc. (the Company) is a baslking company whose business is primarily conelidby its whollyewnec
subsidiary, The First, A National Banking Asso@atithe Bank). The Bank provides a full range aflbiag services in its primary marl
area of South Mississippi, South Alabama, and Lian& The Company is regulated by the Federal Redgank. Its subsidiary bank
subject to the regulation of the Office of the Cdralter of the Currency (OCC).

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company and the Bank follow accounting prirespyenerally accepted in the United States of Asadricluding, where applicab
general practices within the banking industry.

1. Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements include ttemants of the Company and its whotlyned subsidiary. All significant intercomps
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

2. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymvith accounting principles generally acceptedthe United States of Ameri
requires management to make estimates and assmsitiat affect the reported amounts of assets wfdities and disclosure
contingent assets and liabilities at the date ef fihancial statements and the reported amount®wdnues and expenses during
reporting period. Actual results could differ frahose estimates. Material estimates that are péatlg susceptible to significant char
in the near term relate to the determination ofal@vance for loan losses and the valuation oédefl tax assets.

3. Cash and Due From Banks

Included in cash and due from banks are legal vesaguirements which must be maintained on anageebasis in the form of cash .
balances due from the Federal Reserve. The rebaftaace varies depending upon the types and amotigksposits. At December <
2014, the required reserve balance on deposittivitirederal Reserve Bank was approximately $4,600,0

4, Securities
Investments in securities are accounted for asviali
Available-for-Sale Securities

Securities classified as available-&ale are those securities that are intended telokefér an indefinite period of time, but not nexasly
to maturity. Any decision to sell a security cldiesl as available-fosale would be based on various factors, includimmyements i
interest rates, liquidity needs, security risk asagents, changes in the mix of assets and ligsilitind other similar factors. Th
securities are carried at their estimated fair @alind the net unrealized gain or loss is repareeaf tax, as a component of accumul
other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholdeyaity, until realized. Premiums and discountsrapegnized in interest income us
the interest method. Gains and losses on the $ad@adlable-forsale securities are determined using the adjusist af the specif
security sold.
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Securities to be Held-to-Maturity

Securities classified as held-teaturity are those securities for which there ipoaitive intent and ability to hold to maturity. 83t
securities are carried at cost adjusted for anaditim of premiums and accretion of discounts, camghby the interest method.

Trading Account Securities

Trading account securities are those securitiestwhie held for the purpose of selling them atdifprThere were no trading acco
securities on hand at December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Other Securities

Other securities are carried at cost and are cestrin marketability. Other securities consistirofestments in the Federal Home L
Bank (FHLB), Federal Reserve Bank and First Natiddankers’ Bankshares, Inc. Management reviews for impairniested on tf
ultimate recoverability of the cost basis.

Other-than-Temporary Impairment

Management evaluates investment securities forrdklzatemporary impairment on a quarterly basis. A declin the fair value «
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securitiedow cost that is deemed other-thtamporary is charged to earnings for a declir
value deemed to be credit related and a new cass bar the security is established. The declingdlue attributed to nooredit relate
factors is recognized in other comprehensive income

5. Loans held for sale

The Bank originates fixed rate single family, resitial first mortgage loans on a presold basis. Béuek issues a rate lock commitmer
a customer and concurrently “locks iwith a secondary market investor under a best tsffdelivery mechanism. Such loans are
without the servicing retained by the Bank. Thentiof the loan are dictated by the secondary investnd are transferred within sev
weeks of the Bank initially funding the loan. Thar recognizes certain origination fees and semgtEase fees upon the sale, whict
included in other income on loans in the consolidattatements of income. Between the initial fugdifthe loans by the Bank and
subsequent purchase by the investor, the Banlesdire loans held for sale at the lower of co$aiovalue in the aggregate as determ
by the outstanding commitments from investors.

6. Loans

Loans are carried at the principal amount outstamdiet of the allowance for loan losses. Inteiresime on loans is recognized base
the principal balance outstanding and the statedafithe loan. Loan origination fees and certaiedl origination costs are deferred
recognized as an adjustment of the related lodd yi&ng the interest method.

A loan is considered impaired, in accordance witb impairment accounting guidance of Accountingn&sads Codification (AS(
Section 310-10-35Receivables, Subsequent Measurement , when--based upon current events and informaiiois-probable that tt
scheduled payments of principal and interest vatl Ine collected in accordance with the contracteiaths of the loan agreement. Fac
considered by management in determining impairrmatide payment status, collateral values, angtbbability of collecting schedul:
payments of principal and interest when due. Gdlgermpairment is measured on a loan by loan basi®g the fair value of tl
supporting collateral.
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Loans are generally placed on a nonaccrual states wrincipal or interest is past due ninety daywlwen specifically determined to
impaired. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual statterest accrued but not received is generalensed against interest income
collectibility is in doubt, cash receipts on nomat loans are used to reduce principal rather tieaorded in interest income. Past
status is determined based upon contractual terms.

7. Allowance for Loan Losse

For financial reporting purposes, the provisionlfian losses charged to operations is based upoageaent's estimation of the amc
necessary to maintain the allowance at an adedgsde Allowances for any impaired loans are geliedetermined based on collate
values. Loans are charged against the allowandedarlosses when management believes the coilégtilif the principal is unlikely.

Management evaluates the adequacy of the allowfandgan losses on a regular basis. These evahstice based upon a periodic re\
of the collectibility considering historical expenice, the nature and value of the loan portfolimeulying collateral values, internal ¢
independent loan reviews, and prevailing econoroieditions. In addition, the OCC, as a part of tegutatory examination proce
reviews the loan portfolio and the allowance farldosses and may require changes in the allowaaesd upon information available
the time of the examination. The allowance congiétsvo components: allocated and unallocated. ddreponents represent an estime
performed pursuant to either ASC Topic 48antingencies , or ASC Subtopic 310-1(Receivables . The allocated component of
allowance reflects expected losses resulting fronarmalysis developed through specific credit aliocs for individual loans, includir
any impaired loans, and historical loan loss hist@he analysis is performed quarterly and lostofacare updated regularly.

The unallocated portion of the allowance reflecemagemens$ estimate of probable inherent but undetecteefoadthin the portfolio dt
to uncertainties in economic conditions, changesoifateral values, unfavorable information aboutoarowers financial condition, ar
other risk factors that have not yet manifestednedves. In addition, the unallocated allowancduihes a component that explic
accounts for the inherent imprecision in the lazsslanalysis.

8. Premises and Equipmer

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, leasnatated depreciation. The depreciation policyoiptovide for depreciation over f
estimated useful lives of the assets using thégbtrine method. Repairs and maintenance expenditueesharged to operating expen
major expenditures for renewals and bettermentsap#alized and depreciated over their estimatsdull lives. Upon retirement, sale
other disposition of property and equipment, thet@nd accumulated depreciation are eliminated fiteenaccounts, and any gains
losses are included in operations.

9. Other Real Estatt

Other real estate, carried in other assets in ¢tinealidated balance sheets, consists of propextigsired through foreclosure and, as
for sale property, is recorded at the lower ofdgbestanding loan balance or current appraisaldsmated costs to sell. Any writlwn tc
fair value required at the time of foreclosurehisuged to the allowance for loan losses. Subseqans or losses on other real estat
reported in other operating income or expensesDédember 31, 2014 and 2013, other real estatectbt®d,654,604 and $4,470,2
respectively.

40




10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill totaled $12,276,040 and $10,620,814 ferythars ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, resplgctiv

Goodwill totaling $1,655,225 acquired during theryended December 31, 2014, was a result of theisitgn of Bay Bank. Footnote
to these consolidated financial statements prowadietitional information on the acquisition durin@12.

The Company performed the required annual impaitrrests of goodwill as of December 1, 2014. The Gany’s annual impairment te
did not indicate impairment as of the testing dated subsequent to that date, management is natafiaany events or changes
circumstances since the impairment test that wimditate that goodwill might be impaired.

The Companys acquisition method recognized intangible asseltéch are subject to amortization, and includediher assets in t
accompanying consolidated balance sheets, inclogedeposit intangibles, amortized on a stralgig-basis, over a 10 year average
The definite-lived intangible assets had the folluywcarrying values at December 31, 2014 and 2013.

2014 2013
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying  Accumulate: Carrying Carrying  Accumulate: Carrying
Amount Amortizatior Amount Amount Amortizatior Amount
(Dollars in thousands
Core deposit intangibles $ 4,000 $ (1,486 $ 2514 $ 3,778 (1,09¢) $ 2,67

During 2014, the Company recorded $225,000 in deposit intangible assets related to the deposifsiged in the Bay Bank acquisitic
The related amortization expense of business catibmrelated intangible assets is as follows:

(dollars in thousand:

Amount
Aggregate amortization expense for the year endszbidber 31
2013 $ 35&
2014 387
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Estimated amortization expense for the year enbiecember 31

2015 $ 40C
2016 382
2017 331
2018 331
2019 331
Thereafter 73€
$ 2,51¢

11. Other Assets and Cash Surrender Val

Financing costs related to the issuance of junidosdinated debentures are being amortized ovelifth®f the instruments and ¢
included in other assets. The Company invests ik loavned life insurance (BOLI). BOLI involves tharphasing of life insurance by
Company on a chosen group of employees. The Comigatine owner of the policies and, accordingly, tiash surrender value of
policies is reported as an asset, and increasessimsurrender values are reported as income.

12. Stock Options

The Company accounts for stock based compensatioacctordance with ASC Topic 71&ompensation - Stock Compensation .
Compensation cost is recognized for all stock oytigranted based on the weighted average fair séhas price at the grant date.

13. Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects efttAnsactions reported in the financial statemantsconsist of taxes currently pay:
plus deferred taxes related primarily to differenbetween the bases of assets and liabilities asured by income tax laws and tl
bases as reported in the financial statements. ddferred tax assets and liabilities represent tliaré tax consequences of th
differences, which will either be taxable or dedhietwhen the assets and liabilities are recovereskttled.

The Company and its subsidiary file consolidatexbme tax returns. The subsidiary provides for inedaxes on a separate return t
and remits to the Company amounts determined fmaipable.

ASC Topic 740]ncome Taxes, provides guidance on financial statement recogmigind measurement of tax positions taken, or egg
to be taken, in tax returns. ASC Topic 740 requane®valuation of tax positions to determine if téve positions will more likely than n
be sustainable upon examination by the approptéadeg authority. The Company at December 31, 2&id 2013, had no uncertain
positions that qualify for either recognition osdiosure in the financial statements.

14. Advertising Cost:

Advertising costs are expensed in the period irctvithey are incurred. Advertising expense for teary ended December 31, 2014
2013, was $394,363 and $419,873, respectively.

42




15. Statements of Cash Flow

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and eqalvalents include cash, amounts due from banterestbearing deposits with bar
and federal funds sold. Generally, federal funéssatd for a one to seven day period.

16. Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instrument

In the ordinary course of business, the subsiduamk enters into offhalance sheet financial instruments consistingoofirmitments t
extend credit, credit card lines and standby Iettércredit. Such financial instruments are recdritethe financial statements when t
are exercised.

17.  Earnings Applicable to Common Stockholde

Per share amounts are presented in accordancéA®EhTopic 260 Earnings Per Share. Under ASC Topic 260, two per share amo
are considered and presented, if applicable. Bamicshare data is calculated based on the weightedge number of common shi
outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted pkare data includes any dilution from potent@anmon stock, such as outstanc
stock options .

The following table discloses the reconciliationtbé numerators and denominators of the basic datkdl computations applicable
common stockholders:

For the Year Ende For the Year Ende
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Net Net
Income Shares Per Share Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator Amount (Numerator) (Denominatot Amount
Basic per common Share $ 6,250,74. 5,227,761 $ 1.2 $ 4,215,06 4,319,48 $ o€
Effect of dilutive shares
Restricted Stock 42 ,90: 53,44t
$ 6,250,74 5,270,66' $ 1.1¢ $ 4,215,06 437293 $ .9¢€

The diluted per share amounts were computed byimgpthe treasury stock method.
18. Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the3 Zbfancial statements to conform with the cldgstions used in 2014. The

reclassifications did not impact the Company's otidated financial condition or results of operato
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19. Accounting Pronouncement

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-8%edtments—Equity Method and Joint Ventures (T@#8), “Accounting fo
Investments in Qualified Affordable Housing Progtivhich permits reporting entities to make an acciognpolicy election to accou
for their investments in qualified affordable howgiprojects using the proportional amortization hoelt if certain conditions are m
Under the proportional amortization method, antgraimortizes the initial cost of the investmenpnoportion to the tax credits and ot
tax benefits received and recognizes the net imast performance in the income statement as a coempaof income tax exper
(benefit). For those investments in qualified adfsle housing projects not accounted for usingptieportional method, the investm
should be accounted for as an equity method imvastior a cost method investment. The decision plyaihe proportional amortizatis
method of accounting is an accounting policy decisihat should be applied consistently to all dymlg affordable housing proje
investments rather than a decision to be applieddiwidual investments. This amendment should fyglied retrospectively to all peric
presented. A reporting entity that uses the effecyiield method to account for its investments iraldied affordable housing proje
before the date of adoption may continue to appdydffective yield method for those preexistingeisiinents. ASU 20181 is effectiv
for fiscal years beginning on or after December2(84, and interim periods within those annualqusi The Company is evaluating
possible effects of this guidance on its finanstatements.

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-04, Rabdés — Troubled Debt Restructurings by Credit(Bsibtopic 31040),
“Reclassification of Residential Real Estate Celtalized Consumer Mortgage Loans Upon Forecloswihi¢h will eliminate diversity i
practice regarding the timing of derecognition fesidential mortgage loans when a creditor is a®rsd to have received phys
possession of residential real estate propertyaohlizing a consumer mortgage loan. Under ASU4ZBY, physical possession
residential real estate property is achieved wligrethe creditor obtains legal title to the resital real estate property upon comple
of a foreclosure or the borrower conveys all inderim the residential real estate property throegmpletion of a deed in lieu
foreclosure in order to satisfy the loan. Once platgpossession has been achieved, the loan is@mized and the property recor
within other assets at the lower of cost or faiuegless estimated costs to sell). In additior,dhidance requires both interim and an
disclosure of both the amount of foreclosed redidereal estate property held by the creditor #ml recorded investment in consu
mortgage loans collateralized by residential reslate property that are in the process of forecksThe additional disclost
requirements are effective for annual reportinggqukr beginning on or after December 15, 2014, atefim periods within those ann
periods with retrospective disclosure necessaralfatomparative periods presented. The adoptidthisfstandard will result in additior
disclosures but is not expected to have any impathe Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2009; Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topig) 6&hich supersedes nearly all exis
revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP. Tdre principle of the ASU is to recognize revenudéemwpromised goods or servi
are transferred to customers in an amount thaawsfthe consideration to which an entity expextsetentitled for those goods or servi
The ASU defines a five step process to achievedtis principle and, in doing so, more judgment astimates may be required wit
the revenue recognition process than are requinettruexisting U.S. GAAP. The new accounting guiganghich does not apply
financial instruments, is effective on a retrospecbasis beginning on January 1, 2017, and ealbption is prohibited. The Compe
does not expect the new guidance to have a maipalct on its consolidated financial position esults of operation.
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In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-11, Trasséeid Servicing (Topic 860), “Repurchasevtaturity Transactions, Repurchi
Financings, and Disclosures.” The FASB issued ABW4211 to change the accounting for repurchasedturity transactions and link
repurchase financials to secured borrowing accogntivhich is consistent with the accounting forestmepurchase agreements.
amendments also require two new disclosures. Thedisclosure requires an entity to disclose imf@ion on transfers accounted fo
sales in transactions that are economically sindlalepurchase agreements. The second disclosoveles increased transparency al
the types of collateral pledged in repurchase agesés and similar transactions accounted for asreddorrowings. The new guidanc
effective beginning on January 1, 2015. The Compmn®s not expect this guidance to have a matenighct on its consolidated financ
position.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12, Goraation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718), “Accountior ShareBasel
Payments When the Terms of an Award Provide THa¢rdormance Target Could Be Achieved after the RitguService Period.The
new guidance requires that a performance targeaffects vesting and that could be achieved dlfterequisite service period be tre:
as a performance condition. ASU 2012-is effective for annual and interim periods begig after December 15, 2015, with e
adoption permitted. The Company's current accogrtti@atment of performance conditions for employehkse are or become retirem
eligible prior to the achievement of the performatarget is consistent with ASU 2012; and as such does not expect the new gui
to have a material effect on the Companyonsolidated financial condition and results permations. The Company expects
prospectively adopt ASU 2014-12 in the first qua@l15.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-14, TreddDebt Restructurings by Creditors (Subtopic 3@D-4Classification of Certa
Government-Guaranteed Mortgage Loans upon Foraeldsuhich will eliminate diversity in practice relating how creditors classi
governmenguaranteed mortgage loans, including Federal Hgusidministration (FHA) or the Department of Vetesafffairs (VA)
guaranteed loans, upon foreclosure. Under ASU 2@1ld-mortgage must be derecognized and a sepdnatereceivable recognized ug
foreclosure when the loan possesses asaparable government guarantee that the crediwobbih the intent and ability to exercise
for which any amount of the claim determined onlilasis of the fair value of the real estate isdix®ther receivables recognized ur
this guidance are to be measured based on the awioiine principal and interest expected to be veoed from the guarantor. ASU 2014-
14 allows for a modified retrospective or prospextadoption in conjunction with ASU 20D4 and is effective for annual report
periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, iaterim periods within those annual periods watrly adoption permitted. T
Company is currently evaluating which method wdl bmployed and the final impact of the Standardydwer, ASU 2014t4 is no
expected to have a material impact on the Comparoyisolidated financial statements.

In January 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-01, Ire@tatement — Extraordinary and Unusual Items (Rubt225-20), Simplifying
Income Statement Presentation by Eliminating theo8pt of Extraordinary ltemsPresentation and disclosure requirement for itdral
are unusual in nature or infrequently occurring W retained. ASU 20161 is effective for fiscal years, and interim pesawithin thos
fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 201% ghidance may be applied prospectively or onr@spective basis. Early adoptior
permitted. Entities that elect prospective appioatwill be required, at transition, to disclosettbdhe nature and amount of an i
included in income from continuing operations afidoption that relates to an adjustment of an peaviously separately classified :
presented as an extraordinary item before adopifiapplicable. The Company does not currently repay extraordinary items on
income statement; therefore adoption of this guidawill not have a material impact on its consdhdifinancial statements.
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NOTE C— BUSINESS COMBINATION

The Company accounts for its acquisitions usingabguisition method. Acquisition accounting regsithe total purchase price to
allocated to the estimated fair values of asseisisad and liabilities assumed, including certaitangible assets that must be recogn
Typically, this allocation results in the purchas&e exceeding the fair value of net assets aeduivhich is recorded as goodwill. C
deposit intangibles are a measure of the valuehetking, money market and savings deposits acquireusiness combinatio
accounted for under the acquisition method. Coposi¢ intangibles and other identified intangibkesh finite useful lives are amortiz
using the straighline method over their estimated useful lives oftagen years. Loans that the Company acquire®mmection witl
acquisitions are recorded at fair value with norymarer of the related allowance for credit lossEair value of the loans involv
estimating the amount and timing of principal angtiest cash flows expected to be collected oifotres and discounting those cash fl
at a market rate of interest. The excess or deficitash flows expected at acquisition over théveded fair value is referred to as
accretable discount or amortizable premium anddsgnized into interest income over the remainifiegof the loan.

First National Bank of Baldwin County

On April 30, 2013, the Company completed the adtijois of all of the outstanding shares of First idatl Bank of Baldwin County,
wholly-owned subsidiary of First Baldwin Bancshares, Imn, Alabama corporation, which included five (5ariches and (1) lo
production office located on the Alabama Gulf CaasBaldwin County, Alabama.

In connection with the acquisition, the Companyorded $1.3 million of goodwill and $.7 million obre deposit intangible. The ci
deposit intangible will be expensed over 10 yedhe Company acquired the $124.2 million loan pdidfat a fair value discount of §
million which included a credit mark of $.9 millioffhe discount represents expected credit lossiasstenents to market interest rates
liquidity adjustments.

The amounts of the acquired identifiable assetdiabdities as of the acquisition date were a$ofek (dollars in thousands):

Purchase price

Cash $ 3,30(
Total purchase pric 3,30(
Identifiable asset:
Cash and due from ban 46,45(
Investment 2,50¢
Loans and leas¢ 124,16!
Other Real Estal 87
Core deposit intangibl 68C
Personal and real prope! 10,65¢
Deferred tax assi 2,96¢
Other assets 1,03¢
Total asset 188,54t
Liabilities and equity
Deposits 185,77:
Other liabilities 73€
Total liabilities 186,50
Net assets acquire $ 2,041
Goodwill resulting from acquisition $ 1,25¢
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The outstanding principal balance and the carrgimgunt of these loans included in the consolidatddnce sheet at December 31, 2014, are
as follows (dollars in thousands):

Outstanding principal balan: $ 87,45
Carrying amoun 87,24!

All loans obtained in the acquisition reflect nesific evidence of credit deterioration and very lprobability that the Company would
unable to collect all contractually required priyadiand interest payments.

Expenses associated with the acquisition were $80ahd $1,439,000 for the three and twelve monttoge ended December 31, 2C
respectively. These costs included system convesiml integrating operations charges as well aal l@gd consulting expenses, wt
have been expensed as incurred.

BCB Holding Company., Inc.

On March 3, 2014, the Company entered into an Ages¢ and Plan of Merger (the “Agreement/ith BCB Holding Company, Inc., i
Alabama corporation (“BCB”and parent of Bay Bank, Mobile, Alabama. The Agreetprovides that, upon the terms and subjectd
conditions set forth in the Agreement, BCB will merwith and into the Company (the “Mergedhd Bay Bank will merge with and ir
The First, A National Banking Association (“Bank Mer”). Subject to the terms and conditions of the Agreamehich has bee
approved by the Boards of Directors of the Compamy BCB, each outstanding share of BCB common stutbler than shares held by
Company or BCB, or, shares with respect to whiehttblders thereof have perfected dissentéghts, will receive (i) for the BCB comm
stock that was outstanding prior to August 1, 2@&3360 per share which may be received in cashedCompany common stock provit
that at least 30% of the aggregate considerationh fgasuch shareholders is in the Company commooksand one notransferabl
contingent value right (“CVR"pf the CVR Consideration, and (ii) for the BCB coomstock that was issued on August 1, 2013, $2¢%
share in cash. Each CVR is eligible to receivesh gamyment equal to up to $0.40, with the exactuarnbased on the resolution of cer
identified BCB loans over a thrgear period following the closing of the transacti®ayout of the CVR will be overseen by a sp
committee of the Comparg’Board of Directors. The Company redeemed indutiote payable by BCB to Alostar Bank, as wellte
preferred stock issued under the U.S. TreasuGapital Purchase Program. The total consideratiobe paid in connection with t
acquisition will range between approximately $6.#iom and $6.6 million depending upon the payofittee CVR, as well as the price
the Company common stock on the closing of thesaation, which is subject to a cap and a collaardigg its price. An estimated liabil
of $174,000 has been accrued for the CVR and teflea the financials at December 31, 2014.
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As of the closing on July 1, 2014, the Company BB entered into an agreement and plan of mergesupnt to which BCB'’s wholly-
owned subsidiary, Bay Bank, was merged with andltine Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, the Bank.

In connection with the acquisition, the Companyorded $1.7 million of goodwill and $.2 million obre deposit intangible. The ci
deposit intangible will be expensed over 10 years.

The Company acquired the $40.1 million loan portfat a fair value discount of $1.7 million. Thesclbunt represents expected ci
losses, adjusted to market interest rates andityuadjustments.

The amounts of the acquired identifiable assetdiabdities as of the acquisition date were asofeb
(dollars in thousands):

Purchase price

Cash and fair value of common stock $ 6,30(
Total purchase pric 6,30(
Identifiable assets
Cash and due from ban 8,301
Investment: 23,42
Loans and lease 38,39:
Other Real Estal 571
Core deposit intangibl 22t
Personal and real prope! 3,67(
Deferred tax assi 2,50z
Other assets 30E
Total asset 77,39¢
Liabilities and equity
Deposits 59,32:
Borrowed funds 13,10¢
Other liabilities 32€
Total liabilities 72,75
Net assets acquire 4,64°
Gooduwill resulting from acquisitio $ 1,65¢

The outstanding principal balance and the carrgimgunt of these loans included in the consolidatddnce sheet at December 31, 2014, are
as follows (dollars in thousands):

Outstanding principal balan: $ 36,67
Carrying amoun 35,14¢

Loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality @etailed in Note E — Loans.
The amount of the revenue and earnings includéderCompanys consolidated income statement for the year ebamémber 31, 201

reflect only amounts from the acquisition datewdf 1, 2014, through December 31, 2014.
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The following pro forma financial information prege the combined results of operations as if thypisition had been effective Januar
2013. These results include the impact of amogiziertain purchase accounting adjustments suclaragble assets, compensa
expenses and the impact of the acquisition on iectam expense. There were no material nonrecuptogforma adjustments direc
attributable to the acquisition included within #olowing pro forma financial information. The pforma financial information does r
necessarily reflect the results of operations thaitld have occurred had the combination constitatesingle entity during such perio
Growth opportunities are expected to be achievagiious amounts at various times during the ysabsequent to the acquisition and

ratably over, or at the beginning or end of suatiggis. No adjustments have been reflected in theviing pro forma financial informatic
for anticipated growth opportunities.

Year Ended December 2

(In thousands) 2014 2013
(Unaudited]

Interest incom: $ 37,57 $ 33,72(

Net income 7,177 5,76t

Expenses associated with the acquisition were $P9%Mhd $508,000 for the three and twelve monthogsrended December 31, 2(
respectively. These costs included system convesiml integrating operations charges as well aal l@gd consulting expenses, wt
have been expensed as incurred.

NOTE D- SECURITIES

A summary of the amortized cost and estimatedvalne of available-for-sale securities and heldriturity securities at December
2014 and 2013, follows:

December 31, 201

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale securities:

Obligations of U.S. Government agenc $ 27,225,33 % 199,85, $ 53,55( % 27,371,63
Tax-exempt and taxable obligations of states an

municipal subdivision 101,873,36 2,896,65 187,59¢ 104,582,42
Mortgagebacked securitie 91,697,19 1,579,211 240,80! 93,035,61
Corporate obligation 29,952,50 140,55¢ 1,307,78. 28,785,27
Other 1,255,48, - 283,98: 971,50:.

$ 252,00388 $ 4,816,28. $ 2,073,711 $  254,746,44

Held-to-maturity securities:

Mortgagebacked securitie $ 2,192,74. $ 20,87t % - $ 2,213,61l

Taxable obligations of states and municipal
subdivisions 6,000,00! 1,780,20I - 7,780,201
$ 8,192,74. $ 1,801,07" $ - $ 9,993,81!
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December 31, 201

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale securities:
Obligations of U.S. Government agenc $ 29,963,63 $ 122,76: $ 124,49. $ 29,961,90
Tax-exempt and taxable obligations of states an
municipal subdivision 107,676,08 1,937,58I 1,535,033 108,078,63
Mortgage-backed securitie 78,770,40 810,37( 1,394,06 78,186,70
Corporate obligation 28,210,14 223,77t 1,582,00: 26,851,92
Other 1,255,48. - 283,98 971,50:
$ 24587575 $ 3,094,491 $ 4,919,57" $  244,050,67
Held-to-maturity securities:
Mortgagebacked securitie $ 2,438,43! $ - $ 74,00¢ $ 2,364,42
Taxable obligations of states and municipal
subdivisions 6,000,00! 1,260,001 - 7,260,001
$ 8,438,43! $ 1,260,000 $ 74,006 $ 9,624,42

The scheduled maturities of securities at DecerBbeP014, were as follows:

Available-for-Sale

Held-to-Maturity

Estimated Estimated
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Due less than one ye $ 18,914,37 $ 19,004,31 $ - $ =
Due after one year through five ye. 79,825,86 80,580,53 - -
Due after five years through ten ye 39,340,58 40,277,18 - -
Due after ten yeal 22,225,85 21,848,80 6,000,00! 7,780,20!
Mortgage-backed securities 91,697,20 93,035,61 2,192,74. 2,213,61!
$ 25200387 $ 254,746,44 $ 8,192,74. $ 9,993,81

Actual maturities can differ from contractual méties because the obligations may be called orgidepith or without penalties.

$237,173 in gain was realized from the sale of lakte-for-sale securities in 2014 and no gain aslm 2013. No other-thaemporar
impairment losses were recognized for the years@2814 and 2013.

Securities with a carrying value of $191,534,036 197,611,193 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, ctesply, were pledged to seci
public deposits, repurchase agreements, and fer ptirposes as required or permitted by law.

The details concerning securities classified adaa-for-sale with unrealized losses as of Decendi, 2014 and 2013, were as follows:
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2014

Losses < 12 Month Losses 12 Months or Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Obligations of U.S. government
agencies $ 5,510,320 $ 16,48. $ 3,451,21 $ 37,06¢ $ 8,961,654 $ 53,55(
Tax-exempt and tax- able obligatiol
of states and municipal subdivisic 9,191,72 28,69¢ 10,667,12 158,90« 19,858,84 187,59¢
Mortgagebacked securitie 156,58 5,207 19,319,26 235,59¢ 19,475,85 240,80!
Corporate obligation 6,910,42! 32,09¢ 6,580,92! 1,275,68! 13,491,35 1,307,78:
Other - 971,50: 283,98 971,50: 283,98:

$ 21,769,06 $ 82,47¢ $ 40,990,03 $ 1,991,23 $ 62,759,09 $ 2,073,71

2013
Losses < 12 Month Losses 12 Months or Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Obligations of U.S. government
agencies $ 6,898,994 $ 124,49. $ - $ - $ 6,89894 $ 124,49:
Tax-exempt and tax- able obligatiol
of states and municipal subdivisic  37,725,91 1,523,78 1,297,79; 11,25¢ 39,023,70 1,535,03
Mortgagebacked securitie 39,540,66 1,394,06 - - 39,540,66 1,394,06
Corporate obligation 10,814,40 174,21( 3,386,22! 1,407,79. 14,200,63 1,582,00.
Other - 971,50: 283,98 971,50 283,98(

$ 9497992 $ 3,21654 $ 5655521 $ 1,703,02 $100,63544 $ 4,919,57

Approximately 22% of the number of securities ie thvestment portfolio at December 31, 2014, rédlé@n unrealized loss. Managen
is of the opinion the Company has the ability tddhthese securities until such time as the valwovers or the securities matt
Management also believes the deterioration in vauattributable to changes in market interestsrated lack of liquidity in the cre:
markets. We have determined that these securigesa other-than-temporarily impaired based upticigated cash flows.

NOTE E - LOANS
Loans typically provide higher yields than the ottyges of earning assets, and thus one of the @oygpgoals is for loans to be the lar
category of the Company's earning assets. At Deeerdb, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectiveinsiaccounted for 71.3% ¢

68.1% of earning assets. The Company controls atidates the inherent credit and liquidity risksahgh the composition of its lo
portfolio.
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The following table shows the composition of thadgortfolio by category:

December 31, 20: December 31, 20:
Percent of Percent of
Amount Total Amount Total
(Dollars in thousands
Mortgage loans held for sa $ 2,10t 0.3% $ 3,68( 0.€%
Commercial, financial and agricultut 106,10¢ 15.C 81,79: 14.C
Real Estate
Mortgage--commercia 238,60:. 33.¢ 212,38t 36.4
Mortgageresidentia 256,40t 36.38 202,341 34.1i
Constructior 84,93t 12.C 67,28 11.t
Consumer and other 18,48( 2.€ 15,81 2.8
Total loans 706,63! 10(% 583,30: 10(%
Allowance for loan losses g6,095) 55,722)
Net loans $ 700,54( $ 577,57

In the context of this discussion, a "real estatetgage loan" is defined as any loan, other thiyaa for construction purposes, secure
real estate, regardless of the purpose of the [6ha. Company follows the common practice of finahanstitutions in the Company’
market area of obtaining a security interest il estate whenever possible, in addition to any ro#wailable collateral. This collateral
taken to reinforce the likelihood of the ultimatpayment of the loan and tends to increase the itndgnof the real estate loan portfc
component. Generally, the Company limits its loasvdlue ratio to 80%. Management attempts to maingaitonservative philosop
regarding its underwriting guidelines and belieitesill reduce the risk elements of its loan politicthrough strategies that diversify
lending mix.

Loans held for sale consist of mortgage loans waigid by the Bank and sold into the secondary ma@@mmitments from investors
purchase the loans are obtained upon origination.

Activity in the allowance for loan losses for Dedsan 31, 2014 and 2013 was as follows:

(In thousands)

2014 2013
Balance at beginning of peric $ 5,72¢ $ 4,72
Loans charge-off:
Real Estatt (1,209 (457)
Installment and Othe (167) (197
Commercial, Financial and Agriculture (89) (10%)
Total (1,459 (759
Recoveries on loans previously char-off;
Real Estat 32t 60C
Installment and Othe 68 66
Commercial, Financial and Agriculture 15 18
Total 40¢€ 684
Net Charg-offs (1,05)) (75)
Provision for Loan Losses 1,41¢ 1,07¢
Balance at end of period $ 6,09t $ 5,72¢
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The following tables represent how the allowanaddan losses is allocated to a particular loaretsp well as the percentage of the cate
to total loans at December 31, 2014 and Decemhe2(RI1.

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses

December 31, 201
(Dollars in thousands
% of loans
in each
category
Amouni to total loan:

Commercial Non Real Esta $ 71z 15.2%
Commercial Real Esta 3,35¢ 57.¢
Consumer Real Esta 1,85z 24.2
Consume 17t 2.€
Unallocated = -
Total $ 6,09t 10(%

December 31, 201
(Dollars in thousands
% of loans
in each
category
Amouni to total loan:

Commercial Non Real Esta $ 582 14.(%
Commercial Real Esta 3,38¢ 57.2
Consumer Real Esta 1,427 25.4
Consume 17¢ 34
Unallocated 162 -
Total $ 5,72¢ 10(%

The following table represents the Companiyhpaired loans at December 31, 2014 and DeceB1he2013. This table includes perform
troubled debt restructurings.

December 31 December 31
2014 2013
(In thousands

Impaired Loans

Impaired loans without a valuation allowar $ 4,70: $ 75¢

Impaired loans with a valuation allowance 4,85¢ 4,071
Total impaired loans $ 9,56( $ 4,83(
Allowance for loan losses on impaired loans atqubend 96¢ 84¢
Total nonaccrual loar 6,05¢ 3,181
Past due 90 days or more and still accrt 66¢ 15¢
Average investment in impaired log 7,071 4,007
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The following table is a summary of interest redagd and cash-basis interest earned on impairets lma the years ended December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013:

2014 2013
Interest income recognized during impairm 12¢ -
Casl-basis interest income recogniz 25¢€ 14¢

The gross interest income that would have beerrdedoin the period that ended if the nonaccruatddaad been current in accordance
their original terms and had been outstanding thinout the period or since origination, if held foart of the twelve months for the ye
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, was $92,00043,00P, respectively. The Company had no loan camerits to borrowers in non-
accrual status at December 31, 2014 and 2013 .

The following tables provide the ending balanceshim Company's loans (excluding mortgage loans faldale) and allowance for lo
losses, broken down by portfolio segment as of Béxer 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. The tablespatide additional detail as to -
amount of our loans and allowance that correspandndividual versus collective impairment evaluatioThe impairment evaluati
corresponds to the Company's systematic methoddtwggstimating its Allowance for Loan Losses.

December 31, 2014

Installment Commercial,
and Financial and
Real Estatt Other Agriculture Total
(In thousands
Loans
Individually evaluatec $ 9,28. % 38 % 24C $ 9,56(
Collectively evaluated 568,95 18,61( 107,41( 694,97
Total $ 578,23: $ 18,64( $ 107,65( $ 704,53;
Allowance for Loan Losse
Individually evaluatec $ 92z $ 29 % 17 $ 96¢
Collectively evaluated 4,28¢ 14¢€ 69€ 5,12
Total $ 5207 $ 17t $ 71 $ 6,09°¢
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December 31, 2013

Installment Commercial,

And Financial and
Real Estatt Other Agriculture Total
(In thousands

Loans

Individually evaluatec $ 4,70¢ $ 3¢ 3% 82 % 4,83(

Collectively evaluated 473,83: 19,72¢ 81,23¢ 574,79.
Total $ 478,54, $ 19,76 $ 81,31¢ $ 579,62.
Allowance for Loan Losse

Individually evaluatec $ 804 $ 35 % 1C $ 84¢

Collectively evaluated 4,007 30C 572 4.87¢
Total $ 4811 $ 33t % 582 $ 5,72¢

The following tables provide additional detail ofipaired loans broken out according to class asexfeihber 31, 2014 and 2013. "
recorded investment included in the following tatd@presents customer balances net of any partaeloffs recognized on the loans,
of any deferred fees and costs. As nearly all ofiopaired loans at December 31, 2014 are on nounakstatus, recorded investm
excludes any insignificant amount of accrued irgereceivable on loans 3fays or more past due and still accruing. The uhpalanc
represents the recorded balance prior to any pah#ge-offs.

December 31, 2014

Average Interest
Recordec Income
Recordec Unpaid Related Investmen Recognize(
Investmen Balance Allowance YTD YTD
(In thousands
Impaired loans with no related allowance:;
Commercial installmer $ - 3 - 3 - 3 50 $ -
Commercial real esta 4,66°¢ 4,66°¢ - 2,657 142
Consumer real esta 27 27 - 17¢ -
Consumer installment 10 10 - 11 -
Total $ 4,70z $ 4,70z $ - 3 289 $ 14z
Impaired loans with a related allowance;
Commercial installmer $ 24C $ 24C $ 18 $ 18¢ $ 20
Commercial real esta 2,55¢ 2,55¢ 31t 2,41F 59
Consumer real esta 2,032 2,032 607 1,54¢ 33
Consumer installment 28 28 28 33 2
Total $ 485¢ $ 485¢ $ 96 $ 418: $ 114
Total Impaired Loans:
Commercial installmer $ 24C $ 24C $ 18 $ 23¢ $ 20
Commercial real esta 7,22: 7,22: 31& 5,06¢ 201
Consumer real esta 2,05¢ 2,05¢ 607 1,72t 33
Consumer installment 38 38 28 44 2
Total Impaired Loans $ 9,56( $ 9,56( $ 968 $ 7,071 $ 25€
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December 31, 2013

Average Interest
Recordec Income
Recordec Unpaid Related Investmen Recognize(
Investmen Balance Allowance YTD YTD
(In thousands
Impaired loans with no related allowance:;
Commercial installmer $ 3 3 3 3 - 3 45 % -
Commercial real esta 35¢& 35& - 1,03t 8
Consumer real esta 341 39¢ - 262 9
Consumer installment 4 4 - 5 -
Total $ 701 $ 75¢ $ - 3 1,347 $ 17
Impaired loans with a related allowance;
Commercial installmer $ 79 $ 79 % 10 $ 42 3 6
Commercial real esta 2,68t 2,68t 40C 2,147 10C
Consumer real esta 1,20z 1,272 404 1,01¢ 21
Consumer installment 35 35 35 36 4
Total $ 4,001 $ 4,071 $ 84¢ $ 3,24¢  $ 131
Total Impaired Loans:
Commercial installmer $ 82 % 82 % 10 $ 87 % 6
Commercial real esta 3,03¢ 3,03¢ 40C 3,18¢ 10¢€
Consumer real esta 1,54z 1,671 404 1,281 30
Consumer installment 39 39 35 41 4
Total Impaired Loans $ 4,70z $ 483C $ 84¢ $ 4591 $ 14€

Loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality #rese purchased in the BCB Holding Company, lequisition (See Note CBusines
Combination for further information). These loansre/recorded at estimated fair value at the admnsilate with no carryover of the rela
allowance for loan losses. The acquired loans weggegated as of the acquisition date between ttwssidered to be performing (acqui
nonimpaired loans) and those with evidence of creeiedoration (acquired impaired loans). Acquiredrs are considered impaired if tF
is evidence of credit deterioration and if it i®pable, at acquisition, all contractually requipayments will not be collected.
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The following table presents information regardihg contractually required payments receivableh ¢iasvs expected to be collected and
estimated fair value of loans acquired in the B€Buasition as of July 1, 2014, the closing dat¢heftransaction:

December 31, 201
(In thousands

Commercial,

financial and Mortgage- Mortgage- Commercial

agricultural Commercia  Residentia and othel Total
Contractually required paymer $ 151¢ $ 29,64¢ $ 7,93: $ 97¢ $ 40,07¢
Cash flows expected to be collec 1,57C 37,86¢ 9,691 1,03z 50,16¢
Fair value of loans acquire 1,51z 28,87t 7,04¢ 957 38,39¢

Total outstanding acquired impaired loans were B340 as of December 31, 2014. The outstandingnbal of these loans is
undiscounted sum of all amounts, including amodetsmed principal, interest, fees, penalties, ahdratnder the loans, owed at the repo
date, whether or not currently due and whethemoiany such amounts have been charged off.

Changes in the carrying amount and accretable yigldcquired impaired loans were as follows far tlear ended December 31, 2014
thousands)

Carrying
Accretable Amount of
Yield Loans
Balance at beginning of peri $ - 8 =
Additions due to BCB acquisition on July 1, 2C 1,60: 2,32t
Accretion (18€) 18¢€
Payments received, net - (44¢€)
Balance at end of period $ 1,417 $ 2,06%

The following tables provide additional detail ofubled debt restructurings during the twelve memhded December 31, 2014 and 2013.

December 31, 201
Outstanding Outstanding

Recordec Recordec Interest
Investment Investment Number of Income
Pre-Modification Pos-Modification Loans Recognizec

(in thousands except number of loa

Commercial installmer $ 23¢ % 17¢ 19 15
Commercial real esta 1,34t 1,34: 7 26
Consumer real esta 94 94 1 1
Consumer installment - - - -
Total $ 1,67¢ $ 1,612 9 $ 42
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December 31, 201
Outstanding Outstanding

Recordec Recordec Interest
Investment Investment Number of Income
Pre-Modification Pos-Modification Loans Recognizec

(in thousands except number of loa

Commercial installmer $ -3 - - $ -
Commercial real esta 85¢ 85¢ 3 53
Consumer real esta 6€ 65 1 2
Consumer installment - - -

Total $ 924 $ 927 4 % 55

The TDRs presented above did increase the allowtnndean losses but resulted in -0- chadgfis- for the years ended December 31, :
and 2013, respectively.

The balance of troubled debt restructurings at By 31, 2014 and 2013, was $6.8 million and 2.Bianj respectively, calculated 1
regulatory reporting purpose. As of December 31,42@he Company had no additional amount committe@ny loan classified as troub
debt restructuring.

All loans were performing as agreed with modifieds.

During the twelve month period ending December2Z,4 and 2013, the terms of 9 and 4 loans, resedgtiwere modified as TDRs. T
modifications included one of the following or andoination of the following: maturity date extensspinterest only payments, amortizati
were extended beyond what would be available oilaginype loans, and payment waiver. No interet# @ncessions were given on tt
nor were any of these loans written down.

December 31, 201

Past Due 90
Current Past Due  days and still
Loans 3C-89 accruing Non-Accrual Total

Commercial installmer $ 233,34 $ - $ - $ - $ 233,34(
Commercial real esta 1,684,75! - - 2,729,17| 4,413,92!
Consumer real esta 952,16: 622,30: - 448,79t 2,023,26!
Consumer installment 9,98: - - 103,10¢ 113,09:
Total $ 288024 $ 622,30: $ - $ 328107 $ 6,783,61
Allowance for loan losse $ 120,22 $ 11,20¢ $ 102,65 $ - $ 234,08:
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December 31, 201

Past Due 90
Current Past Due days and still
Loans 3C-89 accruing Non-Accrual Total

Commercial installmer $ 72,78 $ - $ - % - $ 72,78:
Commercial real esta 406,93: - - - 406,93:
Consumer real esta 1,071,91 58,46: - 422,14 1,552,52
Consumer installment 4,19¢ 35,05! - 135,08: 174,33:
Total $ 155583 $ 93,51 $ - $ 557,22! $ 2,206,56
Allowance for loan losse $ 62,08 $ 43,25: % - % 78,46¢ $ 183,80

The following tables summarize by class our lodasgified as past due in excess of 30 days or moagdition to those loans classifiec
non-accrual:

December 31, 201
(In thousands

Past Due
Past Due 90 Days or Total

30 to 89 More and Past Due and Total

Days Still Accruing  Non-Accrual ~ Non-Accrual Loans
Real Estat-constructior $ 42¢ % - $ 2,741 $ 3,17t % 84,93t
Real Estat-mortgage 3,20¢ 20¢ 2,164 5,58( 256,40t
Real Estat-nonfarm nonresidentii 3,40¢ 461 1,102 4,971 238,60:
Commercia 29 - 5 34 106,10
Consumer ag - 38 12¢ 18,48(
Total $ 7,16 $ 66 $ 6,05¢ $ 13,88¢ $ 704,53.

December 31, 201
(In thousands
Past Due 90
Past Due Days or More Total

30to 89 and Still Past Due and Total

Days Accruing Non-Accrual  Non-Accrual Loans
Real Estat-constructior $ 47¢  $ - $ 212 % 69C $ 67,287
Real Estat-mortgage 4,69¢ 142 2,45: 7,292 202,34:
Real Estat- nonfarm nonresidenti 252 - 507 75¢ 212,38t
Commercia 12 - 9 21 81,79:
Consumer 11F 16 - 131 15,81:
Total $ 555 $ 15¢ $ 3,181 $ 8,89: $ 579,62:
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The Company categorizes loans into risk categdm@sed on relevant information about the abilitypofrowers to service their debt, suck
current financial information, historical paymengperience, credit documentation, public informatiand current economic trends, am
other factors. The Company uses the following diédins for risk ratings, which are consistent witie definitions used in supervisi
guidance:

Special Mention. Loans classified as specialtinarhave a potential weakness that deserves marags close attention. If I
uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may iasigterioration of the repayment prospects foritlaa or of the Compang’credi
position at some future date.

Substandard. Loans classified as substandardaatequately protected by the current net worth @aying capacity of the oblig
or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so siféed have a welliefined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardidethéation o
the debt. They are characterized by the distinasipdity that the Company will sustain some logghie deficiencies are r
corrected.

Doubtful. Loans classified as doubtful have e weaknesses inherent in those classified astaswdzsd, with the add
characteristic that the weaknesses make colleotidiquidation in full, on the basis of currentlyisting facts, conditions, and valu
highly questionable and improbable.

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are aealyndividually as part of the above describedccess are considered to be pass
loans.

As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013pbardd on the most recent analysis performed, shecétegory of loans by class
loans (excluding mortgage loans held for sale) agafollows:

(In thousands)
December 31, 2014

Commercial
Real Estat Real Estate Installment an Financial and
Commercie Mortgage Other Agriculture Total

Pass $ 388,56¢ $ 167,820 $ 18,55¢ $ 107,12¢ $ 682,08(

Special Mentior 4,75¢€ 191 - 49¢ 5,44¢

Substandar 14,727 2,567 a0 63 17,44

Doubtful - - - - -

Subtotal 408,05: 170,58! 18,64¢ 107,68° 704,97.
Less:

Unearned Discount 32C 82 - 38 44C

Loans, net of unearned discount $ 407,73: $ 170,50: $ 18,64¢ $ 107,64¢ $ 704,53:
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December 31, 2013

Commercial,
Real Estat Real Estate Installment anc  Financial and
Commercie Mortgage Other Agriculture Total
Pass $ 316,57 $ 145,78° $ 19,72t $ 80,087 $ 562,17.
Special Mentior 4,08¢ 32 - 1,03: 5,14¢
Substandar 10,97: 1,42¢ 39 22t 12,66:
Doubtful - - - - -
Subtotal 331,62¢ 147,24! 19,76« 81,34¢ 579,98
Less:

Unearned Discount 23¢€ 97 - 27 36C
Loans, net of unearned discount $ 331,39 $ 147,14¢  $ 19,76¢ $ 81,31¢ $ 579,62:

NOTE F - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, lesmatated depreciation and amortization as follows:

2014 2013

Premises
Land $ 10,565,63 $ 9,891,75
Buildings and improvemen 25,872,00 22,966,21
Equipment 11,663,19 9,558,09!
Construction in progress 188,14t 32,98t
48,288,97 42,449,04
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 13,479,13 10,377,29

$ 3480984 $ 32,071,74

The amounts charged to operating expense for dagicecwere $1,552,297 and $1,379,748 in 2014 &8 2respectively.
NOTE G- DEPOSITS

The aggregate amount of time deposits in denonoinsitof $100,000 or more as of December 31, 20142848, was $120,693,807 ¢
$116,623,516, respectively.

At December 31, 2014, the scheduled maturitieghtd deposits included in interest-bearing depasétee as follows (in thousands):

Year Amount
2015 $ 132,10¢
2016 39,02¢
2017 18,07:
2018 7,87¢
2019 8,97:
Thereafter -
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NOTE H - BORROWED FUNDS
Borrowed funds consisted of the following:

December 31

2014 2013
Reverse Repurchase Agreem $ 5,000,000 $ 5,000,00
FHLB advances 84,450,06 47,000,00

$ 89,450,06 $ 52,000,00

Advances from the FHLB have maturity dates randiogn January 2015 through June 2019. Interestysiga monthly at rates rangi
from 0.16% to 5.47%. Advances due to the FHLB aslateralized by a blanket lien on first mortgagars in the amount of t
outstanding borrowings, FHLB capital stock, and ante on deposit with the FHLB. At December 31, 208HLB advances availat
and unused totaled $143,885,000.

Future annual principal repayment requirementsherborrowings from the FHLB at December 31, 201drenas follows:

Year Amount

2015 $ 80,468,00
2016 982,06
2017 -
2018 -
2019 3,000,001
Total $ 84,450,06

Reverse Repurchase Agreements consist of one $80&greement. The agreement is secured by sesuwith a fair value «
$7,443,951 at December 31, 2014 and $6,530,592etrbber 31, 2013. The maturity date of the remgiagreement is September
2017, with a rate of 3.81%.

NOTE | — LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Company is committed under several long-tereratjng leases which provide for minimum lease payts1 Certain leases contain
options for renewal. Total rental expense undesdtoperating leases amounted to $421,000 and $84189of December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

The Company is also committed under one lterga capital lease agreement. The capital leasseawnt had an outstanding balanc
$1,154,000 and $1,286,000 at December 31, 2012@h8l, respectively (included in other liabilitie$his lease has a remaining term
years at December 31, 2014. Assets related toahitat lease are included in premises and equipemgththe cost consists of $2.6 mill
less accumulated depreciation of approximately $8EBand $605,712 at December 31, 2014 and 204f3ectvely.
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Minimum future lease payments for the operating eaquital leases at December 31, 2014, were assilo

Operating
Leases Capital Leas
(In thousands

2015 $ 481 $ 16€
2016 473 16¢
2017 214 191
2018 141 191
2019 141 191
Thereafter 687 364
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 2,137 $ 1,271
Less: Amount representing interest (119
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 1,154

NOTE J- REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and its subsidiary bank are subjectdalatory capital requirements administered byefaebbanking agencies. Failure
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate aiartmandatory and possibly additional discretionacgions by regulators that,
undertaken, could have a direct material effecttlvmn Companys financial statements. Under capital adequacy djjniels and tt
regulatory framework for prompt corrective actitiie Company and its subsidiary bank must meet Bpeeipital guidelines that invol
guantitative measures of assets, liabilities, agntan offbalance sheet items as calculated under regulatmyunting practices. Cap
amounts and classifications are also subject tditgtiae judgment by regulators about componernitk weightings, and other rela
factors.

To ensure capital adequacy, quantitative measwaes been established by regulators, and thesereetng Company and its subsidi
bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (sghfm the table below) of total and Tier | capifab defined) to riskveighted asse
(as defined), and of Tier | capital to adjuste@taissets (leverage). Management believes, asadrbleer 31, 2014, that the Company
its subsidiary bank exceeded all capital adequegyirements.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the subsidiary Iveask categorized by regulators as walpitalized under the regulatory framework
prompt corrective action. A financial institutios ¢onsidered to be well-capitalized if it has altoisk-based capital ratio of 10% or mc
has a Tier | riskbased capital ratio of 6% or more, and has a Tiewvérage capital ratio of 5% or more. There arecanditions ¢
anticipated events that, in the opinion of managemeould change the categorization. The actuaitaapmounts and ratios at Decenr
31, 2014 and 2013, are presented in the followaidet No amount was deducted from capital for egkrate risk exposure.
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In 2013, the Federal Reserve voted to adopt fiapital rules implementing Basel Il requirements tbS. Banking organizations. Uni
the final rule, minimum requirements will incredee both the quantity and quality of capital heldlmnking organizations. The final r
includes a new minimum ratio of common equity Tlecapital (Tier 1 Common) to riskeighted assets and a Tier 1 Common cz
conservation buffer of 2.5% of riskeighted assets that will apply to all supervisedricial institutions. The rule also raises theimum
ratio of Tier 1 capital to riskveighted assets and includes a minimum leverage o&t4% for all banking organizations. These
minimum capital ratios are effective on Januarg@15, and will be fully phased in on January 1,201

Company Subsidiary
(Consolidated The First
Amouni Ratic Amouni Ratic
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 95,41¢ 12.% $ 94,88¢ 12.2%
Tier | risk-basec 89,32 11.5% 88,79: 11.4%
Tier | leverage 89,32« 8.4% 88,79: 8.4%
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 88,50: 13.2% $ 87,707 13.2%
Tier | risk-basec 82,75 12.5% 81,97¢ 12.4%
Tier | leverage 82,75¢ 9.C% 81,97¢ 8.€%

The minimum amounts of capital and ratios as estaddl by banking regulators at December 31, 20842843, were as follows:

Company Subsidiary
(Consolidated The First
Amouni Ratic Amouni Ratic
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 62,27: 8.C% $ 62,20¢ 8.C%
Tier | risk-basec 31,13¢ 4.C% 31,10¢ 4.C%
Tier | leverage 42,36: 4.C% 42,328 4.C%
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 53,02¢ 8.C% $ 52,93t 8.C%
Tier | risk-basec 26,51« 4.C% 26,467 4.C%
Tier | leverage 37,00: 4.C% 36,95¢ 4.C%

The Companys dividends, if any, are expected to be made fromidlehds received from its subsidiary bank. The A@ats dividends ¢
a national bank in any calendar year to the nditprof that year combined with the retained netfips for the two preceding years.

NOTE K- INCOME TAXES
The components of income tax expense are as fallows

Years Ended December

2014 2013
Current:
Federal (benefit $ 1,757,09¢ $ (88,079
State (benefit 347,38: (15,737
Deferred 331,39¢ 1,707,40:

$ 243587 $ 1,603,59
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The Company's income tax expense differs from theusts computed by applying the federal incomestatutory rates to income bef
income taxes. A reconciliation of the differenceas follows:

Years Ended December :

2014 2013
Amoun % Amoun %
Income taxes at statutory re $ 3,076,85! 34% $ 2,122,65 34%
Tax-exempt incom (863,20¢) (10)% (797,16 (13)%
Nondeductible expens: 238,63 3% 326,87 5%
State income tax, net of federal tax efl 215,80: 2% (10,38¢) -
Tax credits (337,719) (D% - -
Other, net 105,50: 2% (38,379 -
$ 2,435,87 27% $ 1,603,59 26%

The components of deferred income taxes includékdrconsolidated financial statements were aeviali

December 31

2014 2013
Deferred tax asset
Allowance for loan losse $ 2,27343' $ 1,980,19
Net operating loss carryov 2,615,55; 1,313,50:
Unrealized loss on availal-for-sale securitie - 620,52°
Other real estat 357,87 445 ,44¢
Other 1,200,41! 668,31
6,447,27! 5,027,98:
Deferred tax liabilities
Securities accretio (124,94 (97,917
Premises and equipme (443,08() (684,78°)
Unrealized gain on availal-for-sale securitie (932,47)) -
Core deposit intangibl (238,567 (239,369
Goodwill (716,189 (498,61))
(2,455,24) (1,520,68i)
Net deferred tax asset, included in other as $ 3,992,03 $ 3,507,30:

With the acquisition of Wiggins in 2006, Baldwin R013, and Bay in 2014, the Company assumed fedaxahet operating lo
carryovers. These net operating losses are avaitalthe Company through the years 2023, 20332884, respectively.

The Company follows the guidance of ASC Topic A8pme Taxes, which prescribes a recognition threshold and measent attribut
for the financial statement recognition and measerd of a tax position taken or expected to bertake tax return. ASC Topic 740 a
provides guidance on derecognition, classificatiaterest and penalties, accounting in interim qgasj disclosure and transition. As
December 31, 2014, the Company had no uncertaipdsitions that it believes should be recognizethanfinancial statements. The
years still subject to examination by taxing auities are years subsequent to 2010.
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NOTE L - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company and its subsidiary bank provide a deflecompensation arrangement (401(k) plan) whemhployees contribute
percentage of their compensation. For employeeribatibns of six percent or less, the Company dsdubsidiary bank provide a 5
matching contribution. Contributions totaled $28%7n 2014 and $248,355 in 2013.

The Company sponsors an Employee Stock Ownerslaip @ESOP) for employees who have completed one gkaervice for th
Company and attained age 21. Employees becomeviedited after five years of service. Contributibmshe plan are at the discretior
the Board of Directors. At December 31, 2014, ti8OP held 5,969 shares of Company common stock addb debt obligation. £
shares held by the plan were considered outstarfdinget income per share purposes. Total ESOPresepwas $26,267 for 2014 ¢
$22,785 for 2013.

During 2014, the Company established a Supplemé&xatutive Retirement Plan (“SERFOr three active key executives. Pursual
the SERP, these officers are entitled to recei®erfial monthly payments commencing at the lat@btdining age 65 or separation fi
service. The costs of such benefits, assumingirematnt date at age 65, will be accrued by the Gompmt such retirement date. Dul
2014, the Company accrued $57,000 for future benpéiyable under the SERP. The SERP is an unfypldadand is considered a gen
contractual obligation of the Company.

NOTE M- STOCK PLANS

In 2007, the Company adopted the 2007 Stock Ineerfilan. The 2007 Plan provides for the issuarfcepoto 315,000 shares
Company Common Stock, $1.00 par value per shahereS issued under the 2007 Plan may consist ifewdran part of authorized
unissued shares or treasury shares. Through #reeyeled December 31, 2009, no shares were issukt this Plan. During the ye
ended December 31, 2013, 52,653 nonvested redtrstoek awards were granted under the Plan. Duliagyear ended December
2014, 69,627 nonvested restricted stock awards wexeted under the Plan and 2,000 stock awards feeieited due to separatic
During 2014, 5,981 shares were repurchased for payof taxes. The weighted average gidaie fair value for these shares was $1
per share. Compensation costs in the amount of,$824vas recognized for the year ended Decembe2®¥ and $391,777 for the y
ended December 31, 2013. Shares of restricted gi@eked to employees under this stock plan arsuto restrictions as to the vesi
period. The restricted stock award becomes 100%edem the earliest of 1) the three or five yeaating period provided the Grantee
not incurred a termination of employment prior hattdate, 2) the Grantee’s retirement, or 3) then@es death. During this period, 1
holder is entitled to full voting rights and diviads, which are held until vested. As of December Z114, there was approximat
$1,012,000 of unrecognized compensation cost tel@tehis Plan. The cost is expected to be recegh@ver the remaining term of -
vesting period (approximately 2 years).
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NOTE N- SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

On June 30, 2006, the Company issued $4,124,00floafing rate junior subordinated deferrable ins¢rdebentures to The Fi
Bancshares Statutory Trust 2 in which the Compamgsoall of the common equity. The debentures agestile asset of the Trust. ~
Trust issued $4,000,000 of Trust Preferred SeesrifTPSs) to investors. The Compangbligations under the debentures and re
documents, taken together, constitute a full ancboditional guarantee by the Company of the Tsusbligations under the prefer
securities. The preferred securities were redeesrtapthe Company at its option. The preferred seesmust be redeemed upon matt
of the debentures in 2036. Interest on the predeseeurities is the three month London InterbarfeiORate (LIBOR) plus 1.65% and
payable quarterly. The terms of the subordinatededtures are identical to those of the preferremirgges. On July 27, 2007, t
Company issued $6,186,000 of floating rate junidsasdinated deferrable interest debentures to Tt Bancshares Statutory Trust <
which the Company owns all of the common equitye Tebentures are the sole asset of Trust 3. Tha ®sued $6,000,000 of Tr
Preferred Securities (TPSs) to investors. The Caryigaobligations under the debentures and relatedndents, taken together, constil
a full and unconditional guarantee by the Compaithe Trusts obligations under the preferred securities. Tiedepred securities &
redeemable by the Company at its option. The medesecurities must be redeemed upon maturityefitbentures in 2037. Interest
the preferred securities is the three month LIBO& [1.40% and is payable quarterly. The terms ef shbordinated debentures
identical to those of the preferred securitiesadnordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 8@6nsolidation, the trusts are not includ
in the consolidated financial statements.

NOTE O- TREASURY STOCK
Shares held in treasury totaled 26,494 at DeceRihe2014, and 2013.
NOTE P- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the normal course of business, the Bank makassido its directors and executive officers and¢dmpanies in which they haw
significant ownership interest. In the opinion cdmagement, these loans are made on substantialgathe terms, including interest
and collateral, as those prevailing at the timeclmmparable transactions with other parties, aressistent with sound banking practic
and are within applicable regulatory and lendingitiitions. Such loans amounted to approximately448000 and $8,977,000
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Theigctivloans to current directors, executive offigeand their affiliates during the y
ended December 31, 2014, is summarized as followbgusands):

Loans outstanding at beginning of y $ 8,97
New loans 90¢
Repayments (1,449
Loans outstanding at end of year $ 8,44

NOTE Q- COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND CONCENTRATIONS OFCREDIT RISK

In the normal course of business, there are owstgrvarious commitments and contingent liabilitiesch as guaranties, commitment
extend credit, etc., which are not reflected indseompanying financial statements. The subsidiank had outstanding letters of cr
of $986,000 and $675,000 at December 31, 2014 ahd, 2espectively, and had made loan commitmengppfoximately $128,086,0
and $113,372,000 at December 31, 2014 and 20%:ateeely.
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Commitments to extend credit and letters of credilude some exposure to credit loss in the evémioaperformance of the custorr
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to feral customer as long as there is no violatioargf condition established in 1
contract. Standby letters of credit are conditiot@mhmitments issued by the Bank to guarantee thferpgance of a customer to a tt
party. The credit policies and procedures for stamitments are the same as those used for leadingties. Because these instrum:
have fixed maturity dates and because a numbereewpihout being drawn upon, they generally do pr@sent any significant liquidi
risk. No significant losses on commitments wereaiined during the two years ended December 31, 2ddare any significant losses ¢
result of these transactions anticipated.

The primary market area served by the Bank is Bgrteamar, Jones, Pearl River, Jackson, HancookeStand Harrison Counties wit
South Mississippi, as well as Washington ParishT@mmany Parish and East Baton Rouge Parish irsiama and Baldwin and Mob
Counties in South Alabama. Management closely rosiits credit concentrations and attempts to difierthe portfolio within it
primary market area. As of December 31, 2014, mamagt does not consider there to be any significeattit concentrations within t
loan portfolio. Although the Bank’loan portfolio, as well as existing commitmentflects the diversity of its primary market are
substantial portion of a borrower's ability to rg@aloan is dependent upon the economic stabifith@area.

NOTE R- FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company follows the guidance of ASC Topic 8B8ir Value Measurements and Disclosures, that establishes a framework
measuring fair value and expands disclosures daoutalue measurements.

The guidance defines the fair value as the priaewlould be received to sell an asset or paidatasfer a liability in an orderly transact
between market participants at the measurement ldatso establishes a fair value hierarchy whistjuires an entity to maximize the
of observable inputs and minimize the use of unoladgde inputs when measuring fair value.

In accordance with the guidance, the Company grdaspSnancial assets and financial liabilities reeged at fair value in three leve
based on the markets in which the assets anditiebibre traded and the reliability of the assuams used to determine fair value. Tt
levels are:

Level 1: Valuations for assets and liabilities traded iniwctexchange markets, such as the New York ¢
Exchange. Valuations are obtained from readilyilalike pricing sources for market transactions haviy
identical assets or liabilitie

Level 2: Valuations for assets and liabilities traded irslastive dealer or broker markets. Valuations atained from thir
party pricing services for identical or comparaddsets or liabilities which use observable inptigiothan Level
prices, such as quoted prices for similar assetibitities; quoted prices in markets that are active; or othe
inputs that are observable or can be corroboragedbiservable market data for substantially the tedim of th
assets and liabilitie!

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by litle@market activity and that are significant to thi value of th
assets or liabilities
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Following is a description of the valuation methlodes used for instruments measured at fair vatua recurring basis and recognized ir
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Available-for-Sale Securities

The fair value of available-fasale securities is determined by various valuati@thodologies. Where quoted market prices areable
in an active market, securities are classified withevel 1. Level 1 securities include mutual funtfsquoted market prices are
available, then fair values are estimated by ugiriging models or quoted prices of securities wsthilar characteristics. Level
securities include U.S. Treasury securities, ohilige of U.S. government corporations and agencibbkgations of states and politi
subdivisions, mortgagkacked securities and collateralized mortgage atitigs. In certain cases where Level 1 or Levelfiis are n
available, securities are classified within Levelf3he hierarchy.

The following table presents the Company’s avaddbl-sale securities that are measured at fair valua k@turring basis and the le
within the hierarchy in which the fair value measuents fell as of December 31, 2014 and Decemhe2@B (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements Usi

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
For Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset: Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

December 31, 201
Obligations of U.S. Government agenc $ 27,37: $ - % 27,37: $ =
Municipal securitie: 104,58. - 104,58. -
Mortgagebacked securitie 93,03¢ - 93,03¢ -
Corporate obligation 28,78¢ - 25,98 2,801
Other 972 972 - -
Total $ 254,74¢  $ 97z $ 250,97 $ 2,801

Fair Value Measurements Usi

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
For Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset: Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

December 31, 201
Obligations of U.S. Government agenc $ 29,96: $ - 8 29,96: $ =
Municipal securitie: 108,07¢ - 108,07¢ -
Mortgagebacked securitie 78,187 - 78,187 -
Corporate obligation 26,85 - 24,05¢ 2,79¢
Other 972 972 - -
Total $ 244,05, $ 97z $ 240,28, $ 2,79¢
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The following is a reconciliation of activity foisaets measured at fair value based on signifigastiservable (non-market) information.

Bank-Issued Trust
Trust Preferred
(In thousands) Securities
2014 2013

Balance of recurring Level 3 assets at Janus $ 2,79t $ 2,66¢

Transfers into Level - -

Transfers out of Level - -

Unrealized income included in comprehensive income 3 13C
Balance of recurring Level 3 assets at December 31 $ 2,801 $ 2,79¢

The following table presents quantitative inforroatabout recurring Level 3 fair value measureméntthousands):

Trust Preferred Significant
Securities Fair Value Valuation Techniqu: Unobservable Inpul Range of Input
December 31, 201 $ 2,801 Discounted cash floy Discount rate .79%- 2.49%
December 31, 201 $ 2,79¢ Discounted cash floy Discount rate .79%- 2.49%

Following is a description of the valuation methlodpes used for assets and liabilities measurédiatalue on a nomecurring basis at
recognized in the accompanying balance sheetsetbi@svthe general classification of such assetddliabilities pursuant to the valuati
hierarchy.

Impaired Loans

Loans for which it is probable that the Companyl wit collect all principal and interest due acdéogdto contractual terms are meast
for impairment. Allowable methods for estimatingy fealue include using the fair value of the cadlat for collateral dependent loans
where a loan is determined not to be collaterakddpnt, using the discounted cash flow method.

If the impaired loan is identified as collaterapdadent, then the fair value method of measuriegatinount of impairment is utilize
This method requires obtaining a current independppraisal of the collateral and applying a distdactor to the value. If the impait
loan is determined not to be collateral dependéet) the discounted cash flow method is used. Mieithod requires the impaired loal
be recorded at the present value of expected faask flows discounted at the loarffective interest rate. The effective interest of
loan is the contractual interest rate adjustedafy net deferred loan fees or costs, premiums sgodints existing at origination
acquisition of the loan. Impaired loans are claagifvithin Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned consists of propertiesradatahrough foreclosure. The adjustment at the tihforeclosure is recorded throt
the allowance for loan losses. Fair value of otkat estate owned is based on current indepengenaiaals. Due to the subjective na
of establishing the fair value when the asset ¢gigied, the actual fair value of the other reahessbwned or foreclosed asset could d
from the original estimate. If it is determined tiaér value declines subsequent to foreclosurealaation allowance is recorded throl
other income. Operating costs associated with $seta after acquisition are also recorded asimenest expense. Gains and losses o
disposition of other real estate owned and foredasssets are netted and posted to other incorher @l estate owned measured a
value on a nomecurring basis at December 31, 2014, amounted.fifillion. Other real estate owned is classifigthin Level 2 of th
fair value hierarchy.

The following table presents the fair value measient of assets and liabilities measured at faiueradn a nonrecurring basis and
level within the fair value hierarchy in which thair value measurements fell at December 31, 20idl Becember 31, 2013
thousands).

Fair Value Measurements Usi

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
For Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset: Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

December 31, 201
Impaired loan $ 9,56( $ - % 9,56( $ =
Other real estate ownt 4,65k - 4,65k -
December 31, 201
Impaired loan $ 4,83( $ - % 483 $ =
Other real estate own 4,47( - 4,47( -

The following methods and assumptions were usedstomate the fair value of each class of finanaigtrument for which it i
practicable to estimate that value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents For such short-term instruments, the carryinguam@ a reasonable estimate of fair value.
Investment in securities available-for-sale and Helo-maturity — The fair value measurement for securities avislédr-sale wa

discussed earlier. The same measurement approachsed for securities held-to-maturity and otheusges.
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Loans— The fair value of loans is estimated by discountimg future cash flows using the current rateskitiwsimilar loans would t
made to borrowers with similar credit ratings aadthe same remaining maturities.

Bank-owned Life Insurance- The fair value of bankwned life insurance approximates the carrying amydaecause upon liquidation
these investments, the Company would receive tsle sarrender value which equals the carrying amount

Deposits— The fair values of demand deposits are, as reqbiyeSC Topic 825, equal to the carrying value wéts deposits. Dema
deposits include nonintereléaring demand deposits, savings accounts, NOWuats;oand money market demand accounts. Th
value of variable rate term deposits, those remgiovithin six months or less, approximates the yéagr value of these depos
Discounted cash flows have been used to value fizeslterm deposits and variable rate term deposscing after six months. T
discount rate used is based on interest ratesmtlyrteeing offered on comparable deposits as towarhand term.

Short-Term Borrowings— The carrying value of any federal funds purchased other shorterm borrowings approximates their
values.

FHLB and Other Borrowings— The fair value of the fixed rate borrowings ardreated using discounted cash flows, based on ci
incremental borrowing rates for similar types ofrlowing arrangements. The carrying amount of anyiabée rate borrowin
approximates its fair value.

Subordinated Debentures Fhe subordinated debentures bear interest at ablanate and the carrying value approximatesahesélue
Off-Balance Sheet Instruments- Fair values of ofbalance sheet financial instruments are based em dbarged to enter into sim

agreements. However, commitments to extend creditat represent a significant value until such catm@nts are funded or clos
Management has determined that these instrumentstdwave a distinguishable fair value and novalue has been assigned.

As of December 31, 201 Fair Value Measuremen
Significant
Other Significant
Quoted Observable Unobservable
Carrying Estimated Prices Inputs Inputs
Amount Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Instruments
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 44,61¢ $ 44,61¢ $ 44,61¢ $ - $ =
Securities availab-for-sale 254,74¢ 254,74¢ 972 250,97: 2,801
Securities hel-to-maturity 8,19: 9,99/ - 9,99/ -
Other securitie 7,23¢ 7,23¢ - 7,23¢ -
Loans, ne 700,54( 715,84¢ - - 715,84¢
Bank-owned life insuranc 14,46 14,46 - 14,46 -
Liabilities:
Noninteres-bearing deposit $ 201,36: $ 201,36: $ - % 201,36: $ =
Interes-bearing deposit 691,41 691,03¢ - 691,03¢ -
Subordinated debentur 10,31( 10,31( - - 10,31(
FHLB and other borrowing 89,45( 89,45( - 89,45( -
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As of December 31, 201 Fair Value Measuremen

Significant
Other Significant
Quoted Observable Unobservable
Carrying Estimated Prices Inputs Inputs
Amount Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Instruments
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 39,25. $ 39,25: $ 39,25 $ - $ =
Securities availab-for-sale 244.05: 244.,05: 972 240,28: 2,79¢
Securities hel-to-maturity 8,43¢ 9,62¢ - 9,62¢ -
Other securitie 5,534 5,53¢ - 5,53¢ -
Loans, ne 577,57 590,86t = = 590,86t
Bank-owned life insuranc 6,59¢ 6,59¢ - 6,59¢ -
Liabilities:
Noninteres-bearing deposit $ 144,62: $ 144,62: $ - % 144,62: $ =
Interes-bearing deposit 635,34" 634,90° - 634,90 -
Subordinated debentur 10,31( 10,31( - - 10,31(
FHLB and other borrowing 52,00( 52,00( - 52,00( -

NOTE S- SENIOR PREFERRED STOCK

Pursuant to the terms of the letter agreement legtwlee Company and the United States Departmeahedfreasury (“Treasury”), the
Company issued 17,123 CDCI Preferred Shares.

The Letter Agreement contains limitations on thgnpent of dividends on the common stock to no mbes tL00% of the aggregate per share
dividend and distributions for the immediate pifiscal year (dividends of $0.15 per share wereated and paid 2011 through 2014) and on
the Company’s ability to repurchase its commonkstndhe event of a non-payment of our dividendj aantinues to subject the Company to
certain of the executive compensation limitatianduded in the Emergency Economic Stabilization éfc2008 (EESA), as previously
disclosed by the Company. The CDCI Preferred Shemtide the holder to an annual dividend of 2%8agrears of the liquidation value of t
shares, payable quarterly in arrears.
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NOTE T- PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The balance sheets, statements of income and loaghfbr The First Bancshares, Inc. (parent companly) follow.

Condensed Balance Sheets

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel
Investment in subsidiary bai
Investments in statutory trus
Other securitie
Premises and equipme
Other

Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity:
Subordinated debentur
Other
Stockholders’ equity

Condensed Statements of Income

Income:
Interest and dividenc
Dividend income
Other

Expenses
Interest on borrowed func
Legal
Other

Income before income taxes and equity in undisteibincome of subsidial
Income tax benefit

Income before equity in undistributed income ofsdiary

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary

Net income
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December 31

2014 2013
$ 63,700 $ 8,31«
105,685,72 94,311,64
310,00( 310,00(
- 100,00(
- 368,62:
808,13: 511,74
$ 106,867,56 $ 95,610,32
$ 10,310,00 $ 10,310,00
341,98 191,98:
96,215,58 85,108,34
$ 106,867,56 $ 95,610,32
Years Ended December :
2014 2013
$ 5,45 $ 5,61(
5,109,66! 3,100,001
364,71¢ -
5,479,84i 3,105,61!
181,33( 186,58:
504,13( 773,16
752,02 810,32:
1,437,48 1,770,06
4,042,35: 1,335,54.
296,38 511,74
4,338,74. 1,847,28!
2,274,95! 2,792,20!
$ 6,613,691 $ 4,639,49!




Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activitie

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casll is@perating activities
Equity in undistributed income of subsidic
Restricted stock expen
Gain on sale of asse
Other, net

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activitie
Investment in subsidiary bai
Outlays for acquisition
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activitie
Dividends paid on common sto
Dividends paid on preferred sto
Repurchase of restricted stock for payment of ti
Issuance of 1,951,220 common shares, net
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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Years Ended December

2014 2013
6,613,691 $ 4,639,49
(2,274,95)) (2,792,20)
617,77 391,77
(364,719 -
689, 74( 181,92:
5,281,54 2,420,98
- (20,450,00)
(4,034,66) -
(4,034,66) (20,450,00)
(763,48¢) (600,45:)
(342,46() (342,46()
(85,537) (26,749)

8 18,958,46
(1,191,48)) 17,988,80
55,309: (40,217)
8,31¢ 48,52
63,707 $ 8,31¢




NOTE U - SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FESHARE AMOUNTS (UNAUDITED)

2014
Total interest incom
Total interest expense
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan los
Total nor-interest incomt
Total nor-interest expens
Income tax expense
Net income
Preferred dividends and stock accretion

Net income applicable to common stockholc

Per common shar
Net income, basi
Net income, dilutet
Cash dividends declar

2013
Total interest incom
Total interest expense
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan los
Total nor-interest income
Total nor-interest expens
Income tax expense
Net income
Preferred dividends and stock accretion
Net income applicable to common Stockholc

Per common shar:
Net income, basi
Net income, dilutet
Cash dividends declar

Three Months Ende

March 31 June 3( Sept. 3( Dec. 31
(In thousands, except per share amot
8,447 $ 8,57¢ 9,68¢ 9,66:
625 72€ 832 791
7,824 7,84¢ 8,85t 8,871
35¢ 277 631 152
7,46¢€ 7,571 8,224 8,71¢
1,672 2,05t 2,021 2,05t
7,227 7,38¢ 8,071 8,051
484 62¢ 641 682
1,427 1,61z 1,53: 2,041
10€ 86 85 86
1,321 $ 1,52i 1,44¢ 1,95¢
2€ % .3C 27 .37
28 .28 27 .3€
.037¢ .037¢ .037¢ .037¢
6,65 $ 7,60¢ 8,64¢ 8,411
75¢ 82% 69C 64E
5,891 6,78¢ 7,95¢ 7,76¢€
311 34¢ 36C 59
5,58( 6,437 7,59¢ 7,707
1,93( 1,89( 1,592 1,671
5,97¢ 7,24t 7,63( 7,30¢
30¢€ 27C 45€ 572
1,22t 81z 1,10¢ 1,49¢
10€ 10€ 10€ 10€
1,11¢  $ 70€ 99¢ 1,39-
3€ % 18 .2C 27
235 18 A8 27
.037¢ .037¢ .037¢ .037¢
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EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.

The First, A National Banking Association
(a nationally chartered banking association)

The First Bancshares Statutory Trust 2
(Delaware statutory trust)

The First Bancshares Statutory Trust 3
(Delaware statutory trust)




EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéndbe Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N&-BA1996) and Form S-3 (No. 333-
202920) of the First Bancshares, Inc. of our repated March 31, 2015, with respect to the conatdid financial statements of The F
Bancshares, Inc., included in this Annual Repooriffr 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2014.

/s/ T. E. LOTT & COMPANY

Columbus, Mississippi
March 31, 2015




EXHIBIT 31
CERTIFICATIONS

I, M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr., certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of The First Bancshares, In

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésontain any untrue statement of a material dacimit to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements madtighirof the circumstances under which such stateseere made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this ref

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this
report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f))for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

b. Designed such internal control over financiplorting, or caused such internal control over ftiahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conints procedures as of the end of the period couwydhis report based on
such evaluation; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid's internal control over financial reportitngit occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that haenadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cordvel financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summasad report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invawaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 31, 2015

/s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J

M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 31
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Dee Dee Lowery, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forrn-K of The First Bancshares, Ir;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésontain any untrue statement of a material dacimit to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements matightrof the circumstances under which such stateseere made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this ref

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this
report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f))for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoies designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

b. Designed such internal control over financiplorting, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures as of the end of the period coumyehis report based on
such evaluation; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid's internal control over financial reportitngit occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that haenadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalvaanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 31, 2015

/s/ Dee Dee Lower

Dee Dee Lowen
Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32
CERTIFICATIONS
I, M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr. Chief Executive Officeertify that
this periodic report containing financial statensefialy complies with the requirements of secti@{a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m8u(d)) and that information contained in the peigaeport fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the issuer.
Date: March 31, 2015
/sl M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr.

M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
Chief Executive Office

I, Dee Dee Lowery, Chief Financial Officer, certtfyat

this periodic report containing financial statensefiolly complies with the requirements of secti@{d) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m8u(d)) and that information contained in the peigaeport fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the issuer.

Date: March 31, 2015

/sl Dee Dee Lowery
Dee Dee Lowen
Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 99.1
EESA CERTIFICATION
I, M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr., certify, based on molvledge, that:

(i) The compensation committee of The First Banoshidnc. has discussed, reviewed, and evaluatiddsenior risk officers at least
every six months during any part of the most rdgezdmpleted fiscal year that was a TARP period,gbnior executive officer (SEO)
compensation plans and the employee compensaaois phd the risks these plans pose to The FirstdBares, Inc.;

(i) The compensation committee of The First Bamesh, Inc. has identified and limited during anxt pdthe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period any featureh®fSEO compensation plans that could lead SE@&kéounnecessary and excessive risks
that could threaten the value of The First Banas$ydnc., and has identified any features of thpleyee compensation plans that pose risks
to The First Bancshares, Inc. and has limited tfi@agires to ensure that The First Bancsharesidmat unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(iii) The compensation committee has reviewedeas$t every six months during any part of the mesemtly completed fiscal year that
was a TARP period, the terms of each employee cosgtion plan and identified any features of the pheat could encourage the
manipulation of reported earnings of The First Bdraces, Inc. to enhance the compensation of anogemland has limited any such
features;

(iv) The compensation committee of The First Baacsh, Inc. will certify to the reviews of the SEQmpensation plans and employee
compensation plans required under (i) and (iii)w#o

(v) The compensation committee of The First Baneshadnc. will provide a narrative description @it limited during any part of the
most recently completed fiscal year that was a TARRod the features in

(A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SEQ@aki® unnecessary and excessive risks that cowgdttmn the value of The First
Bancshares, Inc.;

(B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessatpipse The First Bancshares, Inc. to risks; and

(C) Employee compensation plans that could enceutfagy manipulation of reported earnings of ThetBemcshares, Inc. to enhance the
compensation of an employee;

(vi) The First Bancshares, Inc. has required bgraysnents to SEOs or any of the next twenty mostlhigompensated employees, as
defined in the regulations and guidance establisimelér section 111 of EESA (bonus payments), bgsuto a recovery or “clawback”
provision during any part of the most recently ctetgd fiscal year that was a TARP period if the impayments were based on materially
inaccurate financial statements or any other naltgiinaccurate performance metric criteria;

(vii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited golden parachute payment, as defined in the régokand guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to an SEO or any of the niset fnost highly compensated employees during anygbdahe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(viii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has limited bopagments to its applicable employees in accordaiiitesection 111 of EESA and the
regulations and guidance established thereundarglany part of the most recently completed fisear that was a TARP period;

(i) The First Bancshares, Inc. and its employeasttomplied with the excessive or luxury expendgipolicy, as defined in the
regulations and guidance established under setfitrof EESA, during any part of the most recentignpleted fiscal year that was a TARP
period; and any expenses that, pursuant to theypotquired approval of the board of directorspmmittee of the board of directors, an
SEO, or an executive officer with a similar levéresponsibility were properly approved;




(x) The First Bancshares, Inc. will permit a nonédng shareholder resolution in compliance with applicable Federal securities rules
and regulations on the disclosures provided urtdeFederal securities laws related to SEO compiengaaid or accrued during any part of
the most recently completed fiscal year that wasRP period;

(xi) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose timecant, nature, and justification for the offerimlyiring any part of the most recently
completed fiscal year that was a TARP period, of gerquisites, as defined in the regulations aridamece established under section 111 of
EESA, whose total value exceeds $25,000 for anyl@rap who is subject to the bonus payment limitetimentified in paragraph (viii);

(xii) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose whet The First Bancshares, Inc., the board of diresaf The First Bancshares, Inc. or the
compensation committee of The First Bancshareshas engaged during any part of the most recentiypleted fiscal year that was a TA
period, a compensation consultant; and the sertficesompensation consultant or any affiliate ef tompensation consultant provided
during this period;

(xiii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited gfmayment of any gross-ups, as defined in the a¢ignk and guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to the SEOs and the next tyverast highly compensated employees during anygidhte most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(xiv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has substant@diyplied with all other requirements related to lype compensation that are provided
in the agreement between The First BancsharesaimtTreasury, including any amendments;

(xv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has submitted #a3ury a complete and accurate list of the SEOshentiventy next most highly
compensated employees for the current fiscal ye#in,the non-SEOs ranked in descending order aflleffannual compensation, and with
the name, title, and employer of each SEO and highty compensated employee identified; and

(xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful falsefraudulent statement made in connection wiih ¢ertification may be punished by
fine, imprisonment, or both.See, for example, 18 U.S.C. 1001.)

By: /s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J

M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
Principal Executive Office

Date: March 31, 201




EXHIBIT 99.2
EESA CERTIFICATION
I, Dee Dee Lowery, certify, based on my knowledbat:

(i) The compensation committee of The First Banoshidnc. has discussed, reviewed, and evaluatddsenior risk officers at least
every six months during any part of the most rdgezdmpleted fiscal year that was a TARP period,gbnior executive officer (SEO)
compensation plans and the employee compensaaois phd the risks these plans pose to The FirstdBares, Inc.;

(i) The compensation committee of The First Bameshk, Inc. has identified and limited during anyt pdthe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period any featureh®fSEO compensation plans that could lead SE@&kéounnecessary and excessive risks
that could threaten the value of The First Banas$ydnc., and has identified any features of thpleyee compensation plans that pose risks
to The First Bancshares, Inc. and has limited tfi@agires to ensure that The First Bancsharesidmat unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(iii) The compensation committee has reviewedeas$t every six months during any part of the mesemtly completed fiscal year that
was a TARP period, the terms of each employee cosgtion plan and identified any features of the pheat could encourage the
manipulation of reported earnings of The First Bdraces, Inc. to enhance the compensation of anogemland has limited any such
features;

(iv) The compensation committee of The First Baacsh, Inc. will certify to the reviews of the SEQmpensation plans and employee
compensation plans required under (i) and (iii)w#ho

(v) The compensation committee of The First Baneshadnc. will provide a narrative description @it limited during any part of the
most recently completed fiscal year that was a TARRod the features in

(A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SEQ@aki® unnecessary and excessive risks that cowgdttr the value of The First
Bancshares, Inc

(B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessatpipse The First Bancshares, Inc. to risks; and

(C) Employee compensation plans that could enceutfagy manipulation of reported earnings of ThetBemcshares, Inc. to enhance the
compensation of an employee;

(vi) The First Bancshares, Inc. has required bgraysnents to SEOs or any of the next twenty mostlhigompensated employees, as
defined in the regulations and guidance establisimeiér section 111 of EESA (bonus payments), bgesuto a recovery or “clawback”
provision during any part of the most recently ctetgd fiscal year that was a TARP period if the impayments were based on materially
inaccurate financial statements or any other naltgiinaccurate performance metric criteria;

(vii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited golden parachute payment, as defined in the régokand guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to an SEO or any of the niset fnost highly compensated employees during anygbdahe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(viii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has limited bopagments to its applicable employees in accordaiiibesection 111 of EESA and the
regulations and guidance established thereundarglany part of the most recently completed fisear that was a TARP period;

(i) The First Bancshares, Inc. and its employeastcomplied with the excessive or luxury expendgipolicy, as defined in the
regulations and guidance established under setfitrof EESA, during any part of the most recentignpleted fiscal year that was a TARP
period; and any expenses that, pursuant to theypotquired approval of the board of directorspmmittee of the board of directors, an
SEO, or an executive officer with a similar levéresponsibility were properly approved;




(x) The First Bancshares, Inc. will permit a nonédng shareholder resolution in compliance with applicable Federal securities rules
and regulations on the disclosures provided urtdeFederal securities laws related to SEO compiengaaid or accrued during any part of
the most recently completed fiscal year that wasRP period;

(xi) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose timecant, nature, and justification for the offerimlyiring any part of the most recently
completed fiscal year that was a TARP period, of gerquisites, as defined in the regulations aridamece established under section 111 of
EESA, whose total value exceeds $25,000 for anyl@rap who is subject to the bonus payment limitetimentified in paragraph (viii);

(xii) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose whet The First Bancshares, Inc., the board of diresaf The First Bancshares, Inc. or the
compensation committee of The First Bancshareshas engaged during any part of the most recentiypleted fiscal year that was a TA
period, a compensation consultant; and the sertficesompensation consultant or any affiliate ef tompensation consultant provided
during this period;

(xiii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited gfmayment of any gross-ups, as defined in the a¢ignk and guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to the SEOs and the next tyverast highly compensated employees during anygidhte most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(xiv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has substant@diyplied with all other requirements related to lype compensation that are provided
in the agreement between The First BancsharesaimtTreasury, including any amendments;

(xv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has submitted #a3ury a complete and accurate list of the SEOshentiventy next most highly
compensated employees for the current fiscal ye#in,the non-SEOs ranked in descending order aflleffannual compensation, and with
the name, title, and employer of each SEO and highty compensated employee identified; and

(xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful falsefraudulent statement made in connection wiih ¢ertification may be punished by
fine, imprisonment, or both.See, for example, 18 U.S.C. 1001.)

By: /s/ Dee Dee Lower
Dee Dee Lowen
Principal Financial Office

Date: March 31, 201




